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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EBEIEZERERAT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B HE

RESULTS

Revenue

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners
of the Company

EBITDA

PER SHARE DATA
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Total dividends per share (HK cent)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EBIEIZERER LA

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue percentage by business segments

BRBIBHBABD R

- Zinc alloy die casting - Magnesium alloy die casting
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Plastic injection Lighting products
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

RREZEH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present you the audited
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year").

For the year under review, the Group has recorded a 13.2% increase in
the overall revenue, reaching approximately HK$1,742,476,000 (2015:
approximately HK$1,539,344,000). The upturn in revenue was mainly
due to better performance from the magnesium alloy die casting and
plastic injection moulding businesses. The Group's gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$391,732,000, representing an increase of 34.2%
over last year (2015: approximately HK$291,981,000).

ETREHE

BEMRR :

AANERRZHRBERZEEARAR ([RAF])
Exg MAR BATREARALREMNER
A(HmREAIAER)BE_F - F+_-H
ZH-BLEFE(AFE]) 2EEREFEE -

REBEFE AEESSLWAEIMNZ2%
EEH1,742,476,0008 L (ZE—HF + 4
1,539,344,000/87T) - WAR EAFEEHNE
AEBENMBRIBEBNEERE - A5EH
FEF 4 AH391,732,0008 70 * RAF EF34.2%
(ZZ—F4 : #291,981,000/%T) °
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHE (E)

In 2016, the Group has settled all forward foreign exchange contracts
and recorded a reversal of certain loss on forward foreign exchange
contracts of approximately HK$14,767,000 arising from settlements
and change in fair value of these contracts. With multiple consolidation
measures and encouraging business results, the Group achieved
a turnaround and recorded a profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$59,243,000 (2015: a loss of
approximately HK$63,489,000). The Group's EBITDA, computed as profit
before tax, depreciation, amortisation and finance costs, amounted to
HK$214,143,000 (2015: HK$24,000,000).

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.0 cent (2015: Nil) per share for the Year after due consideration
of the future business development as well as financial position of the
Group. The dividend payout ratio for the Year would be 15.1% (2015:
Nil).

During the Year, magnesium alloy die casting business maintained a
healthy growth and continued to be one of the Group’s major revenue
contributors. For our notebook and ultrabook computer casing business,
the Group has been a long-term supplier to top brands in the world.
Although the launch of new product had been delayed in the first half
of 2016, the demand for computer metal casings from top computer
brands recovered in the second half. The Group anticipates that new
product launches will resume in 2017, thus creating a significant
demand for magnesium alloy notebook casings. With our long history
and strong expertise in the die casting industry, the Group believes that
we would be able to maintain a good and long term relationship with
our existing and new partners. In addition, the Group is committed to
provide customer-oriented solutions with special effort to co-operate
with our customers in early research and development stage. The Group
is currently developing new material, as well as new forming technology,
such as thixomoulding, as a platform for hybrid applications. These high
value-added products and services will enable the Group in providing
a more comprehensive product offerings and achieving stronger
profitability.

On the other hand, due to the need for energy conservation and better
environmental efficiency, “weight reduction”
major development trend for automotive industries around the globe. As
fuel efficiency will be highly enhanced with lighter car, car manufacturers

vehicle has become the

have been seeking automotive parts solution that are durable yet light
in weight. With the potential for becoming high strength alloys, light
metal such as aluminium and magnesium would be suitable for
weight reduction” solutions with better environmental efficiency. To
further cope with the pollution challenge, the Chinese Government
has been actively developing light-weight new-energy vehicles as one

“vehicle
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

of strategic goals in the 13th Five-year Plan, as well as in the National
Strategic Development Plan for Emerging Industries. Since China is the
largest market for new-energy vehicles with the highest sales volume
ranking in the world, there will be ample potential for the Group to
tap into the automobile industry and further expand the applications
of new materials, technology and equipment. This will enable the
Group to widen its income streams and develop more light weight
automotive parts, such as for new energy light-weight vehicles. The
Group has also been exploring more innovative forming technology with
applications on new materials, such as rare-earth magnesium alloy and
rare-earth aluminium alloy. At the same time, the Group is developing
environmentally-friendly production techniques, such as surface finishing
treatment, aiming to bring in pioneering solutions to the industry and
sustain its leadership in the market. For zinc and aluminium alloy die
casting businesses, the sales in 2016 slightly dropped. It is expected that
both segments will remain stable in 2017.

For the plastic injection segment, the Group has been providing
accessories for 3C (communication, computer and consumer electronics)
and healthcare products over the past years. With the launch of new
smartphone models and the re-bounce in the emerging markets in
the coming years, the Group believes that the mobile device market
has very good potential to be further developed. Mobile device such
as smartphones is one of the major communication devices nowadays
and has become a daily necessity to the society. It is estimated that the
demand for smartphones will remain stable, hence deriving consumer
demand for plastic mobile accessories with creative features or designs.
Mobile device accessories have transformed into fashion which consumer
would switch and change frequently. Developing along with this market
trend and working closely with our business partners, the Group will
collaboratively provide mobile device accessories with more creative
solutions. Our customisation and creative solutions endeavour to offer a
more multifunctional and versatile product range and to satisfy diverse
needs from the extensive customer requirements. In addition, the Group
will continue to expand its customer base and support to capture
higher market share in high quality functional and decorative plastic
injection automobile and precision components industry. The Group has
developed the germ-repellant polyethylene resins in collaboration with a
research organisation. This technology can be applied in a wide range of
consumer and commercial products with a view to tap the potential of
new plastic injection solutions.

For the plasma lighting business, the Group’s shareholding in Topanga
Asia Limited was diluted from 79.7% to 38.9% by introducing a new
strategic partner with new capital injected and technical skills in early
2016. As such, the Group has reduced its financial burden. Working in
collaboration with our new partner, the Group will continue to optimise

TEHE (B
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHE (E)

plasma lighting products in order to provide more versatile solutions
to cater for different customer needs. In 2016, the B2B LED lighting
business maintained a steady growth and the Group will continue to
enlarge its sales network and explore new market opportunities.

Industry 4.0 is the trend towards management intelligence and
digitisation in production technologies, which also goes in-line with the
national policy “Made in China 2025". Under such direction, the Group
is determined to upgrade so as to improve the intelligence standard of
manufacturing, enhance the Group’s core competitiveness and efficiency
in offering high quality products for customers, and also develop staff's
management and technical skills towards such digital direction. To
develop our own Industry 4.0 intelligent infrastructure and practice, the
Group has established the Industry 4.0 Preparatory Committee to work
together with the German expert consulting team in collaboration with
Hong Kong Productivity Council.

In the past couple of years, the Group has been relocating its production
lines and consolidating its production facilities in Shenzhen and Huizhou
in China with an aim to optimise its production efficiency and enhance
its value by rationalising its facilities. On 24 October 2016, the Group
announced the disposal of MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“MG Technology”) for a total consideration of HK$290,000,000,
and obtained approval from independent shareholders during the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 7 December 2016.
MG Technology was principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of magnesium and aluminum alloy die casting products and
components, and its original businesses and operations had been
gradually consolidated into the base in Huizhou and other facilities of the
Group. The transaction would enable the Group to provide integrated
production facilities and to enhance overall operational efficiency. At
the same time, the transaction will help strengthen the Group’s financial
position.

During the Year, the Group was honored to be awarded by different
industry associations for our contribution to the industry. In the 12th
Annual Meeting of China Foundry Association and the 1st Global
Foundry Forum, held in Beijing, Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.,
the subsidiary of the Group has been granted “China Green Foundry
Model Enterprise”. On 2 June 2016, the Group was awarded “Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards 2015: EcoChallenger” by Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China (Hong Kong). These awards not
only recognised our achievements in areas of technological advance and
proactive implementation of sustainable development strategies, but also
encouraged the Group to continue pursuing innovation and create an
energy-saving technological environment.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z#BIRIZERERL A

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Looking into the future, the Group is cautious yet optimistic towards
its business and development. Focusing on the theme of “Integrating
Resources, Pursuing Excellence” in 2017, the Group will continuously
seek for technological advancement across different business segments,
implement cost-control and operational efficiency measures while explore
other business collaboration opportunities in the market in order to
maximise our profitability. Despite of the uncertainties of the global
economy, the Group, as a well-known industrial leader, will be able to
overcome the difficulties ahead.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and all business partners for their unfailing support; our
management and staff for their commitment and dedication throughout
the Year.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIZERERA T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWNRD

(A)

(B)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Benefitting from the recovery in the magnesium alloy die casting
business and flourishing demand for plastic injection moulding
products, the Group sustained a steady growth for the year
ended 31 December 2016, with turnover increased by 13.2% to
approximately HK$1,742,476,000 (2015: HK$1,539,344,000).
Gross profit also reached HK$391,732,000 (2015:
HK$291,981,000). The overall gross profit margin also increased
from 19.0% in 2015 to 22.5%.

In 2016, the Group has settled all forward foreign exchange
contracts to rectify its exposure in foreign exchange and recorded
a gain on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$14,767,000 due to a reversal of certain
loss arising from settlements and change in fair value of these
contracts. With its consolidation and operational efficiency
measures, plus the encouraging results from magnesium alloy
and plastic injection moulding business segments, the Group
achieved a turnaround in 2016 and recorded a profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$59,243,000
(2015: a loss of approximately HK$63,489,000). The Group's
EBITDA, computed as profit before tax, depreciation, amortisation
and finance costs, amounted to HK$214,143,000 (2015:
HK$24,000,000).

As for the plasma lighting business, the Group’s shareholding
in Topanga Asia Limited was diluted from 79.7% to 38.9% by
introducing a new strategic partner with new capital injected
in early 2016. By collaboratively investing and managing the
business with the new partner, the Group has reduced its
financial burden in this business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Magnesium alloy die casting business

Due to the recovery of magnesium alloy die casting business
arising from the increasing demand for notebook computer
casings, the revenue of this business segment for the year ended
31 December 2016 increased by 30.4% to HK$691,194,000
(2015: HK$529,870,000), accounting for 39.7% (2015: 34.4%)
of the Group’s overall revenue. The Group is currently exploring
the possibility in developing various applications of magnesium
alloy and advanced forming technology as a platform for hybrid
applications for consumer products and automotive components
to capture the growth potential of this business segment in the
forthcoming future.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWE D (&)

Plastic injection moulding business

The overwhelming response of the new smartphone models
launched in the second half of 2016 has led to an increase in
the demand for plastic protective cases. Therefore, the revenue
of this business segment had recorded an increase of 13.0% to
HK$601,267,000 (2015: HK$532,151,000), which accounted for
34.5% (2015: 34.6%) of the Group’s overall revenue. In addition,
the growth for plastic injection automotive components remained
strong. In view of this, the Group will continue to enlarge its
share of business and expand its customer base.

Zinc alloy die casting business

During the year under review, the revenue of zinc alloy die
casting business was HK$230,614,000 (2015: HK$250,322,000),
representing a decrease of 7.9% when compared with that of
2015. This business segment accounted for 13.2% (2015: 16.3%)
of the Group’s overall revenue. It is expected that this business
segment will continue to provide a stable income to the Group in
the forthcoming future.

Aluminium alloy die casting business

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of aluminium
alloy die casting business decreased by 8.4% to HK$195,763,000
(2015: HK$213,760,000) when compared with that of the
previous year. The segment’s contribution to the Group’s overall
revenue had dropped from 13.9% in 2015 to 11.2% in 2016.

Lighting Products

During the year, the revenue of lighting products business
increased by 78.5% to HK$23,638,000 (2015: HK$13,241,000).
The increase was mainly derived from sales of LED lighting
products to customers in the United States (“US").
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWE D (&)

(@)

PROSPECTS

2016 has been a difficult year for business operation. The new
presidential inauguration in the United States as well as the
conflict between North and South Korea has created an unstable
global political situation and a challenging operating environment
for corporates around the world. The Group predicted that
the difficult situation will persist. Despite such adversity, the
Group has continuously optimised its business operation, as
well as sought progression in business development, which has
contributed to a successful turnaround during the year. Propelling
forward, apart from strengthening the existing businesses, the
Group will continue to look for new business opportunities in
the market to create new income streams, as well as, synergies
and growth drivers for all business segments. The management is
positive towards the outlook of the Company and will continue to
implement its strategies to achieve sustainable development.

Riding on the increasing popularity of “light weight” trend in
the consumer market, the magnesium alloy die casting business
will remain as our major focus of development, particularly
for consumer electronics and automotive components. In the
coming years, the Group believes that portable and highly-
functional ultrabook computer will continue to attract demand
from consumers, which will make it the major growth drivers for
the personal computer market and derive ongoing demand for
light-weight magnesium alloy notebook casings. As a supplier of
the world’s top computer brands, the rolling plans of launching
new products have brought in stable orders for the Group,
thus generating a substantial demand for notebook casings
and benefitting the Group’s magnesium alloy casting business.
On the other hand, automobile manufacturers have started
to incorporate more light-weight alloy spare parts in order to
achieve “vehicle light weight” and enhance car performance. In
particular, the pollution problem in China has accelerated the
development for new-energy vehicles. China will further improve
the competitiveness of new-energy vehicles in the 13th Five-
Year Plan with a key strategic goal of creating light-weight and
intelligent new-energy vehicles and making them as commercially
competitive as their fuel counterparts. To capture these
opportunities, the Group has been developing the automobile
supply chain, and is now exploring applications of various new
materials, such as rare-earth magnesium alloy and rare-earth
aluminium alloy, to cater for the different need of prospective
customers. At the same time, the Group has been focusing its
efforts on cost-effective and innovative production technologies,
such as surface treatment techniques, so as to enhance its
competitiveness and heighten the quality standard in the industry.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z&#EFRIZERERA A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWE D (&)

On the other hand, the Group is positive towards the
development of the plastic injection moulding business. The
mobile device market is anticipated to continue to grow with
the new launching models, thus generating stable demand for
related plastic mobile accessories. Moreover, it is expected that
these accessories have gradually become fashion nowadays,
and the frequent changes will create more opportunities for the
Group’s plastic injection business to develop. To further seize
opportunities in the market, the Group has worked collaboratively
in designing accessories with our clients, producing various
prototypes and aiming to provide high-quality and fashionable
products in-line with market trends and to satisfy the versatile
demand from customers. The Group has developed the germ-
repellant polyethylene resins in collaboration with a research
organisation. This technology can be applied in a wide range
of consumer and commercial products with a view to tap the
potential of new plastic injection solutions.

As for the “B2B” LED lighting business, it is expected that this
business will maintain a steady growth and the Group will
continue to enlarge its sales network and explore new market
opportunities.

Leveraging on the Group’s long history and strong brand
recognition, together with the extensive business network and
the expertise in die casting and plastic injection moulding, the
Group will continue to pursuit of excellence and is ready to
embrace the opportunities arising from the market consolidation
upfront. Looking into 2017, amid the challenging environment,
the Group is cautiously optimistic and will continue to focus
on strengthening its core businesses, while exploring different
potential business collaborations. The Group will keep on
enhancing its operation efficiency and risk management. With
prudent strategies, the Group will strive to achieve sustainable
development, as well as fruitful returns for its shareholders.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWE D (&)

(D)

(E)

(F)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had restricted bank
balances as well as bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$297,572,000 (2015: HK$267,496,000 (before the
reclassification of assets held for sale)), most of which were either
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2016 were all bank loans of approximately
HK$565,952,000 (2015: HK$603,587,000). All of these
borrowings were either denominated in US dollars, Renminbi
or Hong Kong dollars to which the interest rates applied were
primarily subject to floating interest rate.

As at 31 December 2016, the net gearing ratio (a ratio of the sum
of total bank borrowings less pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank balances (if any) and bank and cash balances then divided
by total equity) of the Group was approximately 34.8% (2015:
45.9%)

As at 31 December 2016, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$91,082,000 (2015:
HK$54,632,000), which consisted of current assets of
approximately HK$1,021,954,000 (2015: HK$872,501,000)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$930,872,000 (2015:
HK$817,869,000), representing a current ratio of approximately
1.1 (2015: 1.1).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such, the Group is aware
of the potential foreign currency risk that may arise from the
fluctuation of exchange rates between US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor its overall
foreign exchange exposure with a view to safeguarding the
Group from exchange rate risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z&#EFRIZERERA A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWE D (&)

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by guarantees given by the following assets: (a) all
monies assignment of rental over the property situated in Hong
Kong owned by the Group; (b) a property situated in Hong Kong
owned by the Group; and (c) corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 5,400
full-time employees (2015: 5,800). The Group attributes its
success to the hard work and dedication of its staff as a whole,
therefore, they are deemed to be the most valuable assets of the
Group. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package, including retirement scheme,
medical benefit and bonus. The Group’s remuneration policy and
structure is determined based on market trends, the performance
of individual staff as well as the financial performance of the
Group. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and
share award scheme as incentive and reward for those qualifying
staff who have made contribution to the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for different level
of staff and holds various training programs together with PRC
institutes and external training bodies. Apart from academic
and technical training, the Group also organises different kinds
of recreational activities, including New Year gathering, various
sport competitions and interest groups. The aim is to promote
interaction among staff, establish harmonious team spirit and
promote healthy lifestyle.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 61, is the Chairman, an Executive Director of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall business
strategies of the Group. He has over 35 years of experience in the die
casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a master degree in engineering from the
Yanshan University. He was conferred an award of Honorary Fellowship
and Fellowship of Management and Business Administration by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and is the Vice
Chairman of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now become the Hong Kong Foundry
Association (the “HKFA")) in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman
of the HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries (formerly known as Federation of Hong Kong
Machinery and Metal Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee
is also the Joint Chairman of Die Casting Branch of the China Foundry
Association, Executive Director of the China Foundry Association, Deputy
Director of Semi-Solid Processing Technologies Specialties Committee,
Technology of Plasticity Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering
Society, Vice-Director General of the Guangdong Foundry Industry
Association, the Vice-Director General of the Guangdong Mechanical
Engineering Association Die Casting Branch. Mr. Lee is currently a
member of Hunan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Deputy Director of Sub-committee
4 on Die Casting of National Technical Committee 54 on Foundry
of Standardisation Administration of China, the Deputy Secretary
General and member of Sub-committee 2 on Metal Hot-forming
Branch of National Technical Committee 186 on Foundry Machinery of
Standardization Administration of China, the Deputy Director of the
Fourth Die Casting Technical Committee, Foundry Institution, Chinese
Mechanical Engineering Society, Chairman of Hong Kong Federation
of Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries and Vice
Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
Shenzhen Division.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEkaRERAE(E

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 55, is the Vice Chairman, an Executive
Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Joined the Group in 1988, Mr. Wong is now responsible
for the Group’s manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 30 years’
experience in die design and manufacturing and the die casting industry.
He is an Associate of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries.

Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu, aged 63, is the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management,
as well as supervision of the execution of the overall business strategies
of the Group. Dr. Wong holds a doctorate degree in engineering from
the University of Warwick and a master degree in business administration
from the University of Hull. Dr. Wong was appointed as an Industrial
Fellow of the University of Warwick in 2006. He is a retired fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Companies Secretaries and a life associate member of
the Chartered Institute of Bankers. Dr. Wong has over 40 years’ working
experience in Hong Kong and overseas and held various senior positions
in different private and publicly listed companies.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June 2007. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Sun is an associate of the Institute of
Industrial Engineers of Ohio and has over 30 years of experience in the
household products manufacturing industry. Mr. Sun was appointed the
Justice of the Peace in July 2003 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Hong Kong Government in July 2006. He is a member of
the 11th Zhejiang Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is currently the Honorary President of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’
Association, Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council, the
Honorary President of the Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association,
Chairman of the ICAC Business Ethics Development Committee and
the President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association.
Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of Wisdom
Education International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 6068)
and a non-executive director of China South City Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1668), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was an independent non-executive director of Ming Fai International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3828) from November 2007 to March
2016.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEAB(E

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP, aged 64, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June 2007.
Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctorate degree in engineering, master degrees in
engineering and business administration respectively and a bachelor
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo was awarded with the
“Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons Selection” in 1992, the “Medal of Honour” of the
Hong Kong Government in July 2001, and was appointed “Justice of
the Peace” of the Hong Kong Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2009 and the Silver Bauhinia
Star in July 2015 by the Hong Kong Government respectively.

Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
representing the Engineering Functional Constituency. He has over 30
years of experience in the electronic and power supply industry. He is an
Adjunct Professor of the City University of Hong Kong and an Honourary
Professor of the Open University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 16 December 2009. Mr. Look
holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University of Toronto and
has over 25 years’ experience in the equity investment analysis of Hong
Kong and China stock markets. From 2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in
Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS") as the head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product. He was rated as the best Hong Kong strategist
and best analyst by the Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly financial
and capital markets publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is
currently the managing director and chief investment officer of Look's
Asset Management Limited, a fund management company founded
by him in April 2009. Mr. Look is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1446), Citic Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205) and
Union Medical Healthcare Limited (Stock Code: 2138), all of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a
company delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September
2016) from September 2010 to September 2016 and an independent
non-executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1466), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from
September 2014 to December 2016.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
ESEkaREEAE (B)

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie, aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11 May 2015.
He is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Kong
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants (the United Kingdom). He is currently the Financial
Controller of a private manufacturing company and has accumulated
over 25 years' experience in accounting, auditing, corporate finance
and project administration mostly from Hong Kong listed companies
and multinational business conglomerates. Mr. Kong is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 720), a company listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 54, joined the Group in 2012 and is currently the
director of finance and corporate strategy of the Group. He is primarily
responsible in overseeing the Group’s finance, investment, strategic
development and capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds a
MBA degree in Finance, Corporate Accounting and Organisation from
the University of Rochester, USA. He has over 25 years of experience in
banking, corporate finance and investment. Prior to joining the Group,
he has served finance, investment and management functions within
both financial institution and corporate business, working closely with
different multinational and local companies in Asia, covering mergers
and acquisitions, equity and project investments.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 58, joined the Group in 1999. She is the
director of administration of the Group and is primarily responsible for
overseeing the administration activities of the Group. Ms. Chan has over
25 years' experience in sales, marketing and management. She is an
Associate of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and is the sister-in-law of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat.

Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 44, joined the Group in 2004 and is the
director of enterprise development of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the research and development and business
development of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in industrial
engineering and industrial management and a bachelor degree in
engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked as a senior consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for over 9 years.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZ&ERERERLD T

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENEREBAE(E

Mr. Wong Wai Chung, Peter, aged 62, joined the Group in 2012 and
is the chief marketing officer of the Group. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the Group's sales and marketing activities. Mr. Wong holds a
bachelor degree in engineering from the McGill University, Canada and is
a Fellow of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.
He has over 35 years’ experience in plastic, metal and electronics
manufacturing and management.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 45, joined the Group in 2016 and is currently
the financial controller of the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Chan has held senior financial positions in different listed companies
in Hong Kong and has over 20 years of experience in the areas of audit,
finance and treasury management. He holds a master degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Baptist University and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and manufacture of zinc,
magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting, plastic injection products
and components which are mainly sold to customers engaging in the
household products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products, automotive parts and precision components.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
is set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to
17 of this annual report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is committed to
offering one-stop solutions and professional services to meet the various
needs of our customers, while building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
Discussions on the environmental policies and performance, compliance
with the relevant local laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of the
Group with employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the section
headed "“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 48 to
64 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and share award
scheme as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff who have
made contribution to the Group. The Remuneration Committee of the
Company make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior management.
It also reviews and determines the terms of remuneration packages,
the award of bonuses and other compensation payable to directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s financial
performance, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
E=E®RE (E)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement scheme operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 72.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 31 May 2017. Subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Friday, 19 May 2017, the final dividend will be paid on or about
Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
16 May 2017 to Friday, 19 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 15 May 2017.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
26 May 2017 to Wednesday, 31 May 2017, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 25 May 2017.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 76.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’'s reserve available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$247,709,000 (2015: HK$
235,132,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major customers
attributable to the Group’s total sales was as follows:

Sales
23.5%
70.1%

- the largest customer
- five largest customers combined

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% from its five largest
suppliers combined.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2016 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 are set out on page 196.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIZERERA T

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
E=E®RE (E)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 34 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award scheme described
below, the Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$106,000 (2015: HK$:405,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities of
the Company.

THE BOARD

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee") (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 January 2017)
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
(Resigned on 23 May 2016)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP

Mr. Andrew Look

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 18 to 22 of
this annual report.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, no director resigned from his office or
refused to stand for re-election to his office due to reasons relating to
the affairs of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Dr. Wong
Cheong Yiu, Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8es, Jp and Mr. Andrew Look will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the directors
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Connected Transaction” set out on pages 36 to 37,
there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance,
to which the Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
E=E®RE (E)

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Group has obtained banking facilities with certain banks with the
specific performance obligation on the controlling shareholder:

1. Mr. Lee must at all times maintain substantial shareholding
(whether directly or indirectly) in the interest of the borrower, Ka
Shui Manufactory Co., Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company).

2. Mr. Lee should maintain management control over the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing on Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZI%EIRERERLQF

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Long Positions in the Shares

Name of Director Capacity

EEAS 4%

Executive Directors

EEERE (8)

BRizzRA

HITES
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled company ™
FEAE TGN E D

Founder of a discretionary trust®

2REEEZAILA®

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen
KB EE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Mr. Andrew Look
PR A

Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP Beneficial owner

E B B1E L sBS, MH, A T+ EmEA A

Note:

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
("Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest
in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of
Precisefull in the Company.

2. The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000

shares are held by Beautiful Crystal Development Limited (“Beautiful
Crystal”) and Beautiful Colour Assets Limited (“Beautiful Colour”)
respectively (both companies are wholly-owned by YF Lee Family Trust).
YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and
UBS TC (Jersey) Limited (“UBS TC") as trustee on 20 February 2014. The
discretionary objects are family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor
of YF Lee Family Trust and is deemed to be interested in the 127,980,000

shares held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful Colour under the SFO.

Wt

Approximate
percentage of
interest

in the Company
AR RQ B ER
BRBED L

Number of
Shares

g 4=

480,000,000 53.71%
127,980,000 14.32%
11,050,000 1.24%
8,800,000 0.98%
1,000,000 0.11%
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A ° YF Lee Family Trust/h =k £ EAET
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as disclosed above, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons, other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
ES=EHRE (E)

Long Positions in the Shares BHOZRE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest

Capacity Shares in the Company

EARQAFER

1=2) RHOEE R =R

Precisefull Beneficial owner® 480,000,000 53.71%
E=EAAD

Beautiful Crystal Beneficial owner® 77,980,000 8.73%
EmEB A?

Beautiful Colour Beneficial owner®? 50,000,000 5.59%
E=EAAD

UBS TC Trustee®@ 127,980,000 14.32%

ZEEA@
Famous Wide Limited Person having a security 130,000,000 14.55%
([Famous Wide |) interest in shares®

HEOFEREEDOAD

Qi Chang lJing Interest in controlled company® 130,000,000 14.55%

=R SR B

Note: Bisk

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such, Mr. 1. 2= S 4 4 BPrecisefull 2 2 2 1T IR A -
Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is therefore I - ZE 4 A AR A YE B Preciseful | HY 122 1) 14 4
deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in the Company. 2% WHILIR A% B Precisefull R B I AR A

Atz -

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal 2. Beautiful Crystal}Beautiful Colour® Bl #
and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are wholly owned by YF B77,980,000150,000,0000% A% 1 » 1tk & R
Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by AJAYF Lee Family Trust2 B A ° YF Lee
Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as trustee on 20 February 2014. Family Trust7y B 255 £ EBIE 5T 55 A KUBS

TCHARRAR-E—EmF=A=+ARY
2 RSN -

3. Qi Chang Jing holds the entire issued share capital of Famous Wide. As 3. 7= iR B Famous Wide 2 202 B 1TAR AN o (&
such, Qi Chang Jing is deemed to have a controlling interest in Famous I - R AR A B Famous Wide 2 1% i) 1
Wide and is therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Famous 2= 0 3 A I T AR A % B Famous Wide R &R A
Wide in the Company. AR A 2 o
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E=E®RE (E)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the directors and the
chief executive of the Company were aware of any other persons (other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 2 June 2007. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
until 1 June 2017 and each option will be granted at a consideration for
HK$10.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include directors,
employees, consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers, agents,
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares at the time
of listing of the Company. In addition, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes involving the issue or grant of share options by the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant should not
exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.
Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders of the Company at general meetings, with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be 74,346,600 shares, representing
approximately 8.3% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified
by the Board at the time of the offer of grant, and must expire no later
than 10 years from the effective date of the Share Option Scheme. There
is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an option
must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved before
an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Board and will be not less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

EEERE (8)

B BE M AT B AT AE 1R I M BE AR A AT 08 Il B PR
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EEEHE (AE)

On 13 March 2008, the Company granted 20,102,000 share options to
the Group's employees under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise
price of HK$0.415 per share. A summary of movements of share options
of the Company during the year is set out as below:

RZZEZENF=A+=A " AAGREHERE
&\ A & B {E 8 % 120,102,000 B8 B 42
TRERER0OMSETT - RAFEEAN  ARE
BlhEzZ2HBMMT

Number of share options

BREHA
Lapsed/
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled  Outstanding
Category of Date of Price Exercise As at during during during as at
Grantee/Name grant (HKS) Period 01/01/2016 the year the year the year  31/12/2016
RZB-X%E
ERA fiE RER += 8
Bhl/ 14 il A (B 1) RERRHE RERTTE R¥/ 8
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2009- 40,800 - - - 40,800
EE 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2010- 20,600 - - - 20,600
& 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2011- 40,600 - - - 40,600
E& 12/03/2018
Total
Hy 102,000 - - - 102,000
Note: ks
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1. BRESEARNSERE A RRETERM
commencement of the exercise period. B AL -
2. The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant was 2. EEEBRERL B AT ER0.415
HK$0.415. AT e
3. The fair values of options granted and the respective accounting policy 3. EREHEREATFERERRZ €5BUR

adopted are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 —ZF—/XNFF R

A M ISR M7 -



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board of Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under
which the shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be
awarded to selected persons to recognise the contributions by certain
employees and persons to the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group. The Share Award Scheme will be valid and effective for
a term of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date until 9 January
2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme may include executives,
officers, employees, directors of the Company or any of its subsidiary,
any business or joint venture partner, investor, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Administration Committee in accordance with the rules of the Share
Award Scheme and the terms of the Trust Deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall select the eligible
persons for participation in the Share Award Scheme and determine
the number of shares to be awarded. Shares will be acquired by an
independent trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be allotted
to the independent trustee under the general mandate granted or to be
granted by the shareholders of the Company at general meetings from
time to time and be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end
of each vesting period. Vested shares will be transferred at no cost to the
awarded persons.

Where any Awarded Shares is proposed to be offered to a connected
person of the Company (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules), such offer of Awarded Shares has to be first approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company and the Company
will comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including but not limited to the
obtaining of independent Shareholders’ approval if necessary).

Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the adoption date, the
maximum number of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme
would be 44,521,770 Shares and the maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to an awarded person under the Share Award Scheme
would be 8,904,354 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no Awarded Share was granted
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

EETHE (E)
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COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in any competing
business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year under review. Each of Mr. Lee and Precisefull (the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company)
has provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed and
confirmed by the independent non-executive directors of the Company,
confirming that they have complied with the terms of a Deed of Non-
competition entered into between them and the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into a renewed master
agreement (the “Renewed Master Agreement”) with Chit Shun
Machinery Limited (“Chit Shun”) for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018, in relation to the purchase
of equipment, machineries and parts (together with the maintenance
services). Chit Shun is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong and beneficially owned by Mr. Lee and an independent third party,
in equal share. Mr. Lee has nominated a director to the board of Chit
Shun. Since Mr. Lee is a director and controlling shareholder of Chit
Shun, Chit Shun is a connected person of the Company (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the transactions between the Group
and Chit Shun constitute continuing connected transactions (the “Chit
Shun Transactions”) of the Group. At the board meeting held on 7
December 2015, the board of directors of the Company had approved
(i) the Renewed Master Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder; and (ii) the proposed annual caps for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Chit Shun Transactions totalled

approximately HK$2,417,000 (2015: HK$7,681,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the Chit Shun Transactions and confirmed that they have been entered

into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on page 36 and 37 of this report in accordance with the
Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 24 October 2016, The Group has entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Forever International Development Limited (the
"Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed
to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest of MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited, the
Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, at a consideration of HK$290,000,000.
As of the date of the relevant agreement, since the Purchaser was
wholly-owned by Mr. Lee, a controlling shareholder and an executive
director of the Company, the Purchaser is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under Listing Rules.

Details of this transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 October 2016 and the circular dated 22
November 2016. The transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 7 December 2016.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 March 2017, the Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share (2015: Nil) for the year ended 31
December 2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 31 May 2017. Subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 19 May 2017, the final
dividend will be paid on or about Wednesday, 7 June 2017.
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AUDITOR
At the Company’s last general meeting, RSM Hong Kong was re-
appointed as auditor of the Company.

RSM Hong Kong shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Other changes in directors’ information since the date of 2016 Interim
Report are set out below:

1. Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, Jp, an independent non-executive
director of the Company, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Wisdom Education International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 6068) on 24 January 2017.

2. Mr. Andrew Look, an independent non-executive director
of the Company, resigned as an independent non-executive
director of TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited
(@ company delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30
September 2016) and Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1466) on 30 September 2016 and 10 December 2016
respectively.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no change in directors’

information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance practices are essential for promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and reviews its
corporate governance practices on a regular basis.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Company is in compliance with all
the code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the Group's overall
business strategies, monitoring and evaluating its operating and financial
performance and reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board has also delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the implementation of
decisions of the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and budgets, and
supervising and monitoring the control systems. The Board has the full
support of the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprises seven members as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 1 January 2017)
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
(resigned on 23 May 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff, BBS, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, Jp

Mr. Andrew Look

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRZERERLDQTE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERKRSE (B)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed in writing
his independence from the Company in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. On this basis, the Company considers all such directors to
be independent.

All the independent non-executive directors were appointed for a specific
term of two years and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. To further
strengthen the standard of corporate governance, the Company follows
the CG Code and requires any re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director who has served on the Board for over nine years to be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. In such
cases, the Board will set out in the annual report or circular the reasons
why it considers such director to continue to be independent and should
be re-elected.

The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a year on a
quarterly basis and ad hoc meetings are convened when circumstances
require. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all directors for all regular
Board meetings and all directors are given opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of Board meetings are
circulated to all directors for comments. Minutes of Board meetings with
details of matters considered by the Board and decision reached are kept
by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by the directors.

During the Year, ten Board meetings, one annual general meeting and
one extraordinary general meeting were held and details of individual
attendance of directors are set out in the table on page 44 of this annual
report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company are segregated and are not performed
by the same person. Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, the Chairman, is responsible
for the leadership and effective running of the Board while Dr. Wong
Cheong Yiu, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the overall
management and supervision of the execution of the overall business
strategies of the Group.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory
regime and the business development of the Company. To keep
abreast of the responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with
new knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during the Year.
Apart from what the Company had arranged, some of the directors also
attended other external training seminars.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June 2007. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and audit-
related services, supervise the Company’s internal financial reporting
procedures and management policies, and review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems as well as the internal audit
function. The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie, Mr. Sun Kai
Lit, Cliff BBS, JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look and
is chaired by Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie, a qualified accountant with
extensive experience in financial reporting and controls.

During 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the financial statements of the Group, review the Group’s financial
controls, risk management and internal control systems and to make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the auditors of
the Company.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZ&ERERERLD T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERHE (&)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and is mainly
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and the composition of
the Board and making recommendations on any proposed change to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP,
Mr. Andrew Look, Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie and Dr. Wong Cheong
Yiu. Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Vice Chairman
and review the structure, size and the composition of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) during the Year which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the
Board level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z&#EFRIZERERA A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in June
2007. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the terms of remuneration packages, the award of
bonuses and other compensation payable to individual directors and
senior management with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Sun Kai Lit,
Cliff BBS, JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, Jp, Mr. Andrew Look, Mr. Kong
Kai Chuen, Frankie and Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, Jp, an independent
non-executive director.

During 2016, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the salary adjustment of executive directors and senior management of
the Company.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

A
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7C 1,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T, 21,500,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations on changes
and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

EERMAE

EERACEERR XA TIIRE

o BRI BT AR AN EEABRES
MW EE B IHIRLEE

. REREENEIRFEEERR

. RERERAAAEMTEEREEH
EHEORERER

. L)
SR

CRAMERBANEERESEN
FRIRERFM @A) &

¢

B AREETEEERTANBERR
REEERBEFEHARKE -

7

Annual Report 2016 —Z— /NFF K

43



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EBEEZERERAT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERERE (E)

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HESR
A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee meetings and TXHIIN _T— A FEE=Zee® ZTE5e8
general meetings in 2016 are detailed in the following table: ELBERAGIHERHE

Number of attendance/Number of meetings

HERH/EERE

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual Extraordinary

Board Committee Committee Committee General General

meeting meeting meeting i Meeting Meeting
EH RE

Exee3E ZEg8E 2 ZEgeE RRBEFAE BRERBIAE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 10/10 - - - 1”1 11
TRELE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 10/10 - - - ” 7
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu 10/10 - 7 7 1”1 7
HEREL

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan' 5/5 - - - 7 -
RESLLE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, Jp 10/10 212 11 11 17 1”1

TABIZL S s, A Fat

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, Jp 9/10 212 01 11 01 01

EEBEE e, MH, A T4+

Mr. Andrew Look 10/10 22 1”n 11 17 11

BREE

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie 10/10 212 17 17 " 11

LR E

Note: Hiat -

1. Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan resigned as an executive director of the 1. REEXER-_T—RNERA-_T=HHE
Company on 23 May 2016. AABIPITES -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all
directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016. The statement of the external auditor of the Company in relation
to their reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 68 and 71.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
investments. The system of internal control of the Group is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate
objectives and provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

There is currently an internal audit department within the Group. Its
duties are to review the internal control system covering all relevant
financial, operational and compliance control functions within an
established framework. Reports prepared by this department are
submitted to the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal control system
has been in place.

During the year, the Group has also engaged an independent
professional consultant to identify, evaluate and prioritise the significant
risks exposed to the Group through reviewing the implemented system
and procedures, including areas covering financial, operational and
legal compliance controls and risk management functions. In addition, a
structured approach to risk management was adopted and a risk-based
three-year internal audit plan was introduced through restructuring of
internal control system in address to the significant risks identified and
assessed by the Group.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board have received an
enterprise-wide risk assessment report and the internal audit reports and
conducted review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

b REAHE (4

II\E )

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board considered that the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems are adequate
and effective and the Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.

The Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper dissemination via
the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory audit work and non-

audit services of the Group is set out as follows:

BE-Z-—R"Ft-_A=+—HLFE EF
ERB/ARAMANEZERAREEFETIR
REBEN MARBMCETEEERTAA
A AR BE 2 I LR B IR A <7 RIS o

AARERBUEE 5 iE# 5 AR E B MESE B

B EENETEMAGEE D EREE
W o
REMzHE

AEBNTAREEERLRIFERREHOZE
MMemT :

2016 2015

—E-AF SE—HAE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FrETT

Statutory audit EEEZ 1,660 1,650

Non-audit services FEEZ RO 399 569

Total o 2,059 2,219

Note: et -

1. Non-audit services mainly include agreed-upon procedures on interim 1. FECRBTECETHEECATREFR

results and tax advisory service.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZRERA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general meeting
on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting may be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedure for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, specifying
the shareholding information of the shareholder, contact details and the
proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any
specified business and its supporting documents.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions in relation to their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Shareholders may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publically available. Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s office in Hong Kong at Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion
Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HREEARE

Ka Shui, as the leading company specialising in magnesium, aluminium
and zinc alloys die casting, and plastic injection moulding, understands
that a sustainable business must be both environmentally and socially
responsible. To achieve this goal, we have prepared the Environmental,
Social & Governance (“ESG”) report for the first time this year, and
would like to share with our stakeholders the major ESG issues faced and
how they were tackled by the Company.
Guided by our key operating principle of “Honouring Customers,
Respecting People, Fostering Innovation and Supporting Continuous
Improvement”,
the development in our business with three core Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR") objectives:

we have developed a practical approach to sustain

Pursuing
excellence in
business

BREHM

Social

n “pursuing excellence in business”, we take the lead in providing high-
quality services and products to our customers, as well as conveying our
CSR values to the business partners and the community that we interact
with. These, altogether, define “excellence” to us in doing business.

Next,
bring us continuous innovation and improved productivity. In addition,

“respecting our people”, we believe that respecting people can

we highly emphasise on creating a healthy and safe workplace for our
employees.

We always regard “protecting the environment”
other two core CSR objectives. It is the Group’s vision to develop into a

as important as the

leading green and high-tech enterprise. We implement green initiatives
to tackle environmental issues arising from our operation, and promote
innovation to manufacture green products as the way to create green
value to our stakeholders.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z&#EFRIZERERA A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B -

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities, Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx), with reference to the General Disclosures.
The scope of the ESG report confines to the Company and its major
subsidiaries, as listed below:

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

- MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited

- Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited

- Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited

Ka Shui is now on the journey to make the business more sustainable
and will continue to invest for sustainable growth. Moving forward, we
may consider disclosing information on Key Performance Indicators to
help us track our sustainability performance.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

Stakeholders engagement forms a vital process in our approach to
fulfil our CSR by identifying issues influencing the stakeholders in our
operation. For this first year of reporting, we gathered views from our
key stakeholders on CSR issues by conducting an online survey. The key
stakeholder groups we engaged include employees, suppliers, customers,
non-governmental organisation and community organisations. From
the survey, we could see that stakeholders generally realise there is
a growing influence on CSR to Ka Shui and themselves, and they are
generally aware of the CSR issues in Ka Shui.
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Among all the CSR issues, we need to know those issues that are most
material to the Group. Through the survey, the sustainability issues were
rated by the stakeholders and we conducted a materiality assessment
to pinpoint those issues that result in greatest impact to our business,

as well as the most concern to our stakeholders. The result of the

materiality assessment is presented in the following graph.
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For the first year, we incorporated stakeholders engagement and
materiality assessment together into our CSR management, as we realise

their importance in providing us information to refine the CSR objectives

which then influence the whole CSR management. We will continuously
engage with our stakeholders to review the CSR management so as to

meet their expectations.

BAF - FEFOHDENZEMESZEFEHEAA
HMOCEMSRETERET BAREMABHI
MR BRMREEEANEZEEACELE
BEEEEMCEHERETER RS EER
BHONFNE - ERISEELEETER LMD
EAMPIRHIE -

Annual Report 2016 —ZT—"FF

( Stakeholders Y Materiality assessment Y CSR objectives )
engagement B|EMRE TtELEEEER
M ELE
Anti-corruption, Customer privacy,
Customer satisfaction, Supply Pursuing excellence
chain management etc. in business
~ Customers KB ZPEL FFRE Exa
gl B fERERE
- Suppliers \ ,
5] > 7 “
- Community Energy consumption, Waste
HE management, Air emission, Green
- Non-governmental products etc. ) .
NS LB BOEE - ZRAH
#gﬁlﬁiﬁﬂﬁ HeRaT
- Employees \/\/ \‘,
BT
Child labor, Occupational Health
and Safety, Forced labour, Training
etc.
BT BERERRE
RS  EFE
N N \ JI J
.



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z&#EFRIZERERA A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 5

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

The pursuit of sustainability is embedded in the core values we uphold
— “pursuit of excellence, creation of value, unity and mutual trust,
harmonious development, green production and giving back to the
community”, and the operating principle we committed — “honoring
respecting people, fostering innovation and supporting
continuous improvement”. These corporate values provide the
foundation of our strategy to fulfil our CSR in three core objectives

customers,

— pursuing excellence in business, protecting the environment and

respecting our people.

Corporate values
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In order to incorporate our corporate values into our daily practices,
we established the Group CSR policy consisting of our commitments in
labour standard, environment, occupational health & safety and business
ethics. Various tools, including CSR Codes of Conduct, EHS Management
Systems and 7S Management, are developed at subsidiary level with
reference to international and industry-specific standards, such as Social
Accountability International SA 8000, Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition (“EICC") Code of Conduct, relevant ISO standards and
Forest Stewardship Council — Chain of Custody (“FSC-CoC"). The EHS
Management Systems are established in accordance with international
standards — ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001, to ensure a recognisable,
effective and holistic approach to manage environmental, health and
safety issues arising from our production facilities.
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What is 7S Management?

The 7S Management was originated from the 5S management, and the
building blocks are one of the most powerful lean manufacturing tools.
The five phrases come from Japanese terms beginning with the letter
"S" — Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke, and the two additional
phrases — Safety and Save to complete our management approach. It
is particularly used for guiding our employees to maintain a healthy
and safe workplace, to manufacture quality products and to conserve
resources through behavioural change.
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PURSUING EXCELLENCE IN BUSINESS

Pursing excellence is the cornerstone in our business. In Ka Shui, the
definition of excellence in business is more than the idea of quality
production and service; furthermore, it goes along with ethical business
and sustainable value creation to our business partners and the
community.
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Preventing Corrupt Practices

Ka Shui takes the principle of “Compliance, Integrity, Fairness and Anti-
corruption” seriously and stands against any forms of bribery in order to
do ethical business.

To make this strong commitment within our business, we have
established strict rules for all our business partners and employees, which
are detailed in our Code of Conduct and Anti-corruption policy. We
strictly prohibit our employees, directly or indirectly, from receiving any
forms of benefits such as presents and money. We require all suppliers
to follow the content stated in the declaration of integrity; otherwise,
they will be blacklisted and may be subject to legal prosecution. Whistle-
blowing channels are also set up for any reporting on the case of anti-
corruption.

Maintaining Customer Relationships

It is our primary goal to satisfy clients’ expectations on the products.
We have established quality management systems certified with
the international standard ISO 9001 to ensure that customers get
high quality products and services. A customer satisfaction survey is
also conducted to understand customers’ needs and expectations,
and continuously look for room for improvement. In case of any
dissatisfaction or return of product from customers, we will investigate
the reasons and set up improvement plans on our production and
service. Constant follow-ups and procedures are implemented to prevent
re-occurrence of the same deficiency.

Intellectual property right, in particular, is what we value and respect.
In Ka Shui, there are patents and trademarks held for several of
our technologies and developed materials. As a patent owner, we
understand the importance of intellectual property to a business; and
therefore, we strive to protect the intellectual property right of clients
in our confidentiality and data protection policy. Apart from signing
confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreements (“NDAs"”) with our clients
to commit to protecting all customers’ confidential business information
and product information, strict rules are set up for our employees to
ensure proper handling of any confidential information of clients and the
Group.
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Managing Sustainability in Supply Chain

Our supply chain management aims at meeting the raw material
requirements from Ka Shui and our clients, and building mutual trust
between suppliers and us.

We want our suppliers to share the same view with us towards CSR.
Therefore, for all new suppliers, we have developed a thorough supplier
assessment which consists of not only criteria linked to quality and
production management, but also a whole range of CSR-related aspects,
such as environmental protection, OHS, intellectual property rights,
privacy, labour standard and welfares.

Suppliers are also required to sign an agreement to show that they
understand our EHS policy and are committed to accomplishing
our expectations in their EHS performance. Since we strictly follow
the Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS"”) and Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH")
standards, suppliers are required not only to declare their supplying
materials comply with the standards, but also to submit testing reports
performed by third-party for verification of the compliance. For chemical
suppliers, they are required to submit Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
to disclose the health and safety hazard information of the chemical and
corresponding health and safety measures.

We, also, look closely at the ethicality of our procurement. Specifically,
for the minerals used in our products, such as tantalum, tin, tungsten
and gold, we do not source minerals from whose extraction and trade
in unstable regions affected by armed groups such as the Democratic
Republic of Congo or adjoining countries, which constitute human right
abuses.

Engaging Our Community
Being mindful of giving back to community, Ka Shui has made great
contribution to the community throughout the years.

Supporting the people in need is our prime objective in community
investment. We made donation to organisations in different natures such
as public health care, cultural development and youth education and
disaster relief. We have also developed an internship programme with
Guangzhou City Construction College, which aims to provide students with
an opportunity to work with us and start developing their career paths.

In addition, we always encourage our staff to involve in community
activities. We have established a volunteer team, and constantly
participate in various activities to fulfil not only the CSR of Ka Shui, but
also the good citizenship of everyone.
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Volunteer for the local community A charity run for raising money to a Our volunteer team participated in a
activities in Longgang district, charitable scheme (FEFE&E KB EBYATE]). tree planting activity.
Shenzhen.
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We sponsored students of

Vocational Training Council ("VTC")

in developing SOPHIE, the solar
powered electric vehicle.
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We donated the Outstanding
Industrial Attachment Scholarship of
VTC.
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RESPECTING OUR PEOPLE

“Respect” has been a major element in our business philosophy since
the beginning of our business back in 1980, and is one key reason to
the success of our business. Our employees, in particular, are whom
we profoundly respect as they are the backbone supporting the growth
of Ka Shui. With this in mind, it is our goal to create a harmonious
workplace and a mutual relationship with our employees.

To achieve the goal, we focus on five areas: labour rights, fairness
& zero-discrimination, benefits & welfare, staff development and
occupational health and safety (“OHS").
closely at not only the national regulations but also other standards
including SA8000 and EICC code of conduct to detail our policies, and,
ultimately, respect our people.

Under each area, we look

Labour rights
S TR

Occupational
health and safety
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Staff Benefits &

development

Labour Rights

The labour rights of employees on wage, dismissal, working hours and
compensation are provided in compliance with relevant regulations.
We also ensure our staff work consensually, and disapprove any forced
labour behaviour in Ka Shui.

We care about the children’s right; therefore, we prohibit child labour
in all our subsidiaries. In addition, we have procedures in place if we
discover child labour in our factories. We will send the children back
home, followed by providing medical health check and sufficient living
expenses until they are 16 years old. We aim to offer as much assistance
as possible and alleviate potential negative impacts on them.

welfare
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Fairness & Zero-Discrimination

We are committed to providing a fair and non-discriminatory working
environment for our employees.
not discriminate on the ground of nationality, age, gender,
orientation, gender identity, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, political
inclination, and/or other forms of difference that is unrelated to job
requirements. We respect diversity and freedom of association, as well
as prohibit any forms of discrimination, harassment and victimisation at
workplace. At the same time, to build unity mutual trust, we operate
an anonymous whistle-blowing system to encourage the reporting of
misconduct while respecting the privacy of the whistle-blowers.

Our employment practices do
sexual

Benefit & Welfare

A successful business should maintain a motivated and harmonious
environment at work. Our people are essentially treated with fair wage,
fixed working hours, proper insurance coverage and statutory holidays.
We also provide incentives to employees with outstanding achievements
and performance in various aspects of work.

Beyond these, we uphold our corporate culture — Praise, Home & Love
— with the aim to turn Ka Shui into a workplace just as peaceful as a
second home for our employees. Our regular publication “Window of Ka
Shui” serves literally as the window of the home, in which we uphold the
four values (Learn, Operate, Value and Effective) by not only announcing
company’s latest news in the publication, but also sharing knowledge
regarding to health, working skills, or any interesting stories to our
people.

In addition, we organise various leisure activities such as monthly
birthday parties, basketball and singing competitions as well as Chinese
New Year gathering and Mid-Autumn Lantern Carnival on regular basis.
We also provide physical fitness rooms, library,
badminton courts in workplaces. These all together, can give our people’
mind a rest from daily stress and re-energised them for upcoming tasks.

internet rooms and
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Dancing performance during our annual Chinese
New Year gathering.
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Our volunteer team is packing and distributing
mooncakes for our employees during the Mid-
Autumn Festival.
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Staff Development
We view the talents of our employees as our most valuable asset.

To strengthen their skills, we offer learning opportunities to all
employees. In 2005, we established Ka Shui Enterprise Academy.
Through lectures and relationship-building activities, our people at
different job positions and levels can have chances to experience
corporate culture and develop in both personal and professional
development.

It is also crucial to let our people fully understand the Group’s
core values and business principles. We provide a series of training
programmes based on industry-wide standard EICC requirements,
covering issues related to reinforcement of labour rights, ethics, as
well as occupational health and safety, so that these concepts can be
internalised and helped with building unity and mutual trust within the
Group.
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Annual dinner, which is one of the largest events in the year
2016, gathered most of our staff together for a joyful night
with feast.
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Outbound training for team-building.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

It is our responsibility to provide a healthy and safe workplace for our
employees. As a company with manufacturing processes such as metal
alloys die casting and plastic injection moulding, our employees are
exposed to hazards that cause injury, illness or other adverse health
effects. We have therefore, set up health and safety policy under the EHS
Management Systems, and a systematic approach to control these OHS
risks. Apart from complying with all relevant regulations and laws, we are
committed to identifying, monitoring, and controlling the risks through
conducting regular occupational hazard factor inspection, and formulate
action plans to mitigate the corresponding risks.

Comprehensive OHS trainings are also provided to our staff. Based on
employees’ job natures and needs, we provide sufficient training to
ensure their acknowledgment to all the potential hazards and dangers in
their own workplace, and are competent to safely perform all activities.

Accidents, however, may still happen even with all the preventive
measures in place. We therefore have first aiders in the subsidiaries as
required in related legal provisions for any immediate first-aid support.
In order to cope with emergency situations, we have developed an
emergency procedure plan. Drills for fire and other emergency situations
are also periodically conducted and reviewed to increase staff's safety
awareness and response in case of emergency events.
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Social education class for our employees.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

With a vision to develop into a leading green and high-tech enterprise,
environmental protection is regarded as one of our core objectives. As
a manufacturer, we have an indivisible bond with the environment,
from which we strongly rely on the natural resources to manufacture
our products, and thus it is our responsibility to give back to the
environment.
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Our Group environmental policy consists of four objectives — 1)
compliance with regulations; 2) continuous improvement; 3) clean and
effective production; and 4) environmental promotion and education.
We aim to govern five major environmental aspects within our operation
— air, energy and greenhouse gas, water, waste and product and
technology.

To our honour this year, one of our subsidiaries in Huizhou — Ka
Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited, received the award
“China Green Foundry Model Enterprise” from the China Foundry
Association, in recognition of its outstanding green performance.
This effort has recognised our continuous efforts and commitment to
environmental protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Product and Technology

With limited amount of resources and increasing environmental pollution
issues on our planet, Ka Shui places high importance on reducing
the environmental footprint of the products to create values for our
customers and other stakeholders. We strive to look for opportunities to
deliver quality products that bring less impact to the environment with
our strategy lying in the “Design”, “Source” and “Manufacture” phases
of products:

Innovate
sustainable
material, product

and technology Use green

material

Bl ] FFE A9 A% b

£ B mm Al

As a one-stop solution provider, we also engage in Research and
Development (R&D) of materials and technologies used in the industry. In
the “Design” phase of our green product strategy, apart from the pursuit
of quality, we also aim to innovate materials, products and technologies,
which can lead to higher energy efficiency for the end products, higher
resource utilisation efficiency in manufacturing process, and less impacts
to the environment. For more details of our green innovations, please
refer to our website: www.kashui.com.

In the “Source” phase, we aim to use sustainable raw materials which
bring less harm to the environment and human throughout the product
life; therefore, we strictly manage the raw materials of our product in
compliance with international standards, including RoHS and REACH to
control the regulated hazardous substances and chemicals in production.
In addition, we also follow the FSC standard as requested from our client
to ensure the wooden material we use in our production are sourced
from sustainable origin.

In the “Manufacture” phase of the strategy, it is, in fact, the combined
result of how we manage the energy use, air emission, resource use
and waste generation during the operations in our production facilities,
as discussed in the latter sections. It is our goal to lower these indirect
impacts of the products coming from their manufacturing processes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions
We pursue to utilise energy efficiently and as the major means to reduce
our greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission.

In order to continuously improve our energy performance and lower our
carbon footprint, monitoring our energy usage is crucial. Our production
facilities have installed electricity meters in adequate locations to record
the electricity use, and hence understand the pattern and identify area
for improvement. Apart from monitoring, we always look for possible
energy-saving opportunities, especially on choosing energy-efficient
models of our machinery in production and facilities of our factories.

Apart from the energy saving in manufacturing process, we broaden this
idea to the offices and our staff. In the procurement of office equipment,
we always opt for the model with higher energy efficiency. Staff are
also given guidelines reminding them to turn off office equipment and
facilities when not in use.

Air Emission

Given the Group’s business portfolio, there are a number of air
pollutants inevitably produced in our manufacturing processes. We
have installed filtering devices for our major air pollutants, including
particulate matter (“PM”) and Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOCs"),
along our production chain to ensure the emission level complies with
the national regulations. Monitoring on the air quality is conducted by
third party regularly to ensure the level of pollutants does not exceed the
threshold limit.

Water Management

We endeavour to implement an effective water management through
efficient water use and water recycling. Our primary goal is to reduce the
water consumption by measuring our water use, inspecting water pipes
constantly to prevent any water leakage and promoting water-saving
behaviours to all staff. In addition, we put effort on water reclamation,
for example, a wastewater treatment system was installed at our factory
to process industrial wastewater which can then be used back into the
manufacturing process.
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Waste Management
We aim to reduce waste disposal with our three waste management
actions: reduce, recycle and dispose.

"Reduce” refers to reduction of the use of production raw material and
office material by increasing their efficiency, and is the most preferable
option in our waste management. We continuously improve on the
efficiency of production process in order to lower the demand on raw
materials and reduce failure products. We also educate our staff with the
7S Management to promote resource saving practice.

Separation of waste is important for proceeding into “Recycle” and
"Dispose”. We separate waste into three categories — valuable waste,
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste. This is a vital step in the
management to isolate hazardous waste which requires different
approaches to handle, and to scavenge the valuable waste for recycling.

"Recycle” refers to the recycling of valuable waste such as metals
from the leftover in production, which can be recycled back into
the production. “Dispose” refers to the disposal of waste to landfill.
Although this is the least preferable option in waste management, there
is some waste which unavoidably ends up with being disposed of. It is
our duty to ensure waste, hazardous waste in particular, is disposed of in
strict compliance with the national regulations.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZERERA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
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opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

2.

Fair value measurement of land

Allowance for inventories

Key Audit Matter
BREREE

Fair value measurement of land

ITHAFENGFE

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
2 MR E MR EMFESE) ~ 7R19 °

The Group measures its land at fair value
using a market approach. The valuation
is a level 3 fair value measurement as it
involves adjustments to market comparables
to reflect the particular characteristics of
the land, including location and plot sizes,
which are based on unobservable inputs that
are subjective. The value of land is sensitive
to these inputs. In order to determine an
appropriate fair value of the land, the Group
appointed an independent professional
valuer to perform the assessment.
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2. FERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEERTHRAEERZEANEELR

Our procedures in relation to the fair value measurement of land
included:

B L A FENEETNERFEHE

Evaluation of the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

B EEMNER BN RFEML

Assessing the valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and comparables;

FHEFTAEETEARIERRRATELBRERZERE

Checking the accuracy of the observable inputs;
R EABRELRRTER

Reviewing the appropriateness of those adjustments which
were based on unobservable inputs; and
WA ETABRSBMIERESERYE R

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in respect of the
fair value of land.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREREE

B 2 EAE R E (F)

BREZEE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRPEERTHRARERZENEETR

Allowance for inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 5(a) and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
246 W3R E M 5E5(a) 24 o

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group identifies obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items that are not probable for
use in future production or to be sold
out. It also identifies any other inventories
with net realisable value below cost.
The identification is based on forecasts
of customers’ future orders and future
market conditions, and involves subjective
estimation. The allowance has impact on
the carrying amount of inventories and the
profit or loss for the year.
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Our procedures in relation to the allowance for inventories included:

M FEREETHIEFEH

Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify obsolete or
slow-moving inventories;

EHFEREON  BRBRABHEEFE

Testing that the net realisable value of major items of
inventories did not exceed cost by reviewing sales after the
reporting date; and

HHMEARENEE A TEEEEANATERFER
BIRREAR : &

Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance for
inventories by reference to information about subsequent
sales or usage.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the 2016 annual
report of the Company other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2R E (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
27 March 2017
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRmK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

= — =

RNETZA=+—HIEFEE

2016 2015
—NE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue A 8 1,742,476 1,539,344
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,350,744) (1,247,363)
Gross profit EA 391,732 291,981
Other income H A 9 25,677 23,720
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEX (29,318) (28,211)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHEX (262,526) (262,990)
Other operating expenses and income E B RIKA 11 (3,157) (97,010)
Profit/(Loss) from operations LERA S (BE) 122,408 (72,510)
Finance costs BL& AR 12 (17,489) (8,792)
Gain on a bargain purchase EAE Al 38(b) - 9,546
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BRIEHESH B Ak 38(c) 4,635 =
Share of loss of associates AN /NI E1=PS 22 (3.400) =
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREBLAT=A (EiE) 106,154 (71,756)
Income tax expense FrsfiA X 13 (46,252) (5,410)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERERN(FE) 14 59,902 (77,166)
Attributable to: LATR A LA #ER ¢

Owners of the Company RARE=FEA 59,243 (63,489)
Non-controlling interests B g 659 (13,677)
59,902 (77,166)
HK Cents HK Cents
Bl JEA

Earnings/(Loss) per share BREAN(FR) 18
Basic HAK 6.63 (7.10)
Diluted e 6.55 (7.24)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SmNEMEERSER

NETZA=+—RBIEFEE

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

AN
=

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

2T —

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERBEAN(EE) 59,902 (77,166)
Other comprehensive income: H {2 H R &
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEF L Em o HE
profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land ErEEEH AR 45,146 50,907
Income tax on items that will not be TeENIBEEERCEE
reclassified to profit or loss ZPTIER (8,184) (10,688)
36,962 40,219
Items that may be reclassified to AE DB s HA -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign #EGINEEEL ZEN =5
operations (62,402) (45,664)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit ENOEEBR 2 RIENEEINED
or loss on deemed disposal of foreign ZIEN =%
operations (37) -
(62,439) (45,664)
Other comprehensive income for the FRARBAHEMEZEKE
year, net of tax (25,477) (5,445)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHE U FE4AEE 34,425 (82,611)
Attributable to: UTFALELES :
Owners of the Company RAAE=ERFAA 34,248 (68,924)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A 177 (13,687)
34,425 (82,611)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maE PR R

At 31 December 2016 R=ZZE—~"FE+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F BT F 5T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W R A 19 834,389 899,035
Intangible assets mEEE 21 718 718
Investments in associates REtE QAR 2B 22 1,678 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESREE 23 - -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant FEEE ¥ % - #28 %
and equipment BB B 6,635 7,066
Deferred tax assets R T E B 33 373 12,282
843,793 919,101
Current assets hEEE
Inventories e 24 196,162 173,924
Trade receivables B 5N GRIE 25 457,414 361,385
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE ek
other receivables H e R IE 66,069 64,526
Due from associates JiE LS Bt & R R FRIE 22 2,346 =
Current tax assets BNEAF TH & = 2,391 -
Restricted bank balances AR HIRITFRK 26 1,564 4,117
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & &R 26 296,008 260,529
1,021,954 864,481
Assets classified as held for sale PHABEHEEE 27 - 8,020
Total current assets HEREBEE 1,021,954 872,501
Current liabilities hEBEE
Trade payables B 5N RIE 28 313,088 225,906
Deposits received B ® 41,519 330
Other payables and accruals HEHMEMNRBERESER 28 87,364 87,681
Financial liabilities at fair value through RATFEFABZED
profit or loss SREE 29 - 52,434
Due to associates }‘Eﬁﬁ’y‘fa%’/} KA 22 636 -
Due to a related company FE T RAE D B I8 30 2,020 1,895
Bank borrowings RITIE R 31 458,708 422,536
Current tax liabilities BIEAFi B & & 27,537 24,585
930,872 815,367
Liabilities directly associated with assets EEDEABEHEEE
classified as held for sale EEGRzZEE 27 - 2,502
Total current liabilities BREBEE 930,872 817,869
Net current assets REBEEFRE 91,082 54,632
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBEE 934,875 973,733
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

wm
At 31 December 2016 R ==

RSO

(%)

—NE+=ZHA=+—8&

2016 2015
—E—RE — il &=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F BT F 5T
Non-current liabilities FEnBEME
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATEFAEBRERES
profit or loss =R 29 - 25,934
Bank borrowings RITER 37 107,244 181,051
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & 33 56,124 35,248
163,368 242,233
Net assets BEEFE 771,507 731,500
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A% 2 34 89,376 89,376
Reserves e 36 673,803 639,555
Equity attributable to owners of the AR EEEEAELER
Company 763,179 728,931
Non-controlling interests FEERER 8,328 2,569
TOTAL EQUITY A 771,507 731,500

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Lee Yuen Fat
TRB
Director

B

HATEERRES

Wong Cheong Yiu

=82
Director

B=
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEEZERER AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAERBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~NF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREEA ARG RS
Foreign
currency Land Non-
Share Share  Retained Capital ~ Merger translation Share option Statutory revaluation controlling Total

capital  premium  earnings  reserve  reserve  feserve  reserve  feserve reserve Total interests equity
B RGEE RERF EREE  AHEE  ENBE BRERF LERE LHEMRE By FEREE  BEAR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

e e

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1f%
-f-H 89,376 204,650 353,370 8,036 (9,931) 60,115 624 17123 104,025 817,988 31,555 849,543

Total comprehensive income A2 ENA
for the year - - (63,489) - - (45,654) - - 40,219 (68,924) (13,687) (82,611)

Adjustment of non-controlling 3 — 5 &K B
interest arising from further A &R IEE RIS
acquisiion of subsiaries’ R R

equity - - - (5.921) - - - - - (5921) (15,322) (21,43)
Forfeture of share options 342 B R - - 675 - - = (675) = = = s =
Recognition of share-based ~ EFALARIELE

payments LB - - - - - - 88 - - 88 3 M
Dividends peid BAkE - - (1430 - - - - - - (1430 - (14300
Changes in equity for the year £ REZEE) - - g () - (#5659) (587) - 029 (89,057)  (28986)  (118,043)

At 31 December 2065 and - A=F-TETZR

1 January 2016 =t-AR-%
-nE-A-A 89,376 204,650 276,256 2,115 (9,931) 14,461 31 1723 144,244 728,931 2,569 731,500
Total comprehensive income £RE AU E
for the year - - 59,243 - - (61,957) - - 36,962 34,248 177 34425
Effect of deemed disposal of #{EHEHBAR
subsidiares i - - 659 6386 - - ) - - SR 3

Adjustment of non-controlling B 2 A Rk {7
interest arising from XHFAREES
theisue of shares ofa ~ FFIERER R
subsidiary for the settlement

of contingent consideration - - - - - - - - - - 5,966 5,966
Transfer to statutory resenve BB AT Gl - - (1749 - - - - 17429 - - - -
Capita contrbution from R EFE R iR 2

non-controlling interests ~~ EARZA - - - - - - - - - - 1971 1971
Changes in equity for the year £ RIEZEE) - - 3525 6,586 - (61,957) @) 1749 3692 3428 5759 40,007
At 31 December 2016 R-E-~E+-A

=t-A 89,376 204,650 311,511 8,701 (9.931)  (47,49%) 10 25,152 181,206 763,179 8,328 171,507
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited E=IxEIRZERERL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

IIVT\
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% ==

IE:@/)ILE%‘:Z

=NEEF= = =B % E

2016
—EB—KF
HK$'000
FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING R XKFEBRLSFH
ACTIVITIES 38(a) 82,990 108,667
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B ETEZRERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RITE TR 194 20,039
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B 2 75 38(b) - (6,228)
Settlement of cash component of contingent {EESKARKEZ
consideration bR ai) 38(b) (1,200) -
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELEM B AR 38(c) (1,630) -
Deposit received from a potential investor of a B WM E A 72 &
subsidiary KREEZE® - 1,938
Deposit received for the disposal of a subsidiary 2 g HEHE R T 2 5] & 41(d) 40,000 -
Interest received B U F B 868 2,194
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and H! & ¥ « j# 22 [ 3% &
equipment 255 440
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  HRELFK (33,461) (100,612)
Deposit paid for the acquisition of property, — FEfT#7% - 22 K&
plant and equipment ZEl & (2,641) (3,421)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZHFRE ()2
investing activities REeFE 2,385 (85,650)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFE2RESRE
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W B FE 1R AR R 2 - (21,243)
Capital contribution from non-controlling REEERER 2
interest ﬁﬁ%ﬁ)\ 1,971 -
Dividends paid BEAIRE - (14,300)
Repayment to a director ﬁ%%fé Z%’Uﬁ - (1,860)
Net short term bank loans raised/(repaid) i (Bi8) mHRTT
BHORE 73,741 (125,456)
Advance to associates [k & A R B 2 FRIE (1,788) -
Repayment of long term bank loans EERARITER (123,714) (139,975)
Long term bank loans raised iR ERITER 13,369 315,922
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEEFT () B2
financing activities REeFE (36,421) 13,088
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRZEERREER
EQUIVALENTS B 48,954 36,105
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BHRER
AT 1 JANUARY ZRELIER 263,130 237,019
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHTE (16,076) (9,994)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 RT+ZA=+—HHRER
DECEMBER ERBELEHR 296,008 263,130
Bank and cash balances included in assets held D18 A EHEELE 2
for sale HekEFERREEE 27 - (2,601)
296,008 260,529
Analysis of CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B RERRESER 547
Bank and cash balances RIT NI ek 26 296,008 260,529
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —E— ~"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is Room A, 29/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2016, Precisefull Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen
Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE PR R (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Of these, the
following new or revised HKFRSs are relevant to the
Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify, rather than
significantly change, existing HKAS 1 requirements. The
amendments clarify various presentation issues relating to:

° Assessment of materiality versus minimum
disclosure requirements of a standard.

o Disaggregation of specific line items in the
statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the statement of
financial position. There is also new guidance on
the use of subtotals.

3. BRMMITREEIETREMBER
HEA

(a)

BRI REETERYE
HEER

BRI AGERME THA]
RBETOTEYHRELEL
YR=ZF—RF—A—Hzkz®’
WFEREBERER - B - ATH
I RBERTNBR BV RS LR
HAEEER:

EEREHEREIRHBRRET
(1ER]) - WEEEM
HEGERE VR ZERRB
RITMBAGERE IR 2R
Ko MARZER 2 BENRE -
ZIEFTBEBIATHENSEZS)
=18

. EZUMFGREEZ R
EWEENR -

. RiEsER - it 2HE KR
REBBARRNR PO E
BEZAD - AREAN
FHEUFTIES! -

. Confirmation that the notes do not need to be . TR ET T ZARFEIR
presented in a particular order. FF&RR e

o Presentation of other comprehensive income items o RiESREBERAI REE
arising from equity-accounted associates and joint P ERE A2 E W =IE B
ventures. 225

The amendments as mentioned above have no material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

bt 2 BT HARBBR B KA
HIRE K E BN 2T EEME
BRI BERATE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2016. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative

1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income 1 January 2017
Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax

assets for unrealised losses

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 1 January 2018

with Customers

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be
identified in due course.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

B B 75 3R B R

E_E—RF+_A=1+—HBIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the
classification of financial assets which is based on cash
flow characteristics and the business model in which
the asset is held. A debt instrument that is held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding is measured at amortised
cost. A debt instrument that is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting the
contractual cash flows and selling the instruments and
that has contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Equity instruments are
generally measured at fair value through profit or loss.
However, an entity may make an irrevocable election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities are carried forward largely
unchanged from HKAS 39 except that when the fair
value option is applied changes in fair value attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognised in other
comprehensive income unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

(%)

R REBITEEMBER
HEA (&)

(b)

© 58 i {8 1 R A Rz #FT )
RIETEBUBREER
(&)
ERMBRELAFEIREHTR
ZERIMARF B G ERIFE3955
CEMTE: BRAKE -

U ER S S REED ESI AT
/Z ’ gﬁéiﬁﬁ/mi%‘%ﬁ&?—rﬁﬁ
ENEBRNET - RAKERE
WEESRBBENZEBRA D
BZEBRIE REFMAESX
NEAERHAEERENEZE
WHReRZEBIER  HiR#EHE
ARG E o RIARBWERAE HER
eRkEETARSBNZ EBIE
AFREZEBIA  UEHEER
BEAXNEAERAREERSE
MEBEZEHWHRERZEBILE
BARFEF AR 2 E K EFT
E-FAHMBEBIAZRBESR
RATHEGFE - %ﬁlﬂ*%ﬁ
BEBEDBAFETE - AW

%T&M%IﬂgﬁﬁﬁTTﬁ
EEEE  EAFEFEEFEZR
AT ENUAFEFAEAMEEK

S| =
2.

FHASBELGESRABZER
RBUAE A E B Gt ERI 55395k -
WESAEE  ERERRAF
BEitE RBESEERRESHM
Sz ATFEEZSHIINEMER
W R FRIFLBREELS
AHEREC
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/-_l_\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

B AR M EE (38)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment
model to replace the incurred-loss impairment model in
HKAS 39. It is no longer necessary for a credit event or
impairment trigger to have occurred before impairment
losses are recognised. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, an entity will generally recognise 12-month
expected credit losses. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity
will recognise lifetime expected credit losses. The standard
includes a simplified approach for trade receivables to
always recognise the lifetime expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried
forward largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting
more closely with risk management and establish a more
principle based approach.

The Group’s financial assets that are currently classified as
available-for-sale include certain unlisted equity securities.
The unlisted equity securities are currently measured
at cost less impairment with any impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss. As the investee company has
no operation and full impairment has been made against
the carrying amount, the revised HKFRS 9 will have no
impact on the consolidated financial statements in this
aspect.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS
9 may result in the earlier recognition of impairment
losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other financial
assets. The Group is unable to quantity the impact until a
more detailed assessment is completed.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity
recognises revenue to depict the transfer of goods and
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to become
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15
on the consolidated financial statements but is unable
to estimate the impact of the new standard on the
consolidated financial statements until a detailed analysis
is completed.

E-T—ANE+-A=+—RHILEE

R REBITEEMBER

HEA (&)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing leases.

The Group's leases of offices, factories, warehouse, staff
quarters and office equipment are currently classified
as operating leases and the lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and measure
a liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the
lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset
will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s assets
and liabilities will increase and the timing of expense
recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 39, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for its staff quarters, factory, office premises, office
equipment, warehouse amounted to HK$46,512,000 as
at 31 December 2016. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed assessment in order to determine the
new assets and liabilities arising from these operating
leases commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. leasehold land and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners

of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/-_l_\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B EZ=Z

4.
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B AR M EE (38)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated

less accumulated impairment losses.

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill) and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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For the year ended 31
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December 2016 & - =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)
Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interests in the associates.

Unrealised losses are also

eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(d) Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Annual Report 2016 =%

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land
(classified as finance leases), held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below), are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from those that would be determined using fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
such land is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in land revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, held in the land revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of revalued land is recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
land, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
land revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained
earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is

calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or

revalued amounts less their residual values over the

estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease

Leasehold land over the unexpired term of
lease

shorter of 3 years and the
unexpired term of lease

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures 3 to 5 years
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Leases
The Group as lessee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

(g) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(h) Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives of 7 years.

(i) Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club

membership has suffered an impairment loss.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B EZ=Z

4.
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B AR M EE (38)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the financial assets within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss,
and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification

loans

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are either financial assets classified as held
for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of these financial assets are recognised in
profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term receivables
where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash are
classified in this category.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are not classified
as loans and receivables or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired,
at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less impairment losses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(Continued)

(ii) Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair value and are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the guarantee contracts.

(iii) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(iv)  Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and
trading of raw materials are recognised on the transfer
of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31

B B 75 R 3R B 5

December 2016 BHE —_ZT—"F+_A=1+—HIt&FE

(%)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Annual Report 2016 —F—

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group

to the funds.

basic salaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain employees.
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-

Equity-settled share-based

based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

until

intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

Annual Report 2016 —F—

B AR M EE (38)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an
expense through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

AR

4,

FTESEECR (F)

(w)

FERMEERME

FEMEELREERSRE B
BEABERETSR  HEEDR
8 BB B A B R AR
EE A E AT E S5 B
MEEDREMRSEINER - AR

BEEBRSHRDEE - AT iKE

RN ERNEEETE  EME
EXBELARBIBINEME

EXEEMAGZRSRA - BIA]
WEEHRAEEMBZRSES
BAIEE - AR E S EAIERE
EXREELEM ZEREMERR
HEHRAFEBREEKRAMER 2R
= e

EREEREE ReEEBM
B ARRREREZRE - RE
ERREEREHEREE RE
EEBM(BEFERE) 2FEER
B BATRL IR K E -

BeEABNZ REBEALA
RIEEEMEE  RAERBESE
EBMEMEEZMRLHS
2 o B2 (AT Z B E B Al Y el
CHEERTABE  EERER
B EMEEEENREBSEE
FIRR - Bl EEEMEEEEM
HINEIE ©



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at fair value
through profit or loss) are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future
cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,

must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B EZ=Z

4.
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B AR M EE (38)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

()

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements.
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial

Events after

statements when material.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Allowance for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items that are no longer suitable for use in production
at the end of each reporting period. The directors
estimate the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest selling prices and costs of
completion and selling expenses estimated at current
operation conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance/
write-back in the period in which such estimates have
been changed.

The allowance on inventories as at 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$22,774,000 (2015: HK$19,599,000).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$834,389,000
(2015: HK$899,035,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

The allowance on trade receivables as at 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$Nil (2015: HK$53,000).
No allowance was made on other receivables as at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, HK$46,252,000 (2015:
HK$5,410,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss
based on the estimated profit from operations.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes (Continued)

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relates to deductible temporary differences and tax losses,
depends on whether it is probable that future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
against which deferred tax assets can be utilised. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits or taxable
temporary differences generated are less than expected,
a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal takes place. The directors considered that, based
on the profit forecast of the group companies with tax
losses, it is probable that the tax losses can be utilised in
the foreseeable future. The profit forecast required the
use of judgement and estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets with respect
to tax losses as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$1,032,000 (2015: HK$Nil).

Fair value of leasehold land

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of the leasehold land.
In determining the fair value, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold land as at 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$244,474,000 (2015:
HK$215,900,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate

risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in HK$, United States dollars
("USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
other foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened 0.5 per cent
(2015: 0.5 per cent) against USD with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,350,000 higher
(2015: consolidated loss after tax HK$717,000 lower),
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain
on trade receivables and bank balances denominated
in USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange loss
on trade and other payables and bank borrowings
denominated in USD (2015: foreign exchange gain on
trade receivables and bank balances denominated in USD,
but partly offset by the foreign exchange loss on trade
payables and bank borrowings denominated in USD).
If HK$ had strengthened 0.5 per cent (2015: 0.5 per
cent) against USD with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,350,000 lower (2015: consolidated
loss after tax HK$717,000 higher), arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss on trade receivables
and bank balances denominated in USD, but partly offset
by the foreign exchange gain on trade and other payables
and bank borrowings denominated in USD (2015: foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank balances
denominated in USD, but partly offset by the foreign
exchange gain on trade payables and bank borrowings
denominated in USD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =T — S"F+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened 5 per cent
(2015: 5 per cent) against RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,027,000 lower
(2015: consolidated loss after tax HK$5,021,000 lower),
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on
trade receivables and bank balances denominated in HK$
held by the subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange gain on other receivables
and bank balances denominated in RMB held by the Hong
Kong subsidiaries (2015: foreign exchange gain on other
receivables and bank balances denominated in RMB held
by Hong Kong subsidiaries, and the foreign exchange
gain on amounts due to group companies denominated
in HK$ incurred by the subsidiaries operating in the
PRC). If HK$ had strengthened 5 per cent (2015: 5 per
cent) against RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,027,000 higher (2015: consolidated
loss after tax HK$5,021,000 higher), arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on trade receivables
and bank balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly offset by
the foreign exchange loss on other receivables and bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the Hong Kong
subsidiaries (2015: the foreign exchange loss on other
receivables and bank balances denominated in RMB held
by Hong Kong subsidiaries, and the foreign exchange loss
on amounts due to group companies denominated in HK$
held by the subsidiaries operating in the PRC).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—FL— S"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened 5 per cent
(2015: 5 per cent) against USD with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$265,000 lower (2015:
consolidated loss after tax HK$4,248,000 lower), arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on trade
payables of the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD
(2015: foreign exchange gain on trade receivables of
the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD). If RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent (2015: 5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$265,000 higher (2015: consolidated loss after tax
HK$4,248,000 higher), arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange gain on trade payables of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD (2015: foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables of the PRC subsidiaries

denominated in USD).

At 31 December 2015, if RMB had weakened 5 per
cent against USD with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$49,128,000 higher, arising mainly
as a result of the loss on the USD to RMB forward
contract included in the financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. At 31 December 2015, if RMB
had strengthened 5 per cent against USD with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$49,128,000
lower, arising mainly as a result of the gain on the USD to
RMB forward contract included in the financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & ==

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The percentage of trade receivables due from the Group’s
largest customer and due from the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate to the Group's total trade

receivables are as follows:

nV_.I_\

B B 7 AR Y 5

(%)

=NEEF= A = =B % E

6. MBEREE(H)

(b)

EERRE

AEBRAEFPEAEELAT
FrE 5 RUREREAREE
BIREFIBRENBEDLLNT

e A B
JE UK S ]

Due from the Group’s largest customer
Due from the Group’s five largest customers

RAR P HR
AREF A

19 14
67 57

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
balance and bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are well-recognised banks in Hong Kong
and the PRC and licensed banks in the United States of
America (the “USA").

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
its compliance with lending covenants
and its relationship with its bankers to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

requirements,

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s bank borrowings and other financial liabilities,
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates currently at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to

pay.

(c)

REBFTABE - AERRAE
ERBRENEFPHEEM -

MRZXSHEF TGN ER RS
BEZRRMRITHNENRE R
B ([XE ) MFFRT  REE
RIRTER - ARGRITERK
RITERSEHRNEERARER -

AEBZBRAEHERHR
EeRE HETHERRHERE
BRTT 2R AEREERR
DAEI‘I%E%@&FEiZiEE&ﬁ
BrReRERAIBRERA
IE EHEURES 2O ARREE °

TRINTEATRBESRE (B
FRE QM ES (AT E) RR
HEHMRNBRITAEAENTE S
B)RASEAREEARBRNRT
HEAZ2 M ASERHRE R
RITEREEMESRE R/
SRR -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.r\ 7.|- i£ #& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. WMBERERE(HE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () H"BESER (E)
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment Bfgms R RITAIZEBNE
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s TENRERERGEINERE
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow R BEDMIZAI AR R &
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be FHE (B ERABRITEHE
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their 1N ERAFEERER) 2
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate JREmE EfhemadEans
effect. The maturity analysis for other financial liabilities is EAH » AT RiRTE EE K AR S

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

2016
ZE-AF
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

HBADH-RFRRESRM

More than Total
More than 1 2 years but undiscounted

Within year but less  lessthan5  More than cash

On demand 1year than 2 years years 5 years outflows
—FHE [E3 N AFRRE

RER —-£r  BORWE EIREE RENE itk X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET &7 TE7 FET FET FEx

Trade payables 2 S ENFE 98,795 214,293 - - - 313,088
Other payablesand A fiER 518 &
accruals EstE A 3 79,576 - - - 79,579
Due to associates AL AN 636 - - - - 636
Due to a related Egﬁfaﬁ’&ﬂmlﬁ
company 2,020 - - - - 2,020
Bank borrowings RITEER 380,680 83,747 58,884 53,114 - 576,425
482,134 377,616 58,884 53,114 - 971,748
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- %% ')F& %:Z Bﬁ- (IIE )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T — A"F+-A=1+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MRS EE (E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (0 RBELRMR (E)

2015
“Z-1%
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

HHEL-RIA AR SR

More than 1 More than 2 Total
year but less  years but less More than  undiscounted
On demand Within 1year  than 2 years  than 5 years 5 years cash outflows
—FNE WELAE RTEE S
RER —ER  EBLRWE  ELRLF AENE it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAET FET FHET FEL
Trade payables ERES0E 63,010 163,058 - - - 226,068
Other payablesand A tiER 518 &
accruals fEstE R 24 80,158 - - - 80,182
Financial liabilities at ~ ZATFEFABRE
fair value through EREREE
profit or loss - 52,434 26,747 - - 79,181
Due to a related [ERBEARNE
company 1,895 - - - - 1,895
Bank borrowings RITIER 404,536 18,161 76,042 118,026 - 616,765
469,465 313,811 102,789 118,026 - 1,004,091

TRERRIEH AR EREE K
HEVERITIE IR E R B = 851 #)
HEERBBMOIEB SN - %
SERBREANNXFENF
ERE-- At ZF2ERLEX
PREEIB B S [ 2Rk KA
HEARBENSERS -

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in
the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis

contained above.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. KR EE (E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (0 RBELREM(E)

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments

HAR M -BRREERMNERERRERINRTEE

116

(d)

More than 1 More than 2 Total
Ondemand or  year butless  years but less More than  undiscounted
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years 5years cash outflows
RERY —EH0E MENE AFRRE
—£R BLRME BOIREE RENLE mLAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET FET
31 December 2016 ZE-RE
+-A=1+-H
Bank borrowings RITIEH 338,980 19,698 - 385,168
31 December 2015 —T-1%
t=A=t-A
Bank borrowings BRITIER 336,011 45,150 = 429,513
Interest rate risk (d) FIEEp

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from
its bank deposits, short term and long term borrowings.
These deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates at that date had
been 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis points) lower with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been approximately HK$320,000
higher (2015: consolidated loss after tax HK$370,000
lower), arising mainly as a result of lower interest expenses
on bank borrowings but partly offset by lower interest
income on bank balances. If interest rates had been 100
basis points (2015: 100 basis points) higher, with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$3,201,000
lower (2015: consolidated loss after tax HK$3,700,000
higher), arising mainly as a result of higher interest
expenses on bank borrowings but partly offset by higher
interest income on bank balances.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
n‘l_.]_\ 7.|- iﬂ #E %‘:Z M—J (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T — A"F+-A=1+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. WMBEMRER (&)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) H=ZT—XRHE+=H=+-—H
December 2016 SRIAZSE
2016 2015
TR
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Financial assets: %EQEE g
Loans and receivables (including cash and KK FEWGRIE (B 1E
cash equivalents) fﬁ@&%ﬂfﬁﬁ EAR) 772,466 677,284
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKATEZ
el =R 961,275 911,732
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEATFEFABREED
profit or loss: TRAE:
Held for trading FEEE - 78,368
(f)  Fair values (f) 2A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets rEEzeMEERSRBER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated REMBRRER R 2 EEER
statement of financial position approximate their GHEERTBZAFE-

respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. NV EFE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ANEEEMSLEE ZHRET = H BT
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between EFR P EHEEERKENERAE
market participants at the measurement date. The following HEAEER - TXHRBEAATES
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy BAENATE AEstERAFTENG
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation BREZ2EB LS BR=ERG

techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F1E: AEEURFEEHESZ

for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset and
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

HREERBERERTS
2B (REHAE) -
F—ERMBEENRENN - &
ERABEEEIRAEBERSG
Hz 28

BERBETAEEZ2H -

FEENBRRSEREBEESHHE(LA
MR E RN T = ERNEAREH

P
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited s

BREZRARA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB HmRMEE (B

n‘/-ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% ==

&)

—RETZA=+—BILLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. NFEFTE (&)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) 2FESHEEHE:
Fair value measurement using: Total
ATEFTERA : B
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
£1/E £2/E F3E —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMATLETE:
measurements:
Leasehold land HE L
Commercial - Hong Kong R % — &8 - - 37,860 37,860
Commercial — the PRC - - - 206,772 206,772
Total a5 - - 244,632 244,632
Fair value measurement using: Total
ANFEFEHA FEE
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
N ZE2[E E3[E —RfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REEATLETE:
measurements:
Leasehold land AELH
Commercial - Hong Kong B ¥ —&%& - - 36,000 36,000
Commercial — the PRC FE—H - - 179,900 179,900
Total &5t = = 215,900 215,900
Recurring fair value REMDNPETE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities EA- 3R
Financial liabilities at fair & A FEF ABIRE
value through ol S=R
profit or loss
Contingent consideration &1 sk A &
payable - - 7,166 7,166
Derivatives — currency PTETITE—REN
forward contracts b & 49 - 71,121 - 71,121
Derivatives — interest rate  $74 T A — Fl| &
swap = Hf - 81 = 81
- 71,202 7,166 78,368
Annual Report 2016 == —/<FF R



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- %% ')F& %:Z Bﬁ- (II‘E )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i E —T— A F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured (b) BEBEE=EBLAFEHENE
at fair value based on level 3: B (af) 8k :
Properties
held for
own use Continent
— Leasehold consideration 2016
land [EVEL] Total
HiEBRYE-
HELH EAIARE met
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At beginning of year F1 215,900 (7.166) 208,734
Settlements (=N} - 7,166 7,166

Recognised in profit or loss: A BzEH 1R
Depreciation charge for the ilﬂqﬁ(\ﬁﬁ%ﬁkﬁ)}

year recognised in cost — M RATE R X
of sales and general and BRZIMERX
administrative expenses (5,862) - (5,862)
Recognised in other RE M2 E U R
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences REBINEBEEZ
on translating foreign ME N Z=R
operations (10,710) - (10,710)
Surplus on revaluation of HE T MEEER
leasehold land 2 BER 45,146 - 45,146
At end of year FR 244,474 - 244,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.l_\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬂ' (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. NFEFTE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured (b) WBEBEE=ZEAFTENENE
at fair value based on level 3: (Continued) B () ¥ : (&)
Properties held Continent
for own use — consideration 2015
Leasehold land payable Total
FHEERME—
HE T ERNIARE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At beginning of year F 1) 175,400 - 175,400
Additions NE - (6,750) (6,750)

Recognised in profit or loss:  RIBZHFER :
Depreciation charge for the ~ FRAREEKRA K

year recognised in cost — B RITEAS S
of sales and general and HRZITERL
administrative expenses (4,349) = (4,349)
Loss on financial liabilities at 7 E b 48 59 & K U A
fair value through profit PR Z IR A FEE
or loss recognised in other AERENER AR
operating expenses and E1a
income - (416) (416)
Recognised in other REMEEKESFHHER
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences BMEBINEBEEZ
on translating foreign N ZER
operations (6,058) - (6,058)
Surplus on revaluation of HE T EBEER
leasehold land 2 Bk 50,907 - 50,907
At end of year FR 215,900 (7,166) 208,734
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZixEEIZERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/-_I_\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured
at fair value based on level 3: (Continued)
The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in surplus on
revaluation of leasehold land and exchange differences
on translating foreign operations in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are
presented in cost of sales and general and administrative
expenses (2015: cost of sales, general and administrative
expenses, and other operating expenses and income) in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All the gains or losses recognised in profit or loss for
the year were attributable the unrealised gain and loss
of the leasehold land (2015: the leasehold land and the
contingent consideration payable) held at the end of
reporting period.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2016:

The Group’s financial controller (2015: chief financial
officer) is responsible for the fair value measurements
of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The
financial controller (2015: chief financial officer) reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the financial controller (2015:
chief financial officer) and the Board of Directors at least
twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly adjusted accommodation value
of the PRC and Hong Kong leasehold land per square
metre estimated based on recent market transactions.

B B 75 3R B R

E_E—RF+_A=1+—HBIEFE

(%)

7. 2AVEEE)

(b)

(c)

REF=-"EAFVEFTENE
E/(BE HER: (8)
PEL At 2 T W AP B AR 2 A M R
FEBEIRNGRBEaEMERE
WamkP o HETMEESERZ
BBRRBEBIRBEEZER
ZRZT -

RIBE AR 2 AR R LR

\

NEEBRAERT ZHEREIAR
—RETBRAX (ZT—AF: #
ERA - —RETHRAXARE

i & B < RIA) 271 -

FTA R B AR WS B E
i’]EEEA#I?ziﬁéﬁEIEFﬁITZTE i

—RF:HETHRERMNSK
%IJQIE)EWIEELQIIIZ@&IEEIE%
o

R=B—AE+=A=+-
FI 7 88 1 58 R 4 1 R
R AT R AR 018
BERSBNBE :
AREMHBGRE(CT—RF:
BEREUBRAE) ARRMBRS
ETHENEERABNAYE
AR (BREEIEAFEFE)
MERE(CT AT - aFH
BRE)IHEQAFEAEER
MEFSER MHERE(ZF
—hE ERMBAE) REEE
FEELMRR A w i EREF
RBERER -

BE=EAFEHEME - A%
B RERAGRTEEARE
B B EEROIBHETR -

E=BATENEBFATIERT
BESHT EOERERENHT
B35 it AR EBAE Lt
1B B ST 5 K B E AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.l_\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬂ' (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (c) R=B—XRE+=ZHA=+-—
Group and valuation techniques and inputs BAKEEMRANGERR
used in fair value measurements at 31 EATEFEMFANMGE
December 2016: (Continued) FERSENEE : (&)
Level 2 fair value measurements FE_EBATEFE

Fair value
AFE
Liabilities Liabilities
=R BE

2016 2015

—R"E —T—AF

Description Valuation technique HK$°000 HK$'000
HE fhE R % 2 FET TET

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Derivatives
— currency forward Marking-to-market (i) Contractual amount
contracts approach and (i) Risk-free rate
discounted cash flow (iii) Expected tenor - 71,121
method (iv) Contractual exchange
rate

(v) Settlement date market
forward exchange rate

BAFERARER mEFHEERFTR iy BHER

ZEmAasE W& RE (i) £ A = @
PTETA (iii) TBEFF 5
— R HISNE A 4 (iv) B 4 [E=R

(v HEHHSERESX

— interest rate swap Marking-to-market (i) Notional amount - 81
approach and (i) Fixed rate
discounted cash (iii) Counterparty floating
flow method rate

(iv) Effective date and
termination date

— == mEFHEERFTR (i) BEEHE
BEmxA (i) B E =R

(iii) {77 F B X
(iv) B E B R 4% 1E A HR
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited E=IxEIRZERERL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & ==

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2016: (Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements

Description

Valuation technique

2R fbER%

Unobservable inputs

TUBENSE

Land use rights in Egongling ~ Direct comparison Adjusted accommodation value

Village, Pinghu Town, approach per square metre taking into
Shenzhen City, the PRC B &% account the differences from
hERIH T HEE R ST the comparables with respect
THhRRE to location, quantum, usage
and time
BERALRL S B
RS RERZENET A RER
EEAEHR
Land use rights in Phoenix ~ Direct comparison Adjusted accommodation value
Avenue, Pinghu Town, approach per square metre taking into
Shenzhen City, the PRC B &K account the differences from
RERmTHARRAES the comparables with respect
THERE o location, quantum, facilities,
and tenure
BEETLELM S BE
FERERERERNGT AR
EREEMER
Land use rights in Western  Direct comparison Adjusted accommodation value
District of Daya Bay, approach per square metre taking into
Huizhou City, the PRC R & account the differences from

hEEMAEERES
THERE

the comparables with respect
to location, quantum, and
tenure

EEEALEN G BER
[EREREENGTHREER
BEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

B W HmaR MR ()

=NEEF= A = =B % E

an\

7. 2AVEEE)

() R=TB-—RF+=ZA=+-—
AAKEFfEANGERSF
RAFEFAERRANMGE
FERSENERE (&)
FE=EAFEHE

Fair value

A¥E
value for increase 2016 2015
of inputs ZE-RNE  —B-RE
SHEMY HK$'000 HK$'000
ATENYE ThR T

Effect on fair

RMB1,185/square metre - Increase 11,200 8,700
RMB1,494/square metre £ 11
(2015: RMB731/square
metre - RMB1,461/square
metre)

FEHRARE1185LEE
TARARE 44T (ZF
—hF BYIRARET
TEGTHRARE1 461
)

RMB1,753/square metre - Increase 12,912 57,000
RMB1,844/square metre 1
(2015: RMB731/square
metre - RMB1,461/
square metre)

BYRRARKI T3 LES
TARARE 87 (2%
—0% FTARARKTI
TEBTARARE 461
)

RMB221/square Increase 116,700
metre - RMBS03/square 211
metre (2015: RMB250/
square metre - RMB300/
square metre)

FEARARERITZET
FARAREST(ZE-5
£ BTARARBL0T
EBTARARBI00T)

107,900
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZIEFRERERLD A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. RAYVEEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (c) R=B—XRE+=ZHA=+-—
Group and valuation techniques and inputs BEASERRANGEERR
used in fair value measurements at 31 RAFEEREANMGE
December 2016: (Continued) FERSENEE - (&)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) FE=BATEFE (&)

Fair value
Effect on fair AYE
value for increase 2016 2015
of inputs ZE-xE  _E-1F
Description Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs Range S8EN% HKS" 000 HK$' 000
i) hERE FTERNSY L ATENYE TR T
Land use rights in Wuhu City, Direct comparison Adjusted accommodation value ~ RMB132/square metre - Increase 5,900 6,300
Anhui Province, the PRC ~ approach per square metre taking into RMB173/square metre 210
HERHARRTY BRLAE account the differences from (2015 RMB157/square
THERE the comparables with respect ~ metre - RMB158/square
to location, quantum, and metre
tenure SEARAREINRE

BERUL BRI NS ARR  BTARARBIBI
FREFZRNETIREAE  (CE-LF:8YHRAR

BEER BT EB YK
ARH#1587T)
Land use rights in Kowloon  Direct comparison Adjusted accommodation value  HK$9,224/square metre - Increase 37,860 36,000
Bay, Hong Kong approach per square metre taking into HK$15,365/square metre 3210
BENEEMIHERE ERLEE account the differences from ~ (2015: HK$9,005/square

the comparables with respect metre - HK$12,801/square

to location, quantum, time and ~ metre)

view BEHK945TERTH
mapB T oes AR BE  R153658L(ZF -1

REBEENBT A AEARE £ BTAKI00SELER

mE% THR12,801%7)
Contingent consideration ~ Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 22.75% Decrease - (7,166)
payable method HRE A
ERNAARE EHRRERE Approximately
Expected profit after tax derived ~ HK$4,500,000 to Increase

from the new business acquired ~ HK$4,900,000 for each  3£11
BRENFBERZBIRTE  year

gl 154,500,000
24,900,000

The fair value of leasehold land held for own use located RPEEESFEIEERANHEE L
in the PRC and Hong Kong is determined using direct WATFEDNEAEELEAEE - &
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of EREQ L RAE T T EEENEE
comparable leasehold land on an accommodation value FKIEE B - IR AE@EAES - e
per metre basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount S S A A g Ny
specific to the quality of the Group’s leasehold land %i”‘fﬁ%;ggiﬁflﬁi}/ﬁggyj
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for higher G R EL ﬁﬂffﬁ'ﬁ’ﬁ
quality land will result in a higher fair value measurement. B UAELABRSNAFEFEHNE-
During the two years, there were no changes in the KR EEE @ RS GE A EE
valuation techniques used. & -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mm

B W HmaR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i E —T— A F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and manufacture
of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting and plastic
injection products and components.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, net of returns and allowances to customers during
the year.

HEEM

Sales of goods

L ON
AEBETENELERKEN SRR
AeBE BRILBERMTEM -

BWAERFAFEERT RS KRR ER
REFR(EMBEEERGTEL O
m) -

2016 2015
—NEF —E—hF

HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET

1,742,476 1,539,344

OTHER INCOME

Hitb e A

2016 2015

ZE-KF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Exchange difference VEH Z=% 9,095 8,842
Interest income on bank deposits RATIF BB WA 868 2,194
Rental income A 789 401
Reimbursement from customers = E 3R E 8,023 7,251
Sales of scrap materials BE R & 615 2,239
Government grants B # BY & 3,967 1,401
Others H At 2,320 1,392
25,677 23,720

Government grants mainly comprised unconditional support for
subsiding the Group's research and development.

BR#EDE T EBREREXEASHE
ZHtE 2 &R o
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/-_l_\

B AR M EE (38)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE —ZE— ~"F+_-_A=+—HILFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is currently
categorised into five (2015: five) operating divisions — zinc,
magnesium and aluminum alloy die casting, plastic injection
products and components and lighting products. These divisions
are the basis of the Group’s five reportable segments. The
Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and different cost
measurement.

Segment profits or losses do not include interest income,
corporate income, gain or loss from derivative instruments, gain
on deemed disposal of subsidiaries, share of loss of associates,
gain on a bargain purchase, corporate expenses, finance costs
and income tax expense.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/NFF R

10.

RTEER AEERKEHKD /DHE
EENMH(CT—HF L) &
MR BHE  BRITVERMETIMS
LA K2 SR BR 2 Eii%ﬁ?ﬂx%$ﬁ@%$ﬁ
FEDEERNELE REB 2

%Bﬁ%mf,\TﬁéuuZE@mE%iﬁ%iu°
HREBEHKTE TR LA TRK
A 8AA  MRENIBHBILERE -

7 & A 2K BB A aﬁﬂgﬂﬁlk hE
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10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about reportable segment profit or

loss:

Year ended 31 December BE=ZF— A&

Zinc alloy
die casting

BHEEER
HK$°000

FET

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

nVT\
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & ==

Magnesium
alloy die
casting
EAEEBE
HK$'000
FET

10. DIER(E)
ER/BEANIBEB2ERNOT :

Aluminium
alloy die
casting
HELBE
HK$000
FET

injection

ERxE

Plastic Lighting
products
REAE M
HK$°000

FET

HK$°000
FET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS (CONTINUED)
S BRRME

—NETZH=T—HIEFE

(%)

TotaI
HK$ ‘000
FET

2016 +=A=t+-H
tFE
Revenue from external REINRE K
customers WA 230,614 691,194 195,763 601,267 23,638 1,742,476
Segment profit/(loss) AEEA/(EE) 16,737 30,377 5,404 78,663 (11,005) 120,176
Depreciation and nEREHE
amortisation 8,538 38,717 7,969 33,730 190 89,144
Year ended 31 December #HE-ZT—H%F
2015 +=A=+—H
EFE
Revenue from external REIRE K
customers WA 250,322 529,870 213,760 532,151 13,241 1,539,344
Segment profit/(loss) DT (BE) 12,708 16,071 874 72,599 (78,983) 23,269
Depreciation and mEREHE
amortisation 12,073 33,474 7,327 22,586 7,216 82,676
Impairment loss on property, #1% « # 23 & & &
plant and equipment HEBE = = = = 4,750 4,750
Impairment loss on BVAEREER
intangible assets - = = = 11,206 11,206

Annual Report 2016 —ZF—

NFEFR

127



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —Z —

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss:

RNETZHA=+—BIEFE

7 ERE R (&)

ERSBURA - FERNRBEEZH

BR :

2016 2015
TR
HK$'000 HK$000
FET F&ET

Revenue H& A
Total revenue of reportable segments o B2 BUA 1,742,476 1,539,344
Unallocated amounts “*E%( B - -
Consolidated revenue BRE WA 1,742,476 1,539,344

2016 2015
—E—AREF —_T—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Profit or loss i Kl = 5 1B
Total profit of reportable segments EHp 2 mF 120,176 23,269
Unallocated amounts: THHEEE -
Gain on a bargain purchase BRI - 9,546
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RAELEHE QA K= 4,635 -
Share of loss of associates oS N RIER (3,400) =
Interest income FE KA 868 2,194
Gain on financial liabilities at fair value RATEGFAEREN
through profit or loss SRE Gz K 14,767 33
Loss on financial liabilities at fair value RATEGFABZEN
through profit or loss SRBECEE - (71,679)
Finance costs & B A (17,489) (8,792)
Income tax expense FriS B A = (46,252) (5,410)
Corporate income KA 9,262 8,927
Corporate expenses TERX (22,665) (35,254)
Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year FREZEE RN (BE) 59,902 (77,166)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z

profit or loss: (Continued)

Other material items - depreciation and
amortisation
Total depreciation and amortisation of

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

nVT\

7 BER (&)
iR (&)

2016

HK$000
FET

HthEREE -EREH

2| AAIFTEREH

B B 7 AR Y 5

—NETZH=T—HIEFE

(%)

ERSBURA - FERNREE Y

2015
—T-HF
HK$°000
FET

reportable segments 89,144 82,676
Unallocated amounts: THBEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and TERAME
equipment for corporate use AR BREITE 1,356 4,288
Consolidated depreciation and amortisation 4R & 4T & K i 90,500 86,964

Geographical information:

HEE R

Revenue
N

2016 2015
—ET—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FrETT
Hong Kong B 307,492 423,003
The PRC except Hong Kong R (AR 822,741 597,153
Japan H R 23,063 3,718
USA = 472,291 448,620
Others Hfth 116,889 66,850
Consolidated total IR B 1,742,476 1,539,344

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on

the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than the PRC are
less than 10% (2015: less than 10%) of the aggregate amount of

all segments.

10%)
RBEZ -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. oEIER (&)
Revenue from major customers: REEXEEZEFZHBA:

2016
o

HK3$’000

Zinc alloy die casting segment
Customer a
Customer b
Customer ¢

Magnesium alloy die casting segment
Customer ¢
Customer e

Aluminium alloy die casting segment
Customer a
Customer e
Customer ¢

Plastic injection segment
Customer b
Customer a
Customer d

TE2BRED
X Fa
ZFb
BEc

EASEED
X Fc
X Fe

tne e BED L
XFa
X Fe
e

BB I
ZFb
®Fa
BFd

FET

117,678
55,394
4,518

256,053
144,177

110,367
7,814
145

115,718
1,120
408,833

2015
“T-HF
HK$°000
TFHET

132,886
54,823

180,817
108,138

116,594
4,475

118,029
8,536
374,948
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11.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & ==

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND INCOME 11.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZxBIFIZERERL

wm

Hit &R R BRA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)
S BRRME

—NETZH=T—HIEFE

(%)

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Acquisition-related costs in business XBEMREKREERNER
combination - 450
Allowance for inventories FE#EE 12,110 6,147
Bad debts written off (net of bad debt ZTRRMEE (R AR =)
recovery) 275 14
Gain on financial liabilities at fair BEAFEFAERzeRABE
value through profit or loss & (14,767) (33)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZREEE - 11,206
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI - WS RERE ZRE
equipment [E518 1,122 4,750
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - HERERERN (I
and equipment =)/ B8 (45) 267
Loss on financial liabilities at fair value BEAFEGFABR AR
through profit or loss E51E - 71,679
Property, plant and equipment written back ¥ - # 28 [ 2% 1 fifl 88 [2] 78 - (1,000)
Property, plant and equipment written off I Y E LT 4,515 3,888
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts BB R AR (53) (358)
3,157 97,010
Annual Report 2016 =Z—/~FFH
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.l_\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬂ' (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BERA

2016 2015

—RE T —hF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Interest expenses on bank borrowings KIS E KA 17,933 16,480
Amount capitalised EXRE T (444) (7,688)
17,489 8,792
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings EEPMINRBITERNOBEKAE - B
including bank borrowings which contain a repayment on ERBEEXRBEZMEAMNZEETEER
demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled Bz Mt B ZRE R BGRARITHER
repayments dates set out in the loan agreements. For the years HE-Z-—RE;-_FT—AF+=H
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the interest on bank —+t—HIFE WEZRERERKR
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause before B ER1T B R RAEE AL AT FLE 5 B4

the capitalisation of borrowing costs amounted to approximately 7$10,392,000/% 7t } 13,500,000/ 7T, ©

HK$10,392,000 and HK$13,500,000 respectively.

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed BEESZMETHERNMENE LR
generally is at a rate of 3.2% (2015: 3.1%) per annum. F32%(ZFE—FHF :3.1%) °
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- ﬁﬂ #E %:Z M_.I- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T — A"F+-A=1+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FEBBAX

2016 2015
—E2—-XRF

—E—hE
HK$'000
FET

HK3$'000
FET

BTEIT IR - BB RSN

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year REEHEAE 7,653 7,338

(Over)/Under-provision in prior years BAEFE(BREEE) BETR (1,723) 1,210
Current tax-PRC enterprise income tax BVHARE I8 — R Bl (R ZEFR 1S B

Provision for the year KEZ RS 14,770 11,360

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (833) (385)
Deferred tax (note 33) EEFIE (K7 i#33) 26,385 (14,113)
Income tax expense FTiS B 46,252 5,410

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits of Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT”) Law, the
statutory tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries established and
operating in Mainland China is 25% (2015: 25%). However,
one of the Group’s subsidiaries has been recognised as a “New
and High Technology Enterprise” in the PRC and were therefore
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% (2015: 15%) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing on the overseas countries in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax of a rate of 10%
would be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned from
2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies established
in the PRC. Such dividend tax rate may be further reduced by
applicable tax treaties or arrangements.

HE-_Z—"F+-_A=1+—HLFE
ZEBFNESHRBEESEMMBRARZ
AT ERT R A AT E16.5% (ZF—H
F 1 16.5%) (EH B -

BEFBECEMERE  AEERFH
RBER S K %8 2 B A Rl 2 A E K
B25% (ZFE—HF :25%) - AR ' &~
SEHEF—RHNBAREREATEH =
MMt E] AR ERBEEZZT—XF
TZA=T—BLEFEANEF15% (=
—FHF 15%) ZBEBHE -

5 90328 2 BB B AR U 4 PO 1 £ R R
MRS R E G E 2 SNER 2 BT
GESIER

REFECEAEHRE  IEEREER
—EEN\FEERT B Z AR
AR R 2 B S AR IN10% IR Fr 15
B BB 2 B R B Al BE IR E A IS 1R
Bl 2 BEE — (R IK o
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/T\

B AR M EE (38)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. PS8 HBA X (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the FriS®ip S EpR T AR A, (EH8) A
product of profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong BEAFNGHMREFEMSERNE RN

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

I

2016 2015
—XxE —T—hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit/(Loss) before tax

FRET TrET

B ADE F,(EBE) 106,154 (71,756)

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 16.5%

BEABNESHME165% (=ZF

(2015: 16.5%) —RF: 165%h+§mﬁﬂﬁ 17,515 (11,840)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 4~ a] #1755 5z B9 B 76 57 & 8,893 3,550
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBMABN T2 (4,113) (929)
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERERHEZENT B E

recognised (290) (443)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates BoME NRBEACHBRE 561 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEBE BB E 16,605 24,351
Utilisation of tax losses not previously AL ARERHIEEE

recognised 28 (6,973) (2,611)
Withholding tax arising from undistributed 2R & # B 7 2 7] & 2 B )8

profits of a PRC subsidiary FRE £ 2 TEIRFTSH 15,852 =
Over-provision in prior years BT FEBBARE (2,556) (385)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETRE - 1,210
Over-provision for current year ANFE B 157 726
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MERRRMETRNBIEZE 601 (8,219)
Income tax expense FriSfiAx 46,252 5,410
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred tax MREBERKRIERIN RERNRNEE2H
relating to the revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land during EtEGRzBEREERESERLME
the year has been charged to other comprehensive income. HE a5

Annual Report 2016 =Z— A FFR



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- ﬁﬂ #E %:Z M_.I- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 i E —T— A F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 14. FRHRN(FHE)
AEBERNZHEF (BB EMER,
GPSRYIESE

The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

2016 2015
—ET—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in EF & E#E (23K — R LT

general and administrative expenses) BRAX) - 2,402
Acquisition-related costs in business XBeHrHEEEENER

combination (note (a)) (K1it(a)) - 450
Allowance for inventories (note (a)) GFERE (M it@) 12,110 6,147
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RAREE BRI (M7t (@)

(note (a)) (53) (358)
Bad debts recovery (note (a)) ZRRI R (K 7#(a)) - (4)
Bad debts written off (note (a)) RS (4722 (a)) 275 18
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2K A B &

Provision for the year NEEHEE 1,660 1,650

Over-provision in prior year BT FERBERE - (90)

1,660 1,560
Impairment on intangible asset (note (a)) EmEEREER (M it@E) - 11,206
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI - e R EREEE

equipment (note (a)) (K12#@a)) 1,122 4,750
Cost of inventories sold (note (c)) EETFERA (M) 1,288,458 1,134,933
Depreciation of property, plant and M BBERERETE

equipment 90,500 84,562
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant &Y% - 25 R &EZ (U

and equipment (note (a)) =)/ B8 (fiEE) (45) 267
Property, plant and equipment written off EE - 2R R M

(note (a)) (13t (a)) 4,515 3,888
Property, plant and equipment written back  #72  #22 I 3% i i 55 B 8¢

(note (a) and (b)) (Htet@) kb)) - (1,000)
Loss on financial liabilities at fair value BRATFEGFAERZ

through profit or loss (note (a)) SR B EEE (HitE) - 71,679
Gain on financial liabilities at fair value RATEFAEBREZ

through profit or loss (note (a)) &Rl B B (H @) (14,767) (33)
Net exchange gain HOE W s (9,095) (8,842)
Operating lease charges in respect of land T REFREHEL

and buildings 8,860 (k15528112
Other fees paid to the auditor of AR RZHA 2 Hth & A

the Company 399 569
Research and development expenditure e R BB S (A2 (d))
(note (d)) 23,994 215, 102
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZIEFRERERLD A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE = — ~"F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 14. FRHEFA(EE) (&)

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

These amounts were included in other operating expenses and
income.

A fire accident took place in one of the Group’s production bases
in Shenzhen, the PRC on 27 November 2013 and impairment loss
of approximately HK$52,343,000 had been made for inventories
and property, plant and equipment of the Group as a result of
the fire accident and was included in other operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2013. Machines of approximately HK$3,137,000 and
HK$1,000,000 written off during 2013 have been repaired and
the impairment loss was written back during the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 respectively.

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation of
approximately HK$421,952,000 (2015: HK$365,933,000), which
are included in the amounts disclosed separately.

Research and development expenditure includes staff costs of
approximately HK$11,828,000 (2015: HK$20,158,000), which are
included in the amounts disclosed separately.

By et

(a)

(b)

(0

ZEFACF AR EER X RIKRA

R=ZZT—=F+—A=++RH &%

BURPEFINER —HEEE
WmBEAENK AEEBEALRTFE
AR - R RBEELRERBE
52,343,000 7T ° AEEEE AR
B+ A=+ HFEENLE
EERERNEMEERIA - AREL
3,137,0007% 7T }1,000,000/% It 2 #
BREER T =F{EREFHIER
RiguismE - FIAR8NERE

—HEZE—RAFt+A=+—
H bz FE LR E RSB -

EEFTEXREABEEIRARINE
#9421,952,0008 L (ZE — A F :
365,933,000 7T) ' HEES B DA
" o

MERFAEIHAEEBIEZENE
T A AN4911,828,0008 T (ZE—H
£ : 20,158,000/ 7T) °

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE EEGAMAX

2016 2015
—~E —E—hHE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET

Employee benefits expense (excluding EEBAFx

directors’ emoluments): (TBREEME) :

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - TEAT ROERE 434,674 392,373
Equity-settled share-based payments LA IR 45 E LARR (0 2+ 2 5/ IE - 111
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE FFT 84 28,655 21,581
Other benefits E b2 7 35,566 30,770
498,895 444 835
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

wm

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 3 (2015: 3) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 16. The emoluments of the
remaining 2 (2015: 2) individuals for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out below:

15.

B W HmaR MR ()

—NETZH=T—HIEFE

EEEAMX (F)
HERBHFMAL
AEBNAEREHALRES (22

—RF3B)EF FEMeFEIER
M6 - RBEE-ZT—ARF+=
A=+T—HLEFEHT2E (ZF —

F2R)BEaFATHHESNT

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Basic salaries and allowances FR S B R B 2,807 3,229
Discretionary bonus B 15 fE AT 194 50
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R ORAE T FT B R 36 18
3,037 3,297

MeENFATEHE :

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

2015

—hEF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,000/% 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of these highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FR ARETERAZEESHFALX

R AT 1F 23 00 B2 A 52 [ s 2 2 1R O 22 )

SRR MEIHNE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.r\ 7.|- i£ #& 43’% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 16. EETARA =
(a) Emoluments of directors (a) EE#M£
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEESHMEOT -

Estimated Retirement

money value henefits
of other scheme
Salaries and  Discretionary henefits  contributions
Fees allowances bonus  EHBRHH BAGTH Total
Name of director e  HeRRE MEEL HHEYEE HE [ @it
HKS$:000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
AT 7AT AT FETT FAT
(note v)
(Hitv)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE-/E
TZB=t-H
Executive directors UiEs
Mr. Lee 5k - 2,955 209 206 18 3,388
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu (note j RERBL(H:H) - 2,140 146 - 3 233
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EkRTE - 1,588 109 9 18 1,807
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan (note i) B & %4 (4/&Fii) - 654 - - 6 660
Independent non-executive BUkinES
directors
ir. SUN Kai Lit, CIif gss, 1 TRRIAUS femps - AL 180 - - - - 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok 8s, MH, EEEETRS MH ATHT 180 - - - - 180
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (note i) TR %4 (47Ziii) 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK ER%AE 180 - - - - 180
Total for 2016 i B3 H 720 1337 464 298 7 8,898
Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ-%-1f
+-A=1-H
Evecutive directors #nEs
Mr. Lee £33 - 2,949 210 290 18 3,467
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu (note ) ERRET(H) - 1,37 - - 2 1,259
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EBLE - 1,585 13 156 18 1872
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan (note i) 8 % & (Hi) - 1,567 113 - 18 1,698
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFEH7TEE
Mr. SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 385, FARIBIE B - AT+ 180 - - - - 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok SBs, M, Jp EREELIRS W AT4L 180 - - - - 180
Mr. YEOW Hoe Ann, John (note i) SRR &4 (Hetiv) 9% - - - - 90
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (note i) L& 2% 2 (4/eii) 115 - - - - 115
Mr. Andrew LOOK EREE 180 - - - - 180
Total for 2015 ZE-REE 745 7338 436 446 76 9,041
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Emoluments of directors (Continued)
Note:

(i) Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 1 June 2015. He is also
the chief executive officer of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those services
rendered by him as chief executive.

(ii) Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan was resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 23 May 2016.

(iii) Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
11 May 2015.

(iv) Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann, John was retired as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 11 May 2015.

(v) Estimated money values of other benefits include cars of
the Group used by the directors.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year (2015: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangement or contracts

Save as the continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK1.0 cent (final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015: Nil)
per shares has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.

16.

17.

EEEMRAME (&)

(a)

(b)

Hi/%,\

EEME (&)
Bt

() HERBLIN-_Z—AFRX
H—BEZRERARRRHRIT
EF - FANAARAITERA
B EXREZHMERE
RIERTTHARREREH

(ii) MESEER_ZT—FhH
AZ+=BEREIARQRNIT
=

(ifi) TIRBEER_TE—RAFH
At+—BEZEAEARRB
MNIEMITES °

(iv) kAL EER_—_T—RHFA
B+ —HBEARRARBLIFE
HITES -

v) HiR@AMH Gt EBEER
BREREANAEERE -

BEERNAFAREEHRRRR BN
REMMENZH (T —0F &) -

FA - AREE AL E R EAE R NE
fa] 1 7% hn B2 7 5= 19 5 o 2 1% ) 22 ) =k
BERmENME

EERXE  RELEHH

MEXER
BESINGA B SRR 258
BERSFAHBEESN  RERRER

EAERE - AR FHEEET S R A
SEEBERMmMARRES REMRE
ATREPERRREEFEAER
MEARRS  RHERAH -

RBEMMREE  AANEFRRS
SRBE-E—AFT-A=+—AL
FEyRERESRI OBM@ME—T
—HF+-A=t+—BULFERERE
) UREAFALAREREERE
BEAE EHE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 18. BREF (FH#E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is FRRERNREERF (EE) IR T35t
based on the following: =¥
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FEL
Earnings/(Loss) B,/ (FBR)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners of ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬂ2$
the Company, used in the basic earnings ARlEmFEE ARERET,
per share calculation (B#H) 59,243 (63,489)
Effect of profit attributable to the non- 4R & B 7% 2R T 738 (b) AT
controlling interest assuming 300 shares itz WHEEBH SR ERER

of a subsidiary, Katchon Precision Holdings B BRREBETHEBRARR
Company Limited (“Katchon”) were issued EREERERAGF (5

to the seller of Goodly Precision Industrial & 1) Z3000% B {7 KK 55 =

Limited (“Goodly”), pursuant to the BB TEARAR (£

contingent consideration arrangement of ) 2 ERE IEERELR

the business combination as detailed in g F 22

note 38(b) to the consolidated financial

statements (664) (1,254)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the AREEERERZF Z

Company, used in the diluted earnings ZN/NGIE- e R N

per share calculation A (E58) 58,579 (64,743)
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARt & FEEARZEF| 2 0

used in basic earnings per share calculation  # - 35 & & I i% ¢ 893,761,400 893,761,400
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares R ESEUB S L AR

arising from share options 2 30,353 =

Weighted average number of ordinary shares R &tE & /% &8 2 F 2 hn

used in diluted earnings per share calculation #3353 38 % i% 2x 893,791,753 893,761,400
The share options of the subsidiary outstanding at 31 December WBARIRN _-_ZT—RAF+_A=1+—H
2015 and the share options of the Company outstanding at 31 HARBRZTE—hAF+=_A=+—H
December 2015 are anti-dilutive and hence they are not included RETEZERESREE  AAE
in the calculation of diluted loss per share. BIREEEER T B 1E L EEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

nVT\

B B 7 AR Y 5

(%)

—RETZA=+—BIEEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. W% BERRHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Leasehold ~ Plantand  Computer  and office Motor  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment equi%mﬁznt vehicles in progress
il EE%E
HELH B NERE  HERRE  EHRE RELERE bt EEIR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr Fér 71 FEr -7 71 71 77
Cost or valuation RAHHE
At 1 January 2015 R-F-1F-A-A 175,400 302,066 130,651 570,555 9,385 6,445 15,701 86,682 129,885
Transfer gy = 65,393 8,278 11,447 = 359 - (85,477) -
Additions E = 1,609 39,613 57,539 317 2483 101 10,176 111,838
Surplus on revaluation EALp 50,907 - - - - - - - 50,907
Depreciation eliminated against cost KRB EHE (4,349) - - - - - - - (4,349)
Wiite back HHmE - - - 1,454 - - - - 1,454
Disposallwite off e /5 - (6,731) - (7,30 (184) (132) (194) - (14471)
Reclassfed as held for sle BARARIEHE - - - (A (49 (51) - - My
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAT - - 850 11,039 - 3003 385 - 15497
Exchange difference EizE (6,058) (14905) (6,143) (23,630) (126) (422) (512) (133) (53,169)
At 31 December 2015 and RZF-RF+2A
1 January 2016 ST-ARZE-AE
-A-H 215,900 347432 173,249 609,955 9,343 11,905 15,481 10008 1393273
Transfer 2% - 2559 2,036 - - 30 - (4915) -
Additions HE = = 15,541 19,543 29 522 194 885 36977
Surplus on revaluation EfiRH 45,146 - - - - - - - 45,146
Depreciation eliminated against cost ~~ RAAREE (5,511) - - - - - - = (5,511)
Disposalwrite off e /H - (7.857) - (2,250 (37) (3) (640) - (10,818)
Exchange difference EXEH (10,903 (20,584) (9,824) (33.820) (113) (663) (687) (420) (77,014)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-—RE
tZA=1-H 244,632 321,550 181,002 593,428 9,485 12,050 14,348 5558 1,382,083
Accumulated depreciation ZAERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 R=F-1E-A-H = 58,150 68,237 297,102 7611 5,051 10,320 - 46 471
Charge for the year il 445 14464 18586 83677 781 1,006 1576 - 84,562
Disposal/wite off e /s - (3,029 - 6,389) (184) (%9 (175) - (9,876)
Wite back HanE - - - 454 - - - - 454
Adjustment on revaluation EfiRY (4,349) - - - - - - - (4,349)
Impairment e - - - 4,69 3 f - - 4750
Reclasifed as held for sale BARRRIERHE = - - ma9 (49) (51) - - (139
Bichange difference EiZR (103) (2,8%9) (2489 (1044 (83) (177) (302) - (16,455)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RE+2R
1 January 2016 ST-ARZE-AE
i = 66,726 84,334 317,881 8,113 5,765 11,419 - 494238
Charge for the year ERink 5,862 14,6% 3287 43,54 664 1,104 1,363 - 90,500
Disposallwite off e /s - (3,536) - (1,869) (19 (29 (640) - (6,093)
Adjustment on revaluation BfhE (5,511) - - - - - - - (5,511)
Impairment i - - - - - - - 1122 1122
Exchange difference ERzE (193) (4.478) (4592) (16,354) (143) (297) (486) (49) (26,592)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-7E+2R
== 158 73,408 103,029 343,182 8,615 6,543 11,656 1073 547,664
Carrying amount R
At 31 December 2016 RoE-7F1+2A
Sir= 24,474 248,142 11913 250,246 870 5,507 2,692 4,485 834,389
At 31 December 2015 R=% TﬁI A
=t 25800 280,706 8915 292004 1,230 6,140 4062 10008 899035
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —_E— "FE+-_A=1T—HILFE

19.

Annual Report 2016 =

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land of HK$72,814,000 and
HK$171,660,000 was revalued on 30 September 2016 and 31
December 2016 respectively, and all on 31 December 2015 using
the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence
of recent transactions for similar properties by independent
surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group's leasehold land would have
been approximately HK$44,893,000 (2015: HK$47,881,000)
had it been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged
as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$42,405,000 (2015: HK$40,694,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of the plasma lighting CGU due to the
poor market conditions of the lighting products, and as a result
recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$4,750,000 in
respect of plant and machinery attributable to that CGU. Details
of the impairment assessment are disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

= — R

19.

3 - BB RRE (&)

NEEEMET72,814,0008 Tt &
171,660,000 L 2 HE LD FIR =F
—RNFNA=ZFTBAR-_ZT—AFE+_A
=t+—B EKFAIEHEELHHR=_F—HA
F+-A=Zt+—BREELBAEES
EMBRUNEZ AR FEEEMN -

BREARBRFITERREESIE
AR  AEEHRELTHHEmMEY
/44,893,000 0 (Z & — R F -
47,881,000/ 7T) ©

AEBEREEAE 42,405,000/ 7T (=
T —F 4 : 40,694,000 7T) B -
BREEEEREAREBRITEEDN
AR o

RBEE-F-—AFT-_A=+—HLF
B ARRAERNTERATER -
AEBHEHFRARSELEMNHA
WEeBETHE MEZBREEE
BRI R MR AR EREEL
4,750,000 7T ° A BB ER M FIFR
e SRR 213K EE
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

n{F

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z —

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as

follows:

Ka Shui (Holdings) Company Limited
EnsEERAA

Ample Wealth Developments Limited
BEERARARA

Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited
FECERRMERAR

Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited
EhfnERAR

MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
("MG Technology”)

8l ERE (R BRAR
(Telexp#))

Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited
FaMK(EN)BRA

Place and date of
incorporation

AMETHRR A

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")
HERNES

BVI
ZERAES
Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
o

The PRC
o

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR

k& /g

US$36,909
36,909 T

Uss1
(EI

HK$74,487,660
74,487,660 70

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

Registered capital
HK$150,000,000
#H & 4150,000,000 7

Registered capital
HK$310,000,000
#H & 7310,000,000E7

20. RKMERAT
EA_7 7N
= 1

Percentage of
ownership interest/voting
power/profit sharing
EiER/RER/
BNERL

Direct Indirect

B# 3

100% =

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Annual Report 2016 —ZF—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)
S BRRME

NEAF= B E—E 5 E

=+—R"

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

Investment holding

REAER

Sales of plastic injection products

and components

HERBIRERRTNN

Sale of zinc, magnesium and

aluminium alloy die casting and
plastic injection products and

components
HEH BREAEEEN
ZRIRERREDN

Sale and manufacture of magnesium
and aluminium alloy die casting

products and components
HEREEERHAAS
BRERREHH

Sale and manufacture of magnesium
alloy die casting products and

components
HEREERASEBERR
T

(%)

LRI

NFEFR
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B 75 R 3R B 5

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

20.

E-T—

(%)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as

follows: (Continued)

Elegant Shine Investments Limited

fERARRAA

Ample Wealth Property Developments
(Huizhou) Limited
ELNERE (BN BRAR

Ka Shui Technology Limited
St HARAR

Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Company Limited
X (ER)EXERA

Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic
Manufactory Company Limited

ENTARIEEHARARAR

Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited
EEREEM AR

Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou)
Company Limited
BETERR(BMARA

Alphalite Company Limited
FHRABRAR

144 Annual Report 2016 —Z—NEFR

Place and date of
incorporation

EMAELBHEEH

BVI
RBRAES

The PRC
Gl
Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
Ef

The PRC
hE

The PRC
hE

Hong Kong
&k

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR

R/ EMER

Uss$1
1%

Registered capital
HK$6,800,000
& 76,800,000% 72

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

HK$6,900,000
6,900,000 T

Registered capital
HK$4,500,000
FEf £ %4,500,0008 70

Registered capital
HK$20,000,000
14 7420,000,0007% 1T

Registered capital
HK$92,000,000
14 792,000,000% 7T

HKS$ 1
18T

RNETZA=+—BIEFE

20.
P

i A
7N
Az HEMT

Percentage of
ownership interest/voting
power/profit sharing
EibRE/ RER/
BNERL

Direct Indirect

B# 3

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%
= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

HRE ()
_|_

H=+t—H WBA
C (&)

Principal activities

IEEH

Investment holding

REZR

Inactive

EEXH

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

Provision of surface finishing
treatment services and sale and
manufacture of zinc alloy die
casting products and components

RUERARERBRHEEREE
HReBREMREHHN

Sale and manufacture of zinc and
aluminium alloy die casting
products and components

HEREEHRAALEEERR
T

Sale and manufacture of products and
components with plastic contents

HEREEREBRAZERR
T

Trading and marketing of plasma
lighting products

tEEETRAER
ZEHRMSHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- ﬁ‘i ')F& %:Z Bﬁ- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T~ "F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 200 RHMBATNKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as R-_E—ARE+_A=+—8 KBAQ
follows: (Continued) AIZFEBET - (8)

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR

Percentage of
ownership interest/voting
power/profit sharing

EiERE/ RER/

Place and date of
incorporation

Principal activities

Ka Shui Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen)
Company Limited
EntBHm (M) ARAT

Alphalite Incorporation

Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation

Kalok Technology Investment Limited

FRMRRARRAR

Wuhu Lenka Technologies Company Limited
("Wuhu Lenka")
EABETERRERLA
([HRHE] )

Ka Shui Metal Company Limited
FheBERAA

Katchon
1=

Katchon Industrial Company Limited
FEIXERAH

Goodly

£

Goodly Precision (Suzhou) Industrial Limited
(“Goodly Suzhou")

SREELE (HM) ERAR
(T=mEM])

EERAL T ERERASNRARAT

AR VL]

The PRC
A

USA
X

UsA
*H

BVI
RBRAES

The PRC
i

Hong Kong

BVI
EERANE
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
B

The PRC
i

The PRC

B&/ERES

Registered capital
HK$40,000,000

HZ 240,000,000/ 7T

US$100
100%T

US$5,000
5.000%7

US$50,000
50,0007

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
AMEA
AK%50,000,0007

HK$100,000
100,000 T

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

HK$1
1AL

HK$50,000
50,0007

Registered capital
U5$5,000,000
HMEA
5,000,000% 7

Registered capital
RMB12,000,000
HMEA
ARH12,000,0007

BREAL
Direct

B#

Annual Report 2016 —ZF—

Indirect

3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

70%

70%

IERH

Sale and manufacture of zinc and
magnesium alloy die casting
products and components

HEREEEREACEE
EmRHBH

Trading and marketing of lighting
products

ft=ReER
ZBHRTGHER

Marketing of zinc and magnesium
alloy die casting and plastic
injection products and components

fEEREAEEERER
AEERRBM SRR

Investment holding

RARK

Sale and manufacture of magnesium
alloy die casting products and
components

HEREERRCER
EmRat

Sale of magnesium alloy die casting
products and components

HERASERERRTHM

Investment holding
REZR

Inactive

LE ]

Investment holding
REER

Research, manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding and
components of car-related products

REHBZERIETH
% EEREE

Research and development,
manufacture and sales of
metal alloy material

ARMETE RENHE

NFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —_E— "FE+-_A=1T—HILFE

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MG Technology, Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company
Limited, Ample Wealth Property Developments (Huizhou)
Limited, Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited, Ka Fung
Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited, Ka Shui
Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Huizhou Wing
Yu Metal and Plastic Manufactory Company Limited, Topanga
Technology (Huizhou) Limited and Goodly Suzhou are wholly-
foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. Wuhu Lenka
and BERRILT ZihEE4a BB R AT are registered as a
company with limited liability under the law of the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired the equity interest in Wuhu Lenka of 40% from
the non-controlling shareholders at a cash consideration of
RMB17,800,000 (equivalent to HK$21,243,000). After the
acquisition, Wuhu Lenka became the wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
injected capital of US$4,832,987 (equivalent to approximately
HK$37,455,649) to Topanga Asia Limited (“Topanga Asia”) in
return of the issue of 898,936 ordinary shares by Topanga Asia.
After the capital injection, the Group’s interest in Topanga Asia
increased from 60% to approximately 79.7%. On 5 February
2016, Topanga Asia allotted a total of 1,912,069 shares to a
third party and a non-controlling shareholder, representing 51%
of Topanga Asia immediately after the share allotment. The
Group’s interest in Topanga Asia reduced to 38.9% (notes 27
and 38(c)). Since then, the Group lost the control in Topanga
Asia and its subsidiaries, namely, Topanga USA Inc. (“Topanga
US”) and Topanga Technology (Huizhou) Limited (“Topanga
Huizhou”). It constitutes a deemed disposal of subsidiaries
and the financial results and positions of Topanga Asia and its
subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The retained interests in Topanga Asia and
its subsidiaries are accounted for as investments in associates as
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances
and restricted bank deposits of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$123,272,000 (2015: HK$116,230,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’'s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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R E 2B RE (&)
BlSEME BRI EMN ARA
A BEMEREEMN ARAF R
ERER(EMN) BARAF - BETEME
(M) BRAT - EHSBER R
BRAR - EMNTRBRESEHES
RAR - HREMNE(EMN ARDA
RS HERM B BB SN B A
¥ ONBEREEA ML RN EN
ASHBRARARRFEERRLZA
REMAF -

REE=-_ZE—ARAF+=_A=+—H
WEFE - A& E R I 2 IR AR R IR
W ZA0% R E RERERARE
17,800,0007T (& 7A21,243,000/%
TL) o WEBE - BB EK AR RRIMNE
EHBAA] -

REE-ZFT—AF+-_A=+—HLF
B AEERNEEREERAR (M8
=32 ) JEAE AKR4,832,987% ¢ (HHE
R #937,455,649%8 L) AR = 5=
FT217 2898,936/k LB - X B 2
% AEERY R I ERN60%IEE
797% - R_ZT—A"E-_ARHB Y=
= B031,912,06090 D T —RE=F
RIEERBR  E =2 R BER M E
TS5 1% R AEER R 2B
7 P& 238.9% (KT 5£27 %38(c)) ° 1t 1% -
AEBR S5z R EKNE A FTopanga
USA Inc. ([Topanga USJ) & 5 &= Rl
(B ERRAR ([SmmBM]) K=
HlHE o LEAKRIELERB AT KIS
ERRENBRARZUBEERKLT
BERARAEBRGREMBRE - RNm
EREWEB AR Z BT #Eam AR E A
Rl ZIE AN - WRERA B ISR KT
227 R o

R—B—XRE+-_A=+—8 K=&
BRABAAREERNBRQ AN
BRITRBAcEHRRERGIRITER
49 /123,272,000 c (ZF —HF :
116,230,000/8 7T) ° AR K AN
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZxBIFIZERERL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
n‘l-.l_\ 7.|- %% ')F& %‘zz Bﬁ- (IIE )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ=ZZ— A "F+ZA=+T—HIEFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BREE

Patent and
unpatent
technologies
(purchased)
BRI K
FER B M
(BE)
HK$°000
FHET

(d[1]}
membership
(purchased)

Trademark
(purchased)

B
(BE)
HK$'000
FHET

[
(BE)
HK$'000
FET

F-Hy
HK$000
FET

Cost D%
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—HA—H 718 7,531 9,280 17,529
Reclassified as held for sale BrERFEHE - (7,531) (9,280) (16,811)
At 31 December 2015 —E-RFtA
1 January 2016 and =t—H -ZZE—KF
31 December 2016 —A—BR-ZE—~F
+=A=+—"H 718 - - 718
Accumulated amortisation Rt BHERAERSE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-—RF—F—H - 1,435 1,768 3,203
Amortisation for the year FEREH - 1,076 1,326 2,402
Impairment on intangible assets £ & E R E - 5,020 6,186 11,206
Reclassified as held for sale BRBRFEHE - (7,531) (9,280) (16,811)
At 31 December 2015 —T-a%+=-HA
1 January 2016 and == « =F=4
31 December 2016 —A—-BAR=T—K~%E
+=A=+-H - - - N
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA
== 718 - - 718
At 31 December 2015 RZE—hE+ZA
=ar=18 718 - - 718
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZIEFRERERLD A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/__]_\

B AR M EE (38)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z T — X F+ _-_A=+—BItFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Both the trademark and patent and unpatent technologies were
acquired through business combination of Topanga Asia in 2013.
The Group's trademark protects the design and specification of
the Group’s products. The patent and unpatent technologies are
developed from research and development activities of a non-
controlling shareholder before the acquisition of the business
of lighting products. The average remaining amortisation period
of the trademark and patent and unpatent technologies are Nil
(2015: Nil).

The Group had carried out reviews of recoverable amount of its
trademark and patent and unpatent technologies in 2015, having
regard to the market conditions of the lighting products. The
intangible assets are used in the plasma lighting CGU. The review
led to the recognition of an impairment loss of approximately
HK$11,206,000 and HK$4,750,000 in the profit or loss for
these assets and for property, plant and equipment (note 19)
respectively in the plasma lighting CGU for the year ended 31
December 2015. The recoverable amount of HK$Nil for the
relevant CGU has been determined on the basis of their value in
use using discounted cash flow method. The discount rate used
was 27.17%.

The trademark, patent and unpatent technologies are
deconsolidated upon the deemed disposal of Topanga Asia (notes
20, 27 and 38(c)).

The Group's club membership of HK$718,000 (2015:
HK$718,000) at 31 December 2016 is assessed as having
indefinite useful life because there is no time limit that the Group
can enjoy the services provided by that club.

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

21.

22.

BREE (B)

BB R SR REEF M EB =T
—CZEYREZEHANKE  A%E
B 70 AR 0 A S B E 6 0 AR 8 TR ALA o
EH BRI F RN R E %
B A—RBIFERBTETHREED
T B8 B o 7 13 04 T B U 36 B R 9
THRGBHRAT (“F—HF £) -

ERBAEMNMSKL  REERZ
T -HEHEAEERENRIIEENE
TR AT I Bl € FEITIRGT - ZFEFE
EDARSEEFTRARESCELSMN - F
AR EBIREBEE_T—AF+=A
=t HLEFEEZERAD RIS SR T
RPERCELEEMMNZEEENRY
% e K B (M E19) RREE 1B
#911,206,0007% 7t & 4,750,000/ It °
BEEREELEEUMNEREEKA
AERIMESMEABEEN I BB EATH
JC o FT{E AR BEIR 82717 % ©

ERFELEDRRR BREAREF
KIFE MM B iR A0 5E20 - 27K
38(c)) °

R-E—RET-A=+—H8B BHRAK
S E =g ATATHRMRY AR 75 7 T 3 4
MR G - AEBRMEHTE4718,000% T
(ZZ— A% :718,000/87T) JHix LA &
PR A {5 FA A HRE 1T AT o

RBERT 2 RE

2016
—E-RF

2015
—E-—hE
HK$'000
FET

HK3$’000
FET

Unlisted investments: EEMKE :

Share of net assets BoREE 1,046 =

Goodwill GRS 632 =
1,678 =

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest free  fEU ‘FEREt S AR RIB AEIKT - 2 2 RE

and repayable on demand. EEREFRIREE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nVT\

B W HmaR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T~ "F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

Issued and
fully paid up
Place of share capital/

incorporation/ registered capital

REERT 2 RE (H)
R-F-—AF+-A=+—AFx%EZ
BEDTERET :

Percentage of
ownership
interest/voting
power/profit
sharing

registration ERITRAZ EhERRE Principal activities

g BREE  OREEMREXR

Topanga Asia Hong Kong HK$127,373,638
Y95 BB 127,373,638% T
Topanga US USA Us$1
E35 (EV
Topanga Huizhou The PRC Registered capital
HrzBM H HK$6,500,000
&R
6,500,000/ 7T

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method:

At 31 December: R+=BA=+-—H
Carrying amounts of interests FEREE

Period ended 31 December:

Loss from operations K EE
Other comprehensive income H Ath 2 T W 2
Total comprehensive income 422 T W s

e ) ‘l:l: EFEXH

38.9%  Sale of plasma lighting products
HESHETRAER

38.9%  Research and development of plasma
lighting products
RESEFRAER

38.9%  Manufacturing of plasma lighting
products

EESHTRAER

TREIAREAESGEARZFT
BESFEEBREARES SRMAN

2016 2015
S P

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

1,678 =

Rt=-ZRA=+-—HRE&EZHH

3,400 =

3,400 =

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’ associates in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$226,000. Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

REZF—A"F+=—A=+—HB &KH
R B A RBEHEREE QB A RTT
KIR G 88 49/5226,0008 7T - IFARE
H A NS B AR 15 R B A (O EE B I
By RKGEE - EERNEEERE)E
17 °
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

23.

Unlisted equity, at cost I ETRAR REKAGTE)

Impairment loss BB EE

AfEELREE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F&ET
8,303 8,303
(8,303) (8,303)

Unlisted equity is carried at cost. The investee company has
ceased business and the management has made full impairment
loss for the investment.

24. INVENTORIES

24.

FLETRARETDRRAANLR - HIRE
ARIERIEEBREEEEHIHLEBERE
EH 2 BURERE -

#i

2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—AHEF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET F&ET
Raw materials R A 54,451 61,661
Consumables supplies and spare parts BEmRERZE M 10,240 9,902
Work in progress ERE 64,593 51,959
Finished goods BUAK i 89,652 72,590
218,936 196,112
Less: Allowance for inventories B FERE (22,774) (19,599)
196,162 176,513
Reclassified as held for sale BoBARKEHEE - (2,589)
196,162 173,924

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. ESREWRIE

During the year 2016, the Group obtained finance for part of its
trade debtors with full recourse from financial institutions. In the
event of default by the debtors, the Group is still obliged to pay
the financial institutions the amount in default. Interest is charged
on average at 2.64% (2015: 2.21%) per annum on the proceeds
received from the financial institutions until the date the debtors
pay. The Group is therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses
and late payment in respect of the secured debts.
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25.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EIxEIIZERER LD F

nV_.I_\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The trade receivables in respect of the financed transactions do
not meet the de-recognition conditions in HKAS 39 as the Group
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financed trade debts. At 31 December 2016, trade debts
of HK$95,076,000 (2015: HK$25,276,000) continue to be
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
proceeds of the financed transactions are included in borrowings
as asset-backed financing (note 31) until the trade debts are
collected and the Group settles the borrowings to the financial
institutions. At 31 December 2016, the asset-backed financing
liability amounted to HK$92,675,000 (2015: HK$24,490,000).
Up to the date of this annual report, asset-backed financing of
HK$Nil (2015: HK$5,900,000) is still outstanding.

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally ranged from 30 to 120 days (2015: 30
to 120 days) after end of the month in which the invoices issued.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. The ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, and net
of allowance, is stated as follows:

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B W HmaR MR ()

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

B 5% EWKE (R)

BB SEEREZBRAR DL THE
BRI EAF0RAMMERER SR
BENAE RATEBRENAES

FE MR 3 P A HE M) K 5 BRI T B0 5

R-ZE—NRE+=-_A=+—H B5FE
U R 70 /295,076,000 70 (—ZZ — R 4F ¢

25,276,000/ 7T ) B AN BARE BT 75
HREFER BRI ZOMBREER
BERKFRE (ME3DIAEE  EE
WE B SEESIAEE L ESREE 2
BE R=T—X"F+=—A=+—8"
BEERKFMEEREF2,6750008 7T (=
T —F 4 24,490,000/ 7T) B EAF
HEH DARKEBIZEERFBRERT
BT (ZZ—AR4S :5,900,00087T) °

AEFHREFZRSGEEUFEERN#E
T -FEEH—MNTHEE A& RE30
F120K (ZZF—FHF : 308120K) o &
SEHNERBEHREEEKSK  BE
EFEHREBEAR AR - BUERR (30
PR fE) BB ZEAH 2 Rk DTS 0
T

2016 2015

—E-XRE TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0%230H 147,131 149,268
31 to 60 days £60H 145,047 113,081
61 to 90 days 61%290H 63,980 46,896
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 93,794 50,196
Over 180 days 180H M E 7,462 2,526
457,414 361,967

Reclassified as held for sale BOoBRRFEHE - (582)
457,414 361,385

At 31 December 2016, an allowance was made for estimated IR 23 = 22 5 5| = =Bl e
irrecoverable trade receivables of HK$Nil (2015: HK$53,000). Ar g el EW R EHBES B T (=

— R4 :53,00087T) °
Annual Report 2016 =Z—/~FFH
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25.

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

B % EWRE (])
B 5 IR R 2 R -

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET F&IT

At 1 January n—A—H 53 2,113
Reversal upon recovery of doubtful debts U E] R BR B =] % - (358)
Reversal upon write off of bad debts A J61 £5 552 B B [o] ¢ (53) (1,702)
At 31 December R+t=ZA=+—8 - 53

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$84,721,000 (2015: HK$52,038,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there are no recent history of default. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables, based on the due date, is as follows:

R—ZZE—-—RNE+=_A=+—8 "
#984,721,0008 L (=Z & — A F -
52,038,000 7T) HI'Z 5 i W 38 A 6
BERERE ZEXREHEARZ AW
EHERXCENBLIRFERE -2E S
FEW R IBAR IR EIER A A RRER AT AT ¢

2016 2015

ZE—KRF —T—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F&T

Up to 3 months 3@ A A 76,580 50,749
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 6,703 734
Over 6 months 618 A LA £ 1,438 920
84,721 52,403

Reclassified as held for sale BoEARBEHE - (365)
84,721 52,038
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- %% ')F& %:Z Bﬁ- (II‘E )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T~ "F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. B3 EWHKEE)
The carrying amount of the Group's trade receivables is AEEESERFENEREBENL TIE

26.

denominated in the following currencies:

®olE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T FET

HK$ BT 29,769 54,108
usD x7T 371,108 269,109
RMB AR 54,126 35,632
Others HAtn 2,411 3,118
457,414 361,967

Reclassified as held for sale BOBEERBIEHEE - (582)
457,414 361,385

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represent the amounts

pledged to banks to secure corporate credit card granted to the
Group. The deposits are denominated in currencies as follows:

usD
Reclassified as held for sale

X7
BOBERFEHE

26.

EEBRITER BERFIERT

FRESTREAESE

AEERNEEBRITERERAEEE

T‘f‘z AlE A RIEEFRITIEAERAOR
o ZTFHRANT EH#EHE -

2016

HK3$’000

2015
—E—hF
HK$°000
FEIT

194
(194)

As at 31 December 2015, the deposits in USD carried at interest

rate of 0.05% per annum.

R-_E—RF+-_A=+—8 ' =1

17 ZUAFE M *0.05% 5T 2.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7_|- ﬁﬁ 3{;& ’13«% M-J- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z T — X F+ _-_A=+—BItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK 26. OB {THEZ - ER4IE T

BALANCES AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES FRESRTRESES (H)

(Continued)

The Group's restricted bank balances represent: A& B 1) A PR HI SR 1T 17 5148

(a) Balance of RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to approximately (a) AR #1,400,0007C (BHERH
HK$1,564,000) (2015: RMB3,450,000 (equivalent to 1,564,000 70) (Z T —H 4
approximately HK$4,117,000)) to guarantee for the use of AR #3,450,0007C (SR 4
natural gas in the PRC (2015: the use of natural gas in the 4,117,000 70)) tE AR B {#
PRC and for currency forward contracts); BRAFHER(ZZE—AF : ¥

R B AR AR R HSME S 49
ZHER)

(b) Balance of US$Nil (2015: US$7,000 (equivalent to (b) ZTETL(ZZE—HAF : 7,000E T
approximately HK$55,000)) to apply for a radioactive (#8  1 4955,0009%8 7)) A 1EA
licence in the USA for the lighting product business. The PR BA 7 o 3 7% 70 32 B R AR BT M
balance for 2015 is reclassified as assets held for sale (note PR - ZMBR_TE—RFHED
27). HAEEHESEE (M:F27) -

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest rates BITFEREEF0O0NERSAE (- F

ranging from 0.01% to 0.54% per annum (2015: 0.01% to —hF: BF0.01EZE3.25F) KZENF

3.25% per annum). EEREUF S o

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are denominated RITRIREERZEEENATIEE S

in the following currencies: BEfy] :

2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ HIT 79,923 47,798
usb ETT 93,925 72,341
RMB AR 122,062 142,893
EURO X 7T 59 17
Others Hh 39 81
296,008 263,130
Reclassified as held for sale BROERFEHE - (2,601)
296,008 260,529
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and 1R 15 mh B A CONEE B 1) M K4S BE
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign EENMNESEHRTY  NEEAHBE
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB EREREINEEENIETUARE N
for foreign currencies through the banks that are authorised to HNEE o

conduct foreign exchange business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|. STATEMENTS (CONT|NUED)
nV-J_\ 7.|- ﬁﬂ #E %:Z M_.I- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE =T —A"F+=-A=1+—HILFE

27. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 27. 7ERFHHEEE

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Assets of Topanga Asia and its subsidiaries Y kEMBARNEE - 8,020
Liabilities directly associated with assets B ELEEEEZHBENARE

classified as held for sale - 2,502

On 31 December 2015, Topanga Asia entered into a non-legal
binding term sheet with a third party, pursuant to which the
third party intended to invest US$1,150,000 to Topanga Asia,
in return for approximately 51% the equity interest in Topanga
Asia. Topanga Asia and its subsidiaries are engaged in sale,
manufacture, research and development of plasma lighting
products and forms part of the Group’s lighting segment. As a
result, the Group classified the assets of Topanga Asia as assets
held for sale as at 31 December 2015.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 February
2016, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement,
according to which 1,912,069 shares were allotted to the
third party and a non-controlling shareholder of Topanga Asia,
representing 51.1% of Topanga Asia immediately after the share
allotment (notes 20 and 38(c)). The Company estimated the fair
value less costs to sell of the assets classified as held for sale
according to the consideration subsequently agreed with the
third party. No impairment loss is required to adjust the carrying
amount to fair value less costs to sell as the former is lower than
the latter. The major classes of assets and liabilities of Topanga
Asia and its subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

RZZE—HAF+=-_A=1+—H Y=E
B—E=FF M — DEREHR NG
RE B ZF = FRAYZEZERE
1,150,000% 7T * A BE ¥ = HI4I51%
BiE - Y= mRENBRARNREEET
FRRBE MM E %‘%ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ?ﬁ = VN
SEBPEEBHSDH—BH o Bt - K
SER=_ZE—RF+= ﬁ—+—E|H%§JJ
SRAENBEARIELHEEE -

RMEPREEE EF— A "F_AA
H ANEETZBROBEERR  HIE
21,912,069 BN T —RBE=F K=
SHERER G2 REERDER
18511 % (M1 5E20%38(0)) « AR

AEREEHEZE =T IHENRERGEE
AFEBREEXNR - BREEEERAD
FERAHEFELEEERDS  HEA
EEREESE  UiSEEERAEREAT
BEREEXAR - REWE QAR
MEMRNEZZEEERBERNAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.l_\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 27. DEARBFHEEE (F)
(Continued)

2015
—T—RF

HK$°000
FET

Property, plant and equipment (after impairment) ME - BEREECRER) =

Intangible assets (after impairment) mpAE(RER) =
Inventories FE 2,589
Trade receivables 2 5 WK IE 582
Other receivables H b B W FKIE 1,999
Restricted bank deposits PRl ER 1T 17 5K 55
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER 194
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 2,601
Assets of Topanga Asia classified as held for sale DERFELENSZREE 8,020
Trade payables 2 5N FRIA 162
Other payables H & 5B 2,340
Liabilities associated with assets classified as HORRRELHEEERBANEE 2,502
held for sale
Net assets of Topanga Asia classified as held for sale D iEAFHEHEN YRR FEE 5,518
The amount of cumulative expense recognised in other REM 2 E WA BRI R EmF Ret
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to HEEREEENBNRBRI AT
assets held for sale is HK$Nil (2015: HK$24,000). JTL(=ZZF—FHF : 24,0008 L) °
The assets classified as held for sale and the liabilities associated PHEARIEFLHEEEEYHARKIELHE
with assets classified as held for sales were deconsolidated upon BEABZAERGIELHESRERI
the deemed disposal of Topanga Asia (notes 20 and 38(c)). SEERA (FtsE20538(c)) °
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nv-ﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T~ "F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods, is as follows:

B W HmaR MR ()

BEZREMARIE  Hitt EA R
HEEGTEHR

B ZRENFERIRE A Bt B 0RE
AT

2016 2015

—T—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F# T FETT

0 to 30 days 0%30H 66,692 60,775
31 to 60 days 31£60H 66,520 55,845
61 to 90 days 61£90H 64,974 52,850
91 to 180 days 91£180H 103,265 51,415
Over 180 days 180H LA 11,637 5,183
313,088 226,068

Reclassified as held for sale BoEAFEHEE - (162)
313,088 225,906

The carrying amount of the Group's trade payables is
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEZE S EMZFBERTDENATIE
LK v

2016 2015
—RE —E—0%F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

HK$ BT 7,645 4,740
usD E7T 51,489 38,088
RMB AR 253,225 183,189
Others Hh 729 51
313,088 226,068

Reclassified as held for sale BoBEAFREEHEE - (162)
313,088 225,906
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R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Other payables and accruals comprise the following:

B EARE Hith BN RE
KESt&EA (&)
H AR HOR R B QAT E

2016 2015

—E—RHF —E—hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FEL

Accrued wages JEEtT & 33,374 33,783
Other accrued expenses HiEs&A 27,165 24,129
Other payables H th & 5 5108 26,825 32,109
87,364 90,021

Reclassified as held for sale BOERFBEHEE - (2,340)
87,364 87,681

The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables and accruals

is denominated in the following currencies:

REREHE AR SRR R EE B AR RE
BERATERIIE :

2016 2015

= i e

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

HK$ BT 7,757 16,672
usD X7 6,236 1,159
RMB AR 73,354 72,190
Others EH A 17 =
87,364 90,021

Reclassified as held for sale BoEABIEHES - (2,340)
87,364 87,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

nVT\

B W HmaR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE =T —A"F+=-A=1+—HILFE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 29.

BAVEFABZRNEH
af\

2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET

Financial liabilities TEAE
Currency forward contracts (note (a)) REINE S K9 (B 5 (a) - 71,121
Interest rate swap (note (b)) F =45 8 (1 22 (b)) - 81
Contingent consideration payable (note (c))  FEft SR RAE (A1 72(c)) - 7,166
- 78,368

Analysed as: DA

Current liabilities BB E - 52,434
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 25,934
- 78,368

The above financial liabilities are classified as held for trading.
Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2015, the Group had currency forward
contracts to sell USD and buy RMB. The fair values of the
derivatives are determined with reference to the market forward
exchange rate at year end and the fixed forward rates stated
in the contracts. The notional amounts of RMB and USD to be
acquired or sold under forward contracts are set out below:

LieREERABRFIERE -

Mzt -

(@ M—FT—AFt+-_A=+—8"
REBERILEMINES L - A
HEXRTRBAARY - 1HEDT
ETAZRAFEZSEFEROTS
EHEER S QP RTHANEEE

2016 2015
—EB-XEF —ZE—hF

Notional amount Notional amount

| EEDH

Currency forward contracts R HAINE S %Y

All the currency forward contracts were terminated or expired as
at 31 December 2016.

- Sales of
US$159,000,000

in exchange for
RMB1,007,130,000

i £ 159,000,000
ETLMB AR
1,007,130,0007T

R==—XRE+=A=+—8 "
FrEREIINE S B E R IESERm °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE B AR M T ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 29.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

BAFEGABRZRNESE
&8&E &)
M (&

160

(b)

(c)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had an interest rate swap
contract, pursuant to which the Group will pay fixed interests on
notional amounts ranging from HK$850,000 to HK$3,200,000
each at a rate of 2.5% per annum, in exchange for floating
interests on the same notional amounts at Hong Kong Interbank
Borrowing Rate for every 3 months up to March 2019. The fair
value of the interest rate swap is measured by reference to the
notional amounts, the fixed rate and floating rate. The interest
rate swap contract ended during 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired
Goodly, details of which are set out in note 38(b). The
consideration of the acquisition includes contingent consideration
comprising cash and shares of Katchon, a subsidiary of the
Company and the immediate holding company of Goodly after the
acquisition, as follows:

(b)

(@)

R=—ZE—RF+=-_A=+—8"
REBBBEMNEREBREL  BE
ZA K A& E K 56850,000%
JLE3,200,0008 T B HE SRS
HEEMNE  FEIHHE2.5% * A
BREHEZE—_T-—NF=-AItE=
8 AR BB RITR EMERKF Rt
HHRAESERNZHFE - F
RN A FE2ZERESE
B EF R RIZEF R H o F X
BHAEOR T —NFRNTLE

REZE-_ZT—HE+-_A=1+—
BIEFER  AEBRESH -
EIFE R FE38(D) - WERER
EXARE EEREERES
(RARIMB AR RN KEER A
MHREEEZERAR) MK &
BT

HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration RENRE 1,200
Share consideration f&n K& 5,966
7,166

The cash to be paid and shares to be allotted depend on the
audited consolidated total comprehensive income of Goodly and
its subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2015. The fair
value of shares of Katchon is estimated by the discounted cash
flows of the expected profit stream of Goodly and its subsidiary.
The above considerations were settled during 2016 as Goodly’s
audited consolidated total comprehensive income met the target
requirement as set out in the share purchase agreement acquiring
Goodly.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

nVT\
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

B W HmaR MR ()

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

30. DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 30. BENEEQRRE
Particulars of the amount due to a related company are as ENREEARIRIBFEBOT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
HK$'000 HK3$°000
FE T FET
Chit Shun Machinery Limited BARMEBHERA A 2,020 1,895
The amount due to a related company is of trade nature and is P RE R A M RIA R R FIEE R I
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Mr. Lee has BF - RERAEERFEMER - F
joint control in the related company. T EERE D RIER K RIER o
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITE

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as

follows:

RITEFROEAESTAT

2016
—RE

2015
e
HK$°000
FET

HK$000
FET

Current liabilities REBAE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR—FRNEHEERN

repayment within one year RITERILD 321,088 318,542
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR—FERIPEENES

repayment after one year which RERERIRHEORIT

contains a repayment on demand clause BERE D 44,945 79,504
Asset-backed financing (note (a)) BEERRE (#iFE) 92,675 24,490

458,708 422,536

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRIBEED

repayment after one year which TEERERERERD

do not contain repayment on demand clause #R1TE 5 107,244 181,051

The interest-bearing bank borrowings,

including the bank

borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost.
None of the portion of bank borrowings due for repayment after
one year which contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be settled within one

year.

ARRTER(BRARZEREENRT

B THIm @R A BR - AR —F1RE
HJIIEZ@E’J’PEQ&EI BEEGRASER
MBBEENRITERMARABEAR —
FRNFME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. |RITER &)
At 31 December 2016, interest-bearing bank loans were due for 75/\ T—RET-A=+—H0  HHE
repayment as follows: B ERTERRBEINOT :
2016 2015
ZB-XRF “T-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FETT
Portion of bank borrowings due for HER—FNR EJ%@E%E’\J
repayment within one year HRITEFEBS 321,088 318,542
Asset-backed financing (note (a)) ﬁé?ﬁ#ﬁ & (/W?f‘(a)) 92,675 24,490
413,763 343,032
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRINAER
repayment after one year which (B ERERERBERN
contains a repayment on RITERI D (H15Eb)) -
demand clause (note (b)):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFEZNAN 25,608 36,759
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBBRAFZRN 19,337 42,745
44,945 79,504
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRINAEERE
repayment after one year which (T EREREEBGR)
do not contain a repayment on RSRITERHL S :
demand clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFEZA 55,682 70,682
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBEREZAN 51,562 110,369
107,244 181,051
565,952 603,587

Note: Hiat -

(a) The asset-backed financing represents the amount of financing (a) BERHREEEATNTAEET RS
obtained in invoice financing transactions which do not meet the AERZE39RMBUEERREZR S M
de-recognition requirement in HKAS 39. The corresponding assets ESHNRmESE FHEEIAEZS
are included in trade receivables (note 25). FE W BR SR (P 5E25) ©

(b) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates (b) ERFRBIIEER G ESRNTETEE
set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any RERRERE - AT RAE IR EKE
repayment on demand clause. BIGRHOZE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE PR R (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Eight (2015: ten) of the bank facilities are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. Should the Group breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders the right at
their sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, and is up to date with the scheduled repayments of
the bank borrowings. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). During the year ended 31
December 2015, covenants relating to drawn down facilities with
two banks containing repayment on demand clauses had been
breached. The breach permitted the banks to demand accelerated
repayment. These covenants include certain requirements
in the total liabilities to total equity ratio and interest cover.
The total carrying amounts of these borrowings amounted
to HK$65,572,000 at 31 December 2015, and were already
classified as current liabilities as the Group has no unconditional
right to defer repayment after one year from the end of the
reporting period. These covenants have been re-negotiated and
remedied after the end of the reporting period. There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2016.

31.

RITER (&)
NE(ZFE—RF: +E) RTRER
EENABERASREE THMBLEXZ
R REREBRTRESRBBITL
ZERRHEHHR - HWASEHEREH
ZH AEPRZBMEREARENRE
ol ARBETEHRERBEZ
BRPRTERAZEBBREHER 2
KENREEE RO ER - ERARE
ERETRERTABEEERE -

NEBEHERENERFE BT iR
BROEINBEERHELEE - K&
SEIEHIREE R A E A IFERR
Mizr6(c) c BE—E—RE+-_A=+—
BIEFE  EMEERITEIZZ B B
EE % (BERERERKER) OE
B ENR  RITAERMPER -
RERERIFABERE RS EREL X
RABRENEFERK - ZEERRZ
TR+ A=+ HANEKREES
65,572,000/ 7 - WEF AnB&fE
] 7 £ 3] 7 5% 4 {1 AR R R 3R 45 R R R
—FREBER REXHCRHREH
REEFHEALELHER REBEEZT
—R"E+-_A=+—HLtFE HEZE
RAEMGTBERZ AR -
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nVT\

B AR M EE (38)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

31.

32.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. |ITHERE)

All bank borrowings were arranged at floating interest rate. The BT RIT 18 R Ty iR 7 B A =5t
range of the interest rates per annum at 31 December 2016 was B RZZE—RE+A=1+—
as follows: HEFEREEGENMT :

2015
—T—hF

%
per annum per annum

BF BF

Floating rate FE)F = 21% t05.3% 1.7% to 4.0%

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is denominated in BITE
the following currencies: =8 Lva

B 7 TAEEE{EL/(T§IJ %%n‘l’

2015
—E—RF T A&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
HK$ BT 517,060 587,220
RMB AR 26,546 -
usD ETT 22,346 16,367
Total #Et 565,952 603,587
BANKING FACILITIES 32. RITEE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available banking RZBE-—RETZA=+—8 &x5E
facilities of approximately HK$788,000,000 (2015: Tiﬁﬁﬁmfﬂmm,\,ﬁ’mmsoooooo,%m
HK$937,000,000), which were utilised to the extent of (ZZ—F 4 : 937,000,000/ 7T) -
approximately HK$566,000,000 (2015: HK$604,000,000). These E) A E’\]%ﬁ(%ﬁ%’\ﬂ%SGS,OO0,000%ﬁ(:g
banking facilities were secured by the following: — A : 604,000,000/ 7T) ° W FIRTT

EENATIHEBERER :

(@)  corporate guarantees provided by the Company and (@) AR RAREEIFELHE A AR
certain subsidiaries of the Group; HH D RIER

(b)  a property situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group; (b) AEBHEEHN—BEBYWE K
and

(0) all monies assignment of rental over the property situated (0) REBEBTAREA2WERES
in Hong Kong owned by the Group. EEIFESRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
by the Group, and the movements thereon, during the year:

nVT\

33.

B B 7 AR Y 5

BEEREEE BE
T AREERENEERNEBEL
HEABRAEREWNED

—~"E+ZRA=+—

(%)

BLIEEE

Deferred tax liabilities: RIETIBE(E
Undistributed Revaluation  Accelerated Intangible
earnings of of leasehold tax  assets and
a subsidiary land depreciation  inventories
] PGl HELiH mESE BHEE
APKBR EEEM e kEE ay
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FET FET FEx FET
At 1 January 2015 —AF—A—H - 25,579 31 2,245 27,855
Charge to other comprehensive — REREM 2 EKE MG
income for the year - 10,688 - - 10,688
Credit to profit or loss RERARZEB&
for the year (note 13) (Hi#t13) = (124) = (2,245) (2,369)
Exchange difference R - (926) = = (926)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RAF+ZA=1—
1 January 2016 AR-Z—AFE-A—R - 35,217 31 - 35,248
Charge to other comprehensive  FAE R E (2 T U & #1B%
income for the year 8,184 - - 8,184
Charge/(Credit) to profit or RERIR/(NE) 285
loss for the year (note 13) (Ki&t13) 15,852 (208) (31) = 15,613
Exchange difference 0 5, 322 - (1,889) - = (1,889)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
ZA=t+- 15,852 41,304 - - 57,156
Annual Report 2016 —Z—/NFF K
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 33. EZEBBEEE A& (&)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets: IREFLIEE E

Financial

liabilities at Fair value

fair value  adjustment

through  on business

Tax losses profit or loss combination

RALE
TTABEZ  EREHH
BEEE ¢tREE ATERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R=—Z—RF—A—H - = - =
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uy B 2 7% - 18 520 538
Credit to profit or loss for the year RERAREB&
(note 13) (Fiit13) - 11,738 6 11,744
At 31 December 2015 and R=ZE—h&+=A
1 January 2016 Z+-HAR=F—RF
—H—H - 11,756 526 12,282
Credit/(Charge) to profit or loss RERAE/ (1K) &
for the year (note 13) B& (Mi13) 1,080 (11,756) (96) (10,772)
Exchange difference 0 31 3 & (48) = (57) (105)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ—R%F
+-A=+—H 1,032 - 373 1,405
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after BEREMBRAET S @ BEHIEL
offset) for consolidated statement of financial position purposes: (EeHR) 2 oM™ -
2016 2015
—EB-XRF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEAE 56,124 35,248
Deferred tax assets RIEN IR B (373) (12,282)
Total #Et 55,751 22,966
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

an\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$150,142,000 (2015: HK$198,111,000) which
are available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$4,130,000 (2015: HK$Nil)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$17,174,000 (2015: HK$9,849,000)
which may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$128,838,000 (2015:
HK$188,262,000) will expire as follows:

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B W HmaR MR ()

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

EEBEEE,BE (H)

R — /\EIE‘I’ A= ‘I’ =] $%.
B R B) F 7 18 B3 38 49150,142,0005% 7T
(ZZ—F 4 :198,111,0005% jT) A
EHATRT] - NEBRZEHERER
4,130,000 T (Z T —RHF : &) BT
RIBEE - ASBWERZEFHBRTE
EERRELEHIBEE  ERREETE
*m/ﬁﬁf”mu)\ ;EEEWU%RIEESIEEIJ@IE
B 18 %17,174,0008 ¢ (=ZZE — R F :
9,849,000/ L) * AJ MR HALE - 8 T

2 A FE R I 5 18 49128,838,000/% It

(ZF—A%F 188,262,000/ L) RN T
51| 5 e 2 5 -
2016 2015
—F-AF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET
Year 2016 —EB-RF - 11,938
Year 2017 —F—tF - 12,274
Year 2018 —F-N\F 135 17,690
Year 2019 —ZE—NF 21,615 36,972
Year 2020 —TEF 47,908 45,902
Year 2021 T —F 51,381 -
Year 2033 —== - 7,311
Year 2034 —F=lF 2,030 29,032
Year 2035 —T-RF 2,837 27,143
Year 2036 —T=RF 2,932 -
128,838 188,262
At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of temporary E/\\\ T—XNE+_A=+—8 HBK
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries BRAGIAD ERNEBERHEEZmE

is HK$345,435,000 (2015: HK$325,908,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of temporary differences of
HK$186,913,000 (2015: HK$325,908,000) because the Group is
in a position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

H #)345,435,0008 7t (— T — F & ¢
325,908,000/ 7T ) © AN & B 3 5t &
BFZ%8186,913,0008 0 (ZE— R F ¢
325,908,000/ 7T) R A E - RE AR
SEERFEREZENOE M2
1% AT BE S AT R AR 2R Bl B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRAE

Number of

shares Amount

B EE &4
HK$°000
FET

Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each TR {EO0. 175 o /) T iR A
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZZT—hFE—HA—H =%
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 —hAF+=ZA=+—RH =%
—NF—A—HEZZ—ARF

+=—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBETRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREE 1B TR ERER
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R-ZZE—hFE—F—H =%
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 —AF+tZA=+—H =%
—RNE—A—BER=ZT—XF
+=—A=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

RE B E B H B AN AR A & B 5 A £
BRE MBOENIEBEELERR
BEARRBHRAD R - NEBAKE
REEEEFHER -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous year.

168

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and total equity, comprising issued share capital,

AEENEARBEBERELERRE
FHERESER  BROBTERES &

reserves, retained earnings and non-controlling interests. The #H REBFRIEERER - ARAE
directors of the Company review the capital structure on a ETVFRN —IRNERERE - RETR

semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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R BEEEEARAREBSRE
AR -REEBENEZ  AKES
BB BCB BT AR R [ R A
RETHERAXERRBER  FEUF
MEBEARE -



34.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

an\
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The net gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

B B 7 AR Y 5

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

34. RA (&)
RELEFRELRMT -

(%)

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FEIT

Debt (a) & f&(a) 565,952 603,587
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BIEIFRITER - (194)
Restricted bank deposits R HIERITF R (1,564) (4,172)
Bank and cash balances RIT MR 5k (296,008) (263,130)

Net debt BEFH 268,380 336,091
Equity (b) 125 (b) 771,507 731,500
Net debt to equity ratio B 755 BB B 2 L 3 34.8% 45.9%

(@) Debt is defined as bank borrowings as detailed in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirements for the Group
are (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of its shares, and (ii)
to meet financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major shareholders
and other connected persons on any changes in shares held by
them to ensure the continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2016, 29.64% (2015:
29.51%) of the shares were in public hands. Breaches in meeting
the financial covenants would permit the banks to immediately
call for repayment of borrowings. The financial covenants of the
bank borrowings containing repayment on demand clauses drawn
from two banks had been breached which permitted the banks to
demand accelerated repayment as at 31 December 2015. Details
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2016.

(@) BEBHRAER/RITER  BHF
BN M B WAMFE3

(b) HEREBEAEEMRBEERREE -

AN 5 (B — [ INEE 2 B AR TE A )R B
Rtz i R EETDR25% 2 A
BIFRE : R(i)BFHIRET BB Z I
A REBNWEZRRREMEBEA
T E BEFFA RN 2 e
RS - UEERFRRFEET25%K
Rl e RZF—X"F+_A=+—8"
29.64% (ZZF—HF 12951% ) 2 K&
MBEAREE - ERMBELHE DR
TREREER - R_E—HF+=-A
=+—H EMERTHARERER
HIERZBITERBZOBERMA
FFIRITERKINREBR - FBHNELRE Y
BHRERM 31 - REBE T —"F+=
R=+—HBLEE BMEEREHHFE
BRZ R IR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. MBMRARRAATZHE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY % B
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ALQFHBMRRE
Company
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—FRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHt B R R HRE 75,179 68,210
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - RE K
other receivables H {th i W SR IR 50 70
Due from subsidiaries i SN B 373,277 373,277
Bank and cash balances RITERBREEH 179 82
373,506 373,429
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HMENRIEREGTER 8 14
Due to subsidiaries A Bt BB A Bl 5K IE 83,081 81,828
Financial guarantee contracts
liabilities BMERRENEE 28,501 35,279
111,590 117,121
Net current assets RBEEFEE 261,916 256,308
NET ASSETS EEFRE 337,095 324,518
Capital and reserves EXR B
Share capital fi& 2 89,376 89,376
Reserves i 35(b) 247,719 235,142
TOTAL EQUITY FERME 337,095 324,518

REFEN _T—tHF=H_ -H:EI%H:
i fuiﬁaLATE%Tti’%xg

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017
and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Yuen Fat Wong Cheong Yiu

TR =52
Director Director
2 2

170 Annual Report 2016 —Z—/NEFR



35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

nVT\

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35.
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

B B 7 AR Y 5

(%)

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

MBRRREART 2 HE

28 (|

(b) AAFzHEEE

Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
ROBRE BREGE R & & F By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHETT FETT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF
—H—H 204,650 10 43,600 248,260
Profit for the year & A& A - - 1,182 1,182
Dividends paid BRKRE = - (14,300) (14,300)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—HFE+A
=+—H” 204,650 10 30,482 235,142
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZT—RNF
—H—H 204,650 10 30,482 235,142
Profit for the year F A s A - - 12,577 12,577
At 31 December 2016 RZT—R"F+=A
=+—H 204,650 10 43,059 247,719

Annual Report 2016 =%
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Ka Shui International

Holdings Limited ZI%EIFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —_E— "FE+-_A=1T—HILFE

36. RESERVES

(a)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

(b)
(M

(ii)

(iii)

Annual Report 2016 =

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their
par value per share. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate of
(i) the nominal value of the shares issued by Ka
Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited on
18 January 2005 in exchange for the business of
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory, an unincorporated
partnership established in Hong Kong and
controlled by Mr. Lee; and (ii) the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
for the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui (Holdings)
Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (a) the amount of
minority interests in Ka Fung Metal Manufactory
Company Limited and Ka Fung Metal Manufactory
acquired by the Group, (b) the adjustment of non-
controlling interest arising from further acquisition
of the equity interest up to 79.7% in Topanga Asia
and up to 100% in Wuhu Lenka during the year
ended 31 December 2015, and (c) the adjustment
of non-controlling interest arising from the deemed
disposal of Topanga Asia.

= — NEER

36.

R
(a)

(b)
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

36. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)(iii)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(s) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC statutory
reserve fund which is non-distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations
for foreign investment enterprises in the PRC,
the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules and
regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until
the accumulated total of the statutory reserve
fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make
up prior year losses or applied in conversion into
capital.

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been set up and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for leasehold land in note 4(e) to
the consolidated financial statements.

36. f#fE (&)

(b) REEZMEEREN(HE)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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Ka Shui International

Holdings Limited ZI%EIFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —_E— "FE+-_A=1T—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(@) Share Option Scheme

()

Annual Report 2016 =

Share option scheme of the Company
Pursuant to written resolutions of all the
shareholders passed on 2 June 2007, a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was approved. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants had made
or may make to the Group. Eligible participants
include (i) employees, directors, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents,
partners or advisors of or contractors to the Group
or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”), or
(ii) companies beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 2 June 2007 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme or any other schemes
involving the grant of options over shares of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at anytime.
The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in
the Share Option Scheme within any 12 month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at anytime. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

PN
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mm
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= ==

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

()

Share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned for a period of not less than three
business days from the date of offer, except for
any offer which is made within the last three
business days of the life of this scheme, the offer
shall remain open for acceptance on a business
day by the eligible participant concerned for a
period of not longer than the remaining life of this
scheme. An offer cannot be accepted by an eligible
participant who ceases to qualify as an eligible
participant after the offer has been made. No offer
shall be capable of or open for acceptance after
the expiry of 10 years for the effective date of this
scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period as determined by directors at each
grant and ends on a date which is not later than
ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. URESEE ZFE (H)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) HER#EsE (&)
(i) Share option scheme of the Company (i) AATERETE ()

(Continued)
The exercise price of the share options is BERENTEEREEE
determinable by the directors, but may not be less E - BTREA)IR DB
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing IR B A 2 B AR B &5
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the EEB TR HE : ()2
offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock B4 B EBAT AL E S % A
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares N2 B R A FE B ?&Pﬁﬁ’]?
for the five trading days immediately preceding the HYHE RGiNEARA
date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the PREA B iﬁﬂﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ (J:)\
Company’s shares on the date of the offer. Rima /L) o
Share options do not confer rights on the holder to R A A EEEIRR
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. B REEAE FRE -
Details of the specific categories of options are as BREN B EERIFEN
follows: T s

Fair value Number of
Category of at grant Exercise share options
grantee Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period date price outstanding
RRILAH ief B
ARAER REAH BRAH ZAYE BREHE
2016 2015
“E-RE -E-1%
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2009 13 March 2009 to 12 March 2018 0.11 0.415 40,800 40,800
888 I & )¢ “RENE “EENFERTER
=Rt=H =At=H E2E5-\§=R+ZA
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2010 13 March 2010 to 12 March 2018 0.12 0415 20,600 20,600
e ZER\E Z5-%F ZE-TEZATZAZ
=fAt=H =At=H “Z-\#=A+ZH
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2011 13 March 2011 to 12 March 2018 0.12 0415 40,600 40,600
5 ZTR\E ZF-f Iy R
=h+=H =R+=A “5-\5ZR+ZR
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

()

Share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

The fair values of the options were determined at
the dates of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of shares options:

Share price HK$0.400
Exercise price HK$0.415
Expected life 3.5 - 6.5 years
Expected volatility 55.42%
Dividend yield 5.25%

Risk-free interest rate 2.005% - 2.176%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating
the historical volatility of share prices of
comparable companies with shares listed on
the Stock Exchange and engaged in the similar
business of the Group. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group’s best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

37. URESEZFE (&)
(a) FREmAERTE (&)

()
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db =
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NIMRRE ARt BB
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A% (B 0.400/8 7T
I{E(E 0.4158 7T
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4% 3 i ) = 2.005% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nVT\

B B 75 R 3R B 5

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

()

Annual Report 2016

Share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Details of the share option movements during the
year and share options outstanding at the end of
the year under the Share Option Scheme are as
follows:

37.

DU AR 2 E (&)
(a) BREE (M)
() ADTWREE (H)

RERERAE 2 28 &R0
FREARITEEREZ
BT

2016 2015
—E-xE —AfF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options exercise price  share options  exercise price
T IniEF g
BRESA TEE  EBREZE T6efE
HK$
B BT
Outstanding at the FPRTE
beginning of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415
Forfeited during the year FAR K - 0.415 - 0.415
Exercised during the year FRITE - 0.415 = 0.415
Outstanding at the end FRRITE
of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415
Exercisable at the end FIATRE
of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415
No (2015: No) share options were exercised during FRAEERERETHE (=
the year. The options outstanding at the end T—RF &)  FKRRK

of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.3 years (2015: 2.3 years) and
the exercise price of HK$0.415 (2015: HK$0.415).

Save as disclosed above, no further options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

T RNEER

17 {50 5 AR |9 e 2 35 R
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme of Topanga Asia

Topanga Asia, a subsidiary of the Company in
2015 and deemed disposed on 5 February 2016,
operates a share option plan (the “Share Option
Plan”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of its operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time employees of Topanga Asia
or any of its subsidiaries (including directors of
Topanga Asia or its subsidiaries) or any other
persons who devote substantially all of their time
and efforts to the business, management and
operation of Topanga Asia and/or any subsidiary,
as determined by the board of Topanga Asia. The
Share Option Plan became effective on and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the Share Option Plan is 70,000 shares of Topanga
Asia, subject to the adjustment in such manner
as the auditors shall certify to be appropriate, fair
and reasonable in the event of any alteration in
the capital structure of Topanga Asia in accordance
with section 8 of the Share Option Plan, whether
by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves,
rights issue, consolidation, reclassification,
reconstruction, subdivision or reduction of the
share capital of Topanga Asia.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 15 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of US$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than
ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option
Plan, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors in its absolute
discretion.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

37. URBEGEE 2FIE(H&)
(a) BRESTE (E)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. UBREZEZFE (&)
(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BRESTEI(HE)
(ii)  Share option scheme of Topanga Asia (i) N=EBERETSEE)
(Continued)
Details of the specific categories of options are as RERR L 2 BRENE
follows: BT
Number of
Exercise share options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price outstanding
R AH HRH TS @ HEAEREHE
Us§ 2016 2015

Zr ZE-AE —T-1%
Lot 1 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/9/2014 6/9/2014 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 275
Ft
Lot 2 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/10/2014 6/10/2014 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 22
EEis
Lot 3 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/11/2014 6/11/2014 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
34t
Lot 4 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/12/2014 6/12/2014 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
Sttt
Lot 5 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/1/2015 6/1/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
58t
Lot 6 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/2/2015 6/2/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
Eoit
Lot 7 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/3/2015 6/3/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
74
Lot 8 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/4/2015 6/4/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 22
£t
Lot 9 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/5/2015 6/5/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
F98t
Lot 10 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/6/2015 6/6/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
108
Lot 11 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/7/2015 6/7/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
F118
Lot 12 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/8/2015 6/8/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
EAbEi
Lot 13 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/9/2015 6/9/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 24
S134t
Lot 14 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/10/2015 6/10/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 22
148
Lot 15 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/11/2015 6/11/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
S154t
Lot 16 16/6/2014 16/6/12014 - 5/12/2015 6/12/2015 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
168
Lot 17 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/1/2016 6/1/2016 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23
F174
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited E=IxEIRZERERL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Share option scheme of Topanga Asia

(i)

(Continued)

ma MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

(%)

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

37. UREEHE ZFHE(E)

(a)

Details of the specific categories of options are as
follows: (Continued)

Lot 18
184
Lot 19
F19%
Lot 20
F208
Lot 21
F214
Lot 22
F0H
Lot 23
234
Lot 24
F244
Lot 25
F25%
Lot 26
F264
Lot 27
F274
Lot 28
284
Lot 29
£29%
Lot 30
F308
Lot 31
314
Lot 32
F304t
Lot 33
#3384
Lot 34
F344

Date of grant

RiHBH

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

16/6/2014

Vesting period
ERH

16/6/2014 - 5/2/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/3/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/4/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/5/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/6/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/7/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/8/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/9/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/10/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/11/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/12/2016
16/6/2014 - 5/1/2017
16/6/2014 - 5/2/2017
16/6/2014 - 5/3/2017
16/6/2014 - 5/4/2017
16/6/2014 - 5/5/2017

16/6/2014 - 5/6/2017

Exercise period

lid

6/2/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/3/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/4/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/5/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/6/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/7/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/8/2016 - 16/6/2024

6/9/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/10/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/11/2016 - 16/6/2024
6/12/2016 - 16/6/2024

6/1/2017 - 16/6/2024
6/2/2017 - 16/6/2024
6/3/2017 - 16/6/2024
6/4/2017 - 16/6/2024
6/5/2017 - 16/6/2024

6/6/2017 - 16/6/2024

RE R & ()

(i) SH=ZBERESE (E)
RERARL 2 BRENA
BEMNNT (&)

Exercise
price
e
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375
9.1375

BAISHD

Number of
share options
outstanding
o ErEE R A B B
2016 2015

“E-Xf ZE2-1EF
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/-.l_\ 7.|- iﬁ 3{:& ’13«% Bﬁ- (n\,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. UREAHEZNRE (&)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BEEsE(E)
(i)  Share option scheme of Topanga Asia (i) HREBRETS ()
(Continued)
Details of the specific categories of options are as RERFE 2 BRENE
follows: (Continued) BEXERI0R (4E) :

Number of
Exercise share options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price outstanding

RAAH BES s ] MEaRRERE
Uss 2016 2015
T ZB-AF “ZT-1%

Lot 35 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/7/2017 6/7/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23

354t

Lot 36 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/8/2017 6/8/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 23

#3614

Lot 37 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/9/2017 6/9/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - 24

374

Lot 38 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/10/2017 6/10/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

£38H

Lot 39 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/11/2017 6/11/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

$398

Lot 40 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/12/2017 6/12/2017 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

408

Lot 41 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/1/2018 6/1/2018 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

418t

Lot 42 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/2/2018 6/2/2018 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

4kt

Lot 43 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/3/2018 6/3/2018 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

Fa3ft

Lot 44 16/6/2014 16/6/2014 - 5/4/2018 6/4/2018 - 16/6/2024 9.1375 - -

a4

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves EEEHRAS =z REM

Topanga Asia and its subsidiaries. BAR - HERERTR
1 o

During the year, Topanga Asia ceased to be the RERN YmBTER

Group's subsidiary (notes 20, 27 and 38(c)). The NGBl N s

share option reserve and the relevant share-based 20 27X%38(c)) ° EULHE

payment expenses thereafter were deconsolidated 14 B 1S e 2 1 M2 4B A DA R

as a result. R 2 A HBUHAR
A0

The change in number of share options I RITEERES R 2

outstanding as set out above is due to BEARFEANIEES

deconsolidation during the year. F B
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37.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme of Topanga Asia
(Continued)

B B 7 AR Y 5

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

(%)

37. UREEHE ZFHE(E)

(a)
(ii)

Details of the share option movements during the
year and share options outstanding at the end of

the year are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning 74 4] i & 17 £

2016
—E-RF
Weighted

Number of average

share options exercise price
BREHR METHTEE
uss

ey

BIRAES & ()

YREBRETE ()

545 PO R RRCHEE 2 B 2 4
£ 5K R 1718 2 MR AE 2
HIEMT

2015

—hF
Weighted
Number of average
share options  exercise price
BREZE mMETHTRE
Us$
ET

of the year 1,100 9.1375 53,300 9.1375
Granted during the year FREL - 9.1375 = 9.1375
Forfeited during the year FEREU - 9.1375 52,200 9.1375
Deconsolidation BUEGR S (1,100) 9.1375 = 9.1375
Outstanding at the end REEMARITE

of the year - 9.1375 1,100 9.1375
Exercisable at the end REKR T17{2

of the year - 9.1375 618 9.1375

Options were granted on 16 June 2014. The
estimated fair value of the options on this date is
US$249,785 (approximately HK$1,936,000). As at
31 December 2015, the options outstanding at the
end of the year have a weighted average remaining

contractual life of 8.5 years and the exercise price

of US$9.1375.

Annual Report 2016 —ZF—

EREA-_ZT—DWF
NATABRE  fHE
BREREAZAF
B &249,785% 7T (&
1,936,000/ 7T) ° R FJK
M AR AT 2 B AR A 2 AN
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F - 17EERI.1375%
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R PR E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z —_E— "FE+-_A=1T—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii) Share option scheme of Topanga Asia

(Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the
binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the

model are as follows:

Weighted average share price
Weighted average exercise price
Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk free rate

Expected dividend yield
Forfeiture rate

Expected volatility was determined by calculating
the average of industry annualised historical
stock price volatility. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group’s best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

(b) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 10 January 2013 (“Adoption Date”)
for a period of 10 years. The purpose and objective of the
Share Award Scheme are to recognise the contributions
by certain employees and persons of the Group and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continued operation and development of the Group
and to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group. The Company has set up a Share Award
Scheme Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and issued to the
independent trustee under general mandates granted or
to be granted by the shareholders at general meetings of
the Company from time to time and be held in trust for
relevant participants until such shares are vested with the
relevant participants in accordance with the provisions of

the Share Award Scheme.
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37.

LU R 45 8 2 7R (])

(a)

(b)

BRESE (R’
(i) SH=ZBERESE (E)

HRAFEDERZANE
EEAGE - KAZERR

ZEABIBRAT

mEFEHRE 8.85% 7T
MEFHITEE 9.1375% T
BRI I8 65.72%
TAEHF A 104
= 3l B 1| & 2.06%
B REEHE 0.00%
R U b = 0.00%

BEHRIETE B EITE
F R sk BB R I8 T 19
BEMEE - sLIFEZEIE
TERERS RITAE B
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-.I_\

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the Board of the Company, the Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares awarded under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to
a selected person under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date.

On 28 April 2014, the Company granted 210,000
shares to an eligible participant pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. The shares were vested immediately.
The Company has recognised a share-based payment of
HK$292,000 and credited the share capital and share
premium of approximately HK$21,000 and HK$271,000
respectively, representing the fair value of the shares
awarded. The fair values of the awarded shares were
measured by reference to the closing market price of the
shares at grant date. For the years ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2016, no awarded share was
granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

B B 75 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= ==

(%)

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

37. UREEHE ZFHE(E)

(b)

i 17 52 By =t &1 (%)

EARRAEEETRERPHEL
MR - B SRt 818 4R
R R IR R R A

RIE R (7 82 R &1 % H A B 15 B
SHETEBERAEMBEHEAN
AJE BITARAM5% ©

BIBIR (O BB H 8l A — R AEH
Ath&ﬁm%PE%%ET
BRANFEMBHARTEET
fRANE 1% o

RZE—NFMA=+NH" &
NEIEREBERD BB SR —&
A B2 MNE K 1H210,0008% f&
Mo ZERMENERRE - AQ
AEMRB—EHURNDEE 2K
18292,0007% T + 3 % #721,000
77T & #9271,0000%8 7t o Bl &H A
BRAS R B (0 5 (B - FHE R ERE AR
M2 RYE - BERGD 2 AFE
2EROHRBELAHZ KME
A2 -HREBE-_Z—FAFE+=-A
=t+—-BR=-_ZE—X~"E+_-A
=+—HIEFE #$ERRKRGHE
Bt 81 9% L SE B AR (D o
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7_|- ﬁﬁ 3{;& ’13«% M-J- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z T — X F+ _-_A=+—BItFE

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. mEBRESREXRKE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) REEXEB2HERE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —h%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Profit/(Loss) from operations R (B1E) 122,408 (72,510)
Adjustments for: BIEH T3 HZE -
Interest income FEWA (868) (2,194)
Share-based payment expenses AR E 2 RIBS I - 111
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts R R o (53) (358)
Bad debt written off (net of bad debt recovery) ZEERH#i#E (FNKIEERE U [E]) 275 14
Allowance for inventories FEEE 12,110 6,147
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets/liabilities BATEFABSNEREE,/
at fair value through profit or loss BEZF () /BB (14,767) 71,646
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  #MEkEHEZ
plant and equipment (Wzs) /18
(45) 267
Property, plant and equipment written off I3 - WS R R S 4,515 3,888
Property, plant and equipment written back W5 HER AR B B - (1,000)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « ¥R LR B R E 1,122 4,750
Depreciation on property, M ERREETE
plant and equipment 90,500 84,562
Impairment on intangible assets EREERE - 11,206
Amortisation of intangible assets A E R - 2,402
Operating profit before movements in KT EEE B BRI L E R T
working capital 215,197 108,931
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FE M), w> (33,453) 22,848
Decrease in restricted bank balance B BR #1817 F 50 2,714 =
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables E 5 e IE (), B> (96,220) 59,779
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments, BRHIE - ke REMEKTIE
deposits and other receivables (&), md (827) 22,077
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FEfHE SR IBE MOt > 87,062 (53,676)
Increase/(Decrease) in deposits received, BliES ETMEH/TAIE&JE%
other payables and accruals Z i/ ( )FJZQ\) 625 (2,032)
Increase in due from associates JE A< B & 8 R) FR IR AN 1,175 -
Increase in amount due to a related company  FEfRfEEER TAIEJHH 125 996
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABZRNSREE
through profit or loss A - 6,595
Payment for financial liabilities at fair value AT ERABREERRN
through profit or loss SHARESTH (56,435) (15,011)
Cash generated from operations KEmBEe 119,963 150,507
Income tax paid B FEH (19,040) (25,360)
Interest paid B F B8 (17,933) (16,480)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEHE R 82,990 108,667
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 14 May 2015, the Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Goodly. Goodly is an investment holding
company and its subsidiary, Goodly Suzhou, was engaged
in research, manufacture and sale of plastic injection
moulding and components of car-related products during
the period.

According to the share purchase agreement dated 14
May 2015 between the Group and the then shareholder
of Goodly, the consideration of the acquisition of
Goodly was settled by way of (a) cash consideration
of HK$10,000,000; (b) contingent consideration
(“Contingent Consideration”) comprising a cash
consideration of maximum up to HK$1,200,000 and a
share consideration of maximum of 300 ordinary shares of
Katchon. The final amount of Contingent Consideration
depends on the consolidated total comprehensive income
of Goodly for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
fair value of the Contingent Consideration at acquisition
date was measured by reference to the expected total
comprehensive income of Goodly which had been
discounted by applicable discount rates. The acquisition
is for the purpose of expanding the Group’s automotive
components products portfolio and customer base with
a view to enhance its revenue and profitability in the
forthcoming future.

B B 75 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= ==

(%)

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

38. ZEBEREBRWE (&)

(b)

W B8 7%
R-_T—RAERATHAE A%
BB R E ETRAMNI00%
o B A —RIEEER
Al B R R S aMN RS
WE - EEMBEESBRIVER
RAERBERONZTMH -

FL /\

BE-_T—HAFRATHALRE
EHEERSHREZENEBR
e WEEHHORERLATA
A 1 (a) £ /(10,000,000

BT (b)) HAKREB ([HAR
&) BHE&51,200,000/TH)
RERBEEERZI00R LB

BRI RE - AAREBEZHRE
CRBRAREMBE_Z—RF
T-A=T—"BNHKEEFAZE
Wk s - NI HE ZHAKE
MAFELABEEOIRRXTH
SRR E R AR 2T
Ko ETWER BN RERAE
BREFHRFcERMARER
i BmMAERKESERAR
BHMEET °
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n‘/T\ 7_|- ﬁﬁ 3{;& ’13«% M-J- (n\,\ )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z T — X F+ _-_A=+—BItFE

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. HMEHRERERMET (&)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WHEBXE (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities RUREE B HY - Pk s S A e BB
of Goodly and its subsidiary acquired as at its date of BARIMAZINEERBENRD
acquisition is as follows: FEFRIAT
Net assets acquired: HK$000
R EETE: FET
Property, plant and equipment VI - HeR AR 15,497
Inventories FE 4,936
Trade and other receivables B 5 &E U FRIA 14,744
Current tax assets BNERFEIE & = 242
Bank and cash balances RITRBE S EH 3,772
Deferred tax asset EERIBEE 538
Trade and other payables B 5 I H &~ 5RE (10,193)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (3,126)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFABZEZ S/ EE (114)
Total net identifiable assets Al RIE EFEARE 26,296
Gain on a bargain purchase EEREE e (9,546)
Total consideration BB 16,750
Satisfied by: AR5 5 R A
Cash Re 10,000
Contingent consideration payable FERTS AR E 6,750
16,750
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W E ARSI LFEE
Cash consideration paid BB KE (10,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiER € R ERE BB 3,772
(6,228)
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group has recognised a gain on a bargain purchase of
approximately HK$9,546,000 which is mainly attributable
to the immediate cash realisation opportunity offered to
the vendor.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade receivables) in this transaction with a fair value
of approximately HK$14,744,000 had gross contractual
amounts of approximately HK$14,744,000. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

At the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration of approximately HK$6,750,000 was the
sum of the additional cash consideration of HK$988,000,
and the estimated fair value of the additional shares to
be issued by Katchon. The fair value of shares of Katchon
was estimated applying the income approach. The fair
value estimates are based on an assumed discount rate of
21.33%.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the consolidated
total comprehensive income of Goodly has met the
target requirement as stipulated in the share purchase
agreement. As a result, the former shareholder of Goodly
is entitled to the maximum amount of cash consideration
and share consideration. The Group's final shareholding in
Goodly was reduced to 70% after the issue of Katchon's
shares to the former shareholder of Goodly. Therefore, the
contingent consideration payable as at 31 December 2015
was adjusted accordingly. The cash consideration and
share consideration of the Contingent Consideration were
settled during 2016.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$450,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the
year, within the “other operating expenses and income”
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

38. RERETRERME (B

(b)

W R (&)
AEBEERRAZEBERRD
9,546,000 7T * JIEEZRHIRMHT
B EESEBSEE -

REIBER S UK E 2 &R FHIE
(EEREESHEWE) A FE
4 7414,744,000% T © & 448
& R4 A14,744,00078 7T © TEET
Al El 2 & 43R & RER IS
BHNEGGTEEAT

RUEH - AR EA6,750,000
BITHAFEAEIINRESKE
988,000/ 7t il 37 S #k 1T RN
BHzEAFENEM - 28
BEAD B A FE T A S A E -
ARFEMGFTHERBEE X
21.33%+ & -

R—ZE-—HAF+-A=+—8
HFE SfizEazmEEER
HEBRNBEGZZ BIRRME -
At - S ZIBRRAZER S
REREODREZESE2E - 1
BUIRE2EOTEMZABRE
% ARERKRESHZBEE
[EZE70% - FTA > MR- —HF
ToA=tT - BZENHARE
THEEHARE IARAREZRE
REMEOREER_F—RF

& -

Uy B2 48 BF AX 78 #9450,0005%8 T E
HEEAEFRNGR  YERFR
e Earn Mg ER
BRMAIBTERAERAS -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEEIERERA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n\/-_l_\

B AR M EE (38)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

38.

Annual Report 2016 —F—

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Goodly and its subsidiary contributed approximately
HK$25,675,000 and HK$3,495,000 to the Group's
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2015, total revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 would have been approximately
HK$1,559,151,000, and loss for the year ended 31
December 2015 would have been approximately
HK$74,682,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

As set out in notes 20 and 27, on 5 February 2016,
the Group entered into a share purchase agreement,
according to which a total of 1,912,069 shares were
allotted to a third party and a non-controlling shareholder
of Topanga Asia,
immediately after the share allotment. The Group’s equity
interest in Topanga Asia was diluted to 38.9% after the
allotment, and resulted in a loss of control in and deemed
disposal of Topanga Asia.

representing 51.1% of Topanga Asia

NS

38.

mERERERME ()
(b) WHEEHK (&)
R BB E 35 R RS - =

(c)

MEEHBRARAAASEEEHZ

—RF+-_A=+—81
FEZWA RGNS B E B4
25,675,000 7T 13,495,000/
= 5

W BER _TE—RAF—A—BK
Enﬁ'$%@m@i_a*£
F+-_A=+T—BIEFENRAK
A#5#)/41,559,151,000/87C M
HE-_ZT—AF+=-_A=+—¢H
IEFEMEIBE Y 574,682,000
BT EEERHMEHERARR
FMABKBER-_T—RAF—F—
HSENK AR E BB ATERA KR
REEBMIER - MR IERRK
EEMTEA -

RIELEHBE AR

WM 20275 H  R=ZF
—NE-ARBAREBETT KRG
8 B % - B b Bd#1,912,069
B F—RE=F RIEZERR
RS mRERERN A
S51.1%HEz - BEEBEERNEERS
SRR EEE38.9%  WHE
SbR A MR R E S5 ss o



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS (CONTINUED)

38.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

n‘l_.I_\

38.

(c)

Net assets at the date of deemed disposal were as follows:

SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

(%)

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

%.Hr = iﬁ%ulbgﬁpﬁﬂ (ﬁ)

HRIELHERE 2 E (&)
RRIELE BB FEEHIM
™

Net assets disposed: HK$'000

HEFEE: FET
Inventories eSS 2,603
Trade receivables B 5 WA 551
Other receivables, prepayment and deposit paid HE A ER IR - B RBERZS 1,283
Amount due from a related company JE U A& R R FRIA 589
Bank and cash balances RITRIR® 4 1,630
Trade payables H S EMNRIE (42)
Amount due to holding company JE A 422 AR A R R IE (1,686)
Other payables and accruals H A FE A 5K Iﬁ&ﬁ%?r%ﬁﬁ (2,093)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 2,835
Fair value of the equity interest retained in Topanga R )55 Flsa ki 2 AF(E

Asia 5,078
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (2,835)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A 2,355
Release of foreign currency translation reserve PE 5 R 37
Gain on deemed disposal RAEH & 4,635
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEH 2 FHER
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSRERBESEE 1,630
Major non-cash transaction d FEHFREXRH
Included in the additions of property, plant and equipment FAREME BBIRIZELD
was an amount of approximately HK$3,072,000 (2015: 43,072,000 L (ZF—RHF
HK$3,538,000) which was transferred from deposits paid 3,538,000/8 L) * JWARTENEE
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment. YIZE - MR RERERIRESFTE A o
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZHEIRERERAD T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B AR M EE (38)

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its property under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of one year
(2015: one year). The terms of the leases generally provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

39.

REHENRE
AKREEREBEA
AEEREEROZHHBEYE A
BA—F(CE—RF —F) - BHE

H—RARITHHBERIEENEE HE
Z AR

RZFB-RFE+t-A=+—H0 &x5H
RBTAIBERRERAOMRN T 5 HMRE 2
B ERCRRRERER@BNT

2016 2015
—E—RF —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Within one year —F A 85 49
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEERT (BREEEMT) 76 =
161 49
The Group as lessee AEBEELSREA

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

R-F—7E+-A=+-0 A%E

AR BT 4B A8 8 TH A0 B9 B Y R SR & A
HERBRMT :

2016 2015

—E—AE —hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FEIL

Within one year —FR 5,512 6,439
In the second to fifth year, inclusive —HEEENF (BEAEREMSF) 6,523 7,441
After five years FF & 35,522 39,310
47,557 53,190

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its staff quarters, factory and office premises, office
equipment and warehouses. Leases for staff quarters, factory
and office premises, office equipment and warehouses except
one warehouse and certain factory premises are negotiated, and
rentals are fixed, for an average term of 1 to 5 years. Lease for
certain factory premises are fixed with a term of 34 years.
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZIxEIRZERERA R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

wm

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZZ=Z

B W HmaR MR ()

—RNETZH=+—BIEE

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. REMANAE (E)
(Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEREEA (B)
Lease arrangement of one warehouse (2015: one) has been —E(ZE—R2F: —MEEMNHEEL
subject to contingent rent by reference to monthly usage BAE2ZHEHEANEAFERBRIY
throughout the lease period. N ABE -
The lease payments recognised as an expenses are as follows: HEREERAEXEH MR :
2016 2015
ZB-REF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Minimum lease payments SEBEFRE 8,848 11,175
Contingent rent LA E 12 37
8,860 11,212
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 20. BAEIE
The Group's capital commitments in respect of purchase and NEPEHAN =R AEESBES N
construction of property, plant and equipment at the end of the FEEM S | HASR D SR AN SRR R ME SIS
reporting period are as follows: e

2016 2015

—B-AE —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment URHE#I % - # 23 K& B 15,611 28,718
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited EZIEFRERERLD A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B AR M EE (38)

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E - — "F+-_A=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) In addition to those related party translations and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
its related parties during the year:

41.

BEALXRS
(@) KBRREAMBRREME D ATE

BOMEALR D REBI &
MAEE B REEALETUT
25

2016 2015
—hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT
Rental income from associates BEE R RIES KA 331 =
Rental expenses paid to an associate ~ {fEt& A al & 3 H 1,727 =
Purchase of machinery and machinery [f] #8388 22 7] 5 ML 4 5% 1
parts from and maintenance cost BERAAIEEMS - 3
to a related company, Chit Shun T 2B RS B AN (K 77()
Machinery Limited (note (i) 2,417 7,594
Amount due to a related company, FE AT A 2 B 3R A A R AR 1
Chit Shun Machinery Limited BRA R &8 (K7 2£())
(note (i) 2,020 1,895
Deposit paid to a related company, M) B8 A A A A RR 1
Chit Shun Machinery Limited ER AR RS (H:23)
(note (i) - 87
Note: K -
(i) Mr. Lee has joint control in the related company. (i) THEAEHEBEARA LR

These transactions are made between the Company’s
subsidiaries and the related company under a master
agreement dated 7 December 2015 between the
related company and the Company, and are continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

(b) The above transactions were entered with the related
parties on terms mutually agreed by individual parties. In
the opinion of the directors of the Group, these related
party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's
business.

() During the year, compensation paid by the Group to the
key management personnel, which were the directors
of the Company, was disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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42.

43.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEFRIZERERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BRRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —F—"E+-_A=+—HILFE

(d)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 24 October 2016, the Group has entered into an
agreement with a company controlled by the controlling
shareholder (the “Purchaser”) to transfer the entire equity
interest of MG Technology, a subsidiary of the Company,
to the Purchaser, at a consideration of HK$290,000,000.
The consideration will be paid by three instalments, of
which HK$40,000,000 was received before year end and
was included in deposits received in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The transaction was a
connected transaction under the Listing Rules and was
approved by independent shareholders in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 7 December 2016. Pursuant to
the agreement, save for (i) the land and buildings, and (ii)
bank and cash balances, trade receivables and payables of
not more than HK$110,000,000, MG Technology should
transfer all assets and liabilities, businesses and employees
to other group companies prior to the completion of the
transaction. The Group expects that the transaction will be
completed in 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed to declare a
final dividend of HK1.0 cent (2015: Nil) per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017.

41.

42.

43.

BEALRS (&)

(d)

R=ZFE—A"F+A=+HTA
ANEBEEZERBREZELZ QA
(I1ER]) ST EEADA
HMERARAEERZZEHR
#FEH - R{E/5290,000,000
BT - KREHS=ZHIF HF
40,000,0005% 7t B 1A F K AT BLEL
REREGREMBARRATRPARR
BlET€ c i EMARERS A
BEIFENR_ZT—X F+=A
tHZBRREFRASEE KRR
AR RIRHE - BR() T H R
¥ R(NVRTRBESESR EH
FEW R IBE R B 5 1 5K IE T A
110,000,000/ 7T 5h + Bl & E &t
RERTURZAEEMEEE
kBB EBREEEZHEMEHE
ANE  AREBETEHLERZER =

TR -
WMEHEEE
RZE—+FE=A=-++H B
ZERGRIBIN(ZE—RE T)2K
HEBBRKE  EFBIREE T E®R
RMIFE17 -

HESSBBHRE

KGEEMBHRRAER-_ZE—LF=A
THERESSSRHETRETE -
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Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ZEiEMEZERERAT

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L FHHBRE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE
2012 2013 2014 2015

—E——F =% —F—NOF —_T—HF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET

2016

S
HK$’000
FHET

RESULTS E
Revenue A 1,568,958 1,806,585 1,582,333 1,539,344 1,742,476
Profit/(Loss) before tax B AT E T, (E548) 157,230 90,651 86,059 (71,756) 106,154
Income tax expense P15 i 2 (31,336) (34,539) (26,707) (5,410) (46,252)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF(E8) 125,894 56,112 59,352 (77,166) 59,902
Attributable to AT AL
— Owners of the Company —ARRAE=FAEA 125,894 60,542 77,246 (63,489) 59,243
— Non-controlling interests — e R = - (4,430)  (17,894)  (13,677) 659
125,894 56,112 59,352 (77,166) 59,902

As at 31 December
Rt+t=HA=+—8H
2012 2013 2014 2015

—E——fF —F—=F “FT-NF —T-—AF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAETT FET FET

2016
=
HK$'000
FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets wEE 1,596,677 1,700,608 1,829,980 1,791,602 1,865,747
Total liabilities wEE (780,903)  (847,045)  (980,437) (1,060,102) (1,094,240)
Net assets FEE 815,774 853,563 849,543 731,500 771,507
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